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DIRECTORS' RESPOMNSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

The directers are raguired in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 (25 amended] to maintain adequate accounting records znd are responsible for the consent
and irtegrity of the consolidated and separate financlal statements and releted financlal infarmation incluged in this report It is their responsibility to ensure
that the consclidated and separate finencial staterments fairly present the state of affairs of Attacn Limsted |"Attzen") and s subsidiaries ("the Group and
Cormpany'] & at the end of the financiai vear and the results of its operations and cash fows for the year than endead. in conformity with International Financial
Reporing Standards

The consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared i accordance with International Financial Reparting Standands, ssued by the Intermational
Accounting Standards Board, and sre based vpon apgrop<iate accounting policies conclstantly applied and supported by rezsonable and prudent judgemants
and estimates.

The directars acknowledge that they are witimarely responsible for the system of intérnal contrel establishad by the Greup and place considerable Impatance
on maintalning & strong contral envireament. To enable the directors 1o meet these responsisiities, the board sets standards for internal control aimas st
regucing the ritk of error or loss In-a cost effectve manner. The standards include the proper delagation of responsibilivies within a clearly defined framewark,
effective accounting procadures and adequate segregation of dutles to Ensure an acceptable level of rsk. These controfs sre monitored throughout the Group
and all ermployaes are required 1o maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Group's business is conducted in a2 mapner tha: in all
reasondble cirocumstances & above reproach, The fecus of risk management in the Company Is on idestifying, aLEEELINE. Managing and rmoritoring all knows
lerms of risk across the Graup.

While operating risk cannct be fully efiminated, the Group endeavours to minimisa the said risk by ensuring that appropriate infrastiucture, controls, syster and
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints, The directors are of the gpinion, based on the infermatien and
explanations givan by manzgemant, that the system of internal control provides ressonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the
preparation of the annual financial statements, However, any system af internal financial conrol can provide onby reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
againsl material misstatement o [ass.

The directors have reviewed the cash flow forecast of the Company srd Group for tha year 1o 30 lune 2016 and, in light of this review and the current financial
position, they are satisfied that the Groug and the Company habe access to adequate resourses te continue in operztional existence for the faresesahls future.

The cansalidated and seperate financial staterments, set out on pages & to 113 in this report, have been prepared on the going concern basis.

The euternal suditors are responsible for independently auditing and reparting on the consolidated and separate finansial staterments, The financial statements
have been examined by the Group's external aeditors and thelr unmodified répaert is presented on pages 2 to B

The consafidsted and separaie financial statements set out on piaes 9 to 113, were agproved by the board on 18 Saptember 2015 ang were signed onits behalf
bwp:

F Tredo ML Wilken
Chalom, Chied Executive OfHicer
18 Septémber 2015 18 September 2015
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We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Aftacq Limited and Its subsidiaries
("the Group”} set out on pages 21 to 113, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2015, and the consolidated and separate statements of other comprehensive
incame, the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and the consolidated and separate
staternents of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated and separate financial

staternents, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinian, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated and separate financial position of Attacqg Limited as at 30 June 2015, and its consolidated and
separate financial performance and its consclidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and the requirements of the

Companies Act of South Africa.

Basis for Opinlen

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (*ISA™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for Registared Auditors
["IRBA Code”), which is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of
Ethies for Professional Accountants {Part A and B), together with other ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in South Africa, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statermnents of the current period. These matters wera
addrassed in the context of our audit of the consolidaled and separate financial statements as a whole, and

in forming our gpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit' Matter

How our audit’addressed the key audit matter
BTN RBE G000

The carmying value of investment properties
amounted to R16.2 billlon and the fair value
adjustmeant recorded in net profit for the year in
respect of investment properties was R1.1 billion.
Significant judgement is required by the Directors
in determining the fair value of investment
property and for the purposes of our audit; we
identified the valuation of investment properties as
representing & key audit matter dus to the
significance of the balance to the financial
statements as a whole, combined with the
judgement associated with determining the fair
valua,

The Group's investment properties comprise
various categories of properties, the most
significant being completed developments,
developments under construction and
development rights. The models used to
determine the fair values for each of the
categories differ due to the different nature of
each of these categories. The Group uses
indepandent valuers to determine the fair values
for all of the properties held in these categories
annually,

The inpuls with the most significant impact on
these valuations are disclosed in Mote 5, and
inciude future cash fliows and market-related cash
flows, discount rates, reversionary cap rates and
the timing of development plans {in respect of
development rights).

The determination of the underying development
rights value within the Waterfall development
requires special consideration as it is highly
complex, The developmeant rights value is largely
baszad on the valuation of the underlying lease of
the land whereby the lease payments are
contingent and determined at a rate of 6% of the
nel lease income which is turn is caloulated with
reference lo predetermined formulae. Furthermore
the treatment of the lease and determination of
the development rights value is multifaceted from
an IFRS parspeactive.

We assessed the competance, capabilities and
objectivity of the Directors’ independent valuers,
and verified their qualifications. In addition. we
discussed the scope of their work with
management and reviewed theair tarms of
engagement to determine that there were no
matters that affected their independence and
objectivity or imposed scope limitations upon
them. We confirmed that the approaches they
used are consistent with IFRS and industry
nNoma.

We made use of our independent external expert

to evaluate the Directors and their valuers’

judgements, in particular:

+  The models used by the Directors and their
independent valuers; and

» The significant assumptions including
discount rates, reversionary cap rates and the
timing of development plans.

Cwr independent external expert compared these
inputs to market data and entity-specific historical
infarmation to confirm the appropriateness of
these judgements.

We performed a sensitivity analyses on the
significant assumptions to evaluate the extent of
impacl on the fair values and assessed the
appropriatensss of the Group’s disclosures
ralating o these sensitivities.

Furthermeore, wa tested a selection of dala inpuls
underpinning tha invastment propery valuation,
including rental income, tenancy schedules,
capital expenditure details, acquisition cost
schedules and sguare meter details, against
appropriate supporting documentation, (0 assess
the accuracy, refiability and completeness thereof,

We interrogated the accounting treatment of the
development rights and land from an IFRS
perspective. Our audit procedures focused on
testing the estimated lzase Income and payments
through comparison to agreements, business
plans and historical performance, where available.

We found that the models used for the various
property categories were gppropriate and the
discount rates were comparabla to the market.
Both the reversionary cap rates and the timing of
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Key Audit Matter How ocur audit addressed the key audit matter

development plans appeared reasonable, The
treatment of the underlying development rights
and land was appropriate and the valuation of the.
land and development rights was accurate. The
treatment of the finance leass for the Waterfall
development rights was also found 1o be

appropriata,

The disclosures partaining the investrment
property and related finance leases were found to
be appropriate and comprehensive in the
consolidated and separate financial statements.

There are various complexities relating to the
treatment and recognition of deferred taxation, in
particular the rate at which deferred taxation is
calculated in respect of investment properties is
dependent on the estimated manner in which the
timing differences will be realised, which is
subjective (disclozed in notes 1 and 11).

As a result, deferred taxation is considered a key
audit matter due to the judgement arising from the
considerations relating to the calculation and
recognition of deferred tax balances and the
materiality of the balances in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

‘Restructire ofirights and/arrangements’inrespect of Attacqg Waterfall Investment Company

Our procedures focused on evaluating the
Directors’ determination of the estimated manner
in which the timing differences would be realised
by comparing this to evidence obtained in respect
of other areas of the audll, such as business
plans, cash flow forecasts, minutes of Directors'
meatings and our knowledge of the business.

We assessed the presentation and disclosure in
respect of tax-related balances in the consclidated
and separate financial statements and considerad
whether the disclosures reflecled the risks
inherent in the accounting for the {ax balances.

We concurred with the Directors' determination of
the estimated manner in which timing differences
will be realised. The disclosure was found to be
appropriate.

‘Proprietary Limited {(“AWIC?)

Az disclosed in notes 2, 5 and 8, the Group
restructured the arrangements with Atterbury
Property Holdings Proprigtary Limited {"APH"), in
respect of the investment in AWIC, which in turn
holds the exclusive rights to develop the
commearcial, retail properties and a seiection of
residential properties in Waterfall City. The
restructuring of the arrangements resulted in a
sequence of transactions involving complex
accounting treatments and tax implications, giving
fise to the Group holding a 100% interest in
AWIC, with an undivided share in the Mall of
Africa of B0%,; 20% of the Mall of Africa is owned
by APH. Since this transaction is highly complex
and material to the Group, it is considered to be a
key audit matter.

We inspected alf contracts concluded in respect of
the restructuring to oblain an in-depth
understanding of the sequence of transactions
and evaluated the appropriatenass of the
business rationale.

We evaluated each of the transactions and
considered the sultability of the accounting
treatment in accordance with IFRS, including
racalculating the amounts to be recorded. We also
assessed the overall presentation and disclosure
of the restructuring in the consolidated and
separate financial statements. We determined that
the Group had complied with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act of South Africa.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

'Restructure of Grou

Az disclosed in the report by the Audit and Risk
Committes, the Group restructured and simplified
their group structure and disposeditransferred
various investments within the Group, the most
significant the transfer of the Glentair Boulevard
shopping centre by Attacg Limited to Lynnwood
Eridge Office Park Proprietary Limited ("LBOP™)
and Garden Route Mall from Mantrablox
Proprigtary Limited ("Mantrablox™ (o Attacy Retail
Fund Proprietary Limited ("ARF7). LBOP,
Mantrahbiox and ARF are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Attacg Limited.

These transactions involve complex tax
considerations which are material to the Group
and therefore it is considered a key audit matter.

The Group obfained a tax opinion on the
treatment of these transactions from its tax
advisor.

ransfer of Glenfair B uulevard shopping centre snd G arden Route Mall

We evaluated the lax consequences of each of
the transactions and reviewed the tax opinicn
obtained by the Group from its tax advisor. We
consulted with our internal tax specialists to
determine that the treatment was appropriate.

We concurred with the accounting and tax
treatment of the transactions and found the
disclosures in the consolidated and separate
financial statements 1o be balanced.

We inspected the contracts concluded in respect
of the restructuring to obtain an in-depth
understanding of the accounting and tax
consaequences, and evaluated the
appropriatenass of the business rationale.

We determined whether the tax treatment of each
af the transactions was appropriate by evaluating
the opinion that the Group obtained from their tax
advisors and concurring the same with our
internal tax specialists. Furhermore, we consulted
with our intemal accounting specialist to establish
the suitability of the accounting treatment of the
transactions.

Ve concurred with the treatment of the
transactions in the consolidated and separate
financial statements. The disclosure of these
transactlions was found to be adequate.

: ﬁéﬂ'@glﬁﬁﬁn*ﬁf.ﬂ.. inancial:asset for Karoo purchase price ‘adjustment

In the prior year Attacqg Limited sold its shares in
Karoo Investment Fund 5.C A SICAV-S

{"Karoo ") and Karoo Investment Fund [ S.C.A
SICAV-S ("Karoo 11" to MAS Real Estate Inc
("MAS") at a dizcount to the net asset value on the
cendition that the purchase price will be adjusted
by issuing additional MAS shares to Attacq should
certain conditions be met.

The purchase price adjustment will patentially
result in the investmant in MAS to increass to
approximately 49%. The Directors considerad
whether they should consolidate the results of
MAS as opposed to recognising it as an
associated company.

As disclosed in note 13, Aftacg Limited

Wae inspected the contract for the sale of the
Karoo | and Karoo Il investments and evaluated
the Directors’ assessment as to whether an asset
should be recognised. We recalculated the asset
with reference to the contract.

We also considered the Directors’ conclusion and
rationale for not consolidating MAS and to this
end studied the Memorandum of Incorporation of
MAS.

Wa concurred with the conclusions to recognise a
financial asset and not to consolldate MAS. The
disclosure in the consolidated and separate
financial staterments relating to the judgements
applied is considered to be appropriate.
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Howour audit addressed the key audit matter

Key Audit Matter

recognised a fimnancial asset to the value of
R352.4 million being the purchase price
adjustment. MAS is accounted for as an
associated company as the Directors concluded
that Aftacq does not have de facto control over
MAS. The rationale for this decislon is disclosed in
nofe 2,

Significant judgement was required by the
Directors in determining the appropriate
accounting treatmeant of the asset and investment
i MAS, resulting in this being considered a key
audit matter.

\Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Gaoodwill and other intangible assets arise as a
resull of acquisitions by the Greup. The Directors
conducted their annual Impairment lest o assess
the recoverability of the goodwill and consider
whatheer there are indicators of impairment with
respect to other intangible assets. In order to
establish whether an impairment exists, fair value
less costs to sell or the value in use is determined
and compared to the net book value of the
goodwill and other intangible assets.

As detailed in note 2, this determination of an
impairment is highly subjective as significant
judgement is required by the Directors in
determining the fair value less costs to sell or the
value in use as approprigte, The valus in uss is
based on the cash flow forecast model for each
cash genarating unit and requires the estimation
of model assumptions, most importantly the
discount rate and growth rate. Accordingly, due to
the high estimation uncertainty, the impaiment
assesament of these assets is considerad o be a
key audit matter.

A R102.7 millicn impairmeant of the goodwill
attributable to the acquisifion of Micauwber 382
Proprietary Limited was accounted for in the
statement of comprehensive income (disclosed in
note 7). There were no impairments recognised
with respeet Lo the other elements of goodwill and
the ather intangible assets,

We focused our testing of the impairment of
goodwill and other intangible assels on the key
assumptions made by the Directors. Qur audit
procaedures included;

¢ Critically evalusting the determination of the
cash generating units;

+  Evaluating whather the mode| used to
calculate the fair value less costs to sell and
value in use of the individual cash generating
units compiies with tha requirements of 145
36: Impairment of Assels,

+ “alidating the assumptions applied and inputs
in the respective madels by comparing it to
historical information and approved budgets;
and

« Subjecting the key assumplions to sensitivity
dnalyses.

Cwerall, we found the models and assumptions
applied in the goodwill impairment assessments to
he appropriate and concur with the Direciors’
decision to impair the goodwill balance that
priginated as a result of the acquisition of
Micauwber 382 Proprietary Limited. On the other
hand, the assumptions and inputs used in the
impairment modeld for the Wi-Fi rights were found
to be fairly optimistic,

We considerad the disclosure of the goodwill and
other intangible assets to be appropriate for
purposes of the consolidated and separate
financial statements.
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Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors'
Report, Audit and Risk Committee's Report and Company Secratary's Certificate, as required by the
Companias Act of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report and the integrated
report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. The other information does not include
the consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does nol cover the ather information and
we do nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstatad,

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we oblained prior ta the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the integrated report, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstaternent thersin, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Auwdit and Risk Committee and consider whether a Repaortable
Irmegularity exists in terms of the Auditing Professions Act, which must be reported to the Independent
Regulatary Board for Auditors. We have nothing to repord in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accoerdance with International Financial Reporing Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or emar,

In preparing the consclidated and separate financial statements, the Direclors are responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
fo cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated and separate financial
staternents as a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance iz a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in sccordance with 154 will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
bagis of these consolidated financial stalements

As part of an audit in accordance with [SA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
seepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financizl
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud iz higher than for one resulting from
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error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal contral.

= Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audl in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's intemal control.

= Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and Lhe reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures mada by the Directors,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ahility to continue as a going concern. I we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's reporl. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group o cease o
continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
reprasent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence ragarding the financial information of the entities or business
aclivities within the Group fo express an cpinion on the consolidated and separate financlal statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Committes regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audil and significant zudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal cantral
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Commiitee with a statement that we have complied with the relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and othar
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Fram the matiers communicated with the Audit and Risk Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the cumrent period
and are therefore the key audit matters.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Zuleka Jasper,

Delott + Toy cle

Deloitte & Touche
Registerad Auditars
Per: Zuleka Jaspar
Partner

18 September 2015
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To the shareholders

The Group's Audit and Risk Committes (“the Committee”) is a committee of the Board of Directors |“the
Board”). The activities of the Committee are determined by its terms of reference as approved by the Board,
its statutory respensibilities as per the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (as amended] (“the Companies Act™) and the
listing requirements of the Johannesburg Stock Exchange ("ISE") (as amended).

The purpose of the Committee is to provide the Board and the shareholders of Attacq Limited (“Attacg”), with
sufficient assurance that their interests are protected in respect of internal controls and financial reporting. As
such, the Committee has a responsibility to ensure that the Group has effective systems in place to ensure
adherence with good governance principles as defined in the King Report of Governance for South Africa, 2008
[“King Il code®); and that effective mechanisms are in place to ensure that risks are being managed and that
the Group is aware of |ts legal and regulatory commitments.

& key role of the Committee is to ensure that systems and processes are in place to ensure that assets and
lizbilities are recorded accurately and fairly, in accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards
["IFRS"}. In compliance with this responsibility, the Group has implemented an internal control framewaork, an
internal audit function, regular interaction with the external auditor and regular reporting against budgets,
forecasts and prior year results.

The gevernance of risk remains a key priority for the Board and the Committes, The Board is ultimately
responsible for managing risk and has delegated oversight responsibility for risk management to the
Committee. Management in turn is responsible for the design, implementation and the management of risk,

The risk management policy and framework has been implemented and tested at a halding company level and
is in the process of being rolled out to the rest of the Group.

The Committee has agreed to extend the external and internal audit contracts with Deloitte and PwC,
respectively, for a further one year period.

The Committee has recommended to the Board the approval of the annual finanelal statements and the
Integrated Report for the year ended 30 June 2015,

0n behglf of the Committes

S
5 Shaw!Tayidr

Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson
1E September 2015
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The Board has formally delegated certain duties, responsibilities and powers to the Committee through an
approved Audit and Risk Committee terms of reference. The Committes acts on behalf of the Board and the
matters reviewed and managed by the Committee remains the responsibility of the Board taken as a whole.

Role of the Committes
The specific roles and responsibilities of the Committee include, but are not limited to, the following:

& Providing the Board with additional assurance regarding the efficacy and reliabifity of the financial
infarmation used by the directors to assist them in the discharge of their duties;

»  The appointment of the internal and external auditors;

Reviewing interim and annual financial statements and the Integrated Report;

s Oyerseeing the internal audit function;

*  Overseeing the refationship with the external auditor;

*  Reviewing the expertice and gualifications of the finance function;

#  Ensuring that significant business, financial and other risks have been identified and are being suitably
managed;

# Ensuring good standards of governance, reporting and compliance are in operation, including the
monitaring of adherence to applicable |egislation, including but not limited to the Companies Act,
2008, the Income Tax Act 1962, the Value-added Tax Act, 1991 and other applicahle tax legislation:
and

# Effective and timely implementation of corrective actions to address any risk management

deficiencies.
MMembership of the Committes

As at the date of this report, the Committee comprised of four independent non-executive directors appointed
by the Remuneration and Nominations Committee, All members of the Committee are suitably skilled and
experienced in the following areas:

¢ financial and sustainability reporting;

= ipternal financial controls;

*  external audit process;

* internal audit process;

o corporate law;

= risk management;

s sustainability issues;

+ information technology governance as it relates to integrated reporting; and
®  povernance processes within the Group.

Members and attendance of the Committes are included in the table below:

'_H!EIITPEFL Status Attendance
Stewart Shaw-Taylor (Chairperson) Independent non-executive director E-;".d_“_m"_
Hellen El Haimer Independent non-executive director a/a

Lebo Masekela * Independent non-executive director 2/2

Keneilwe Moloko ** Independent non-executive director 1/2

Wilhelm Mauta  **= Independent non-executive director a4

Motes:

* Lebo Masekela resigned as an independent non—executive director effective 30 November 2014.
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** Keneilwe Moloko - appointed as independent non-executive director effective 2 February 2015,
*EEWilhelm Mauta - status changed from non-executive director to independent non-executive director

effective 1 July 2015.

Activities of the Committee during the year

The Commitiee has an annual work plan developed fram its terms of reference. Flowing from that there are
standing items which are considered at each Committee meeting. This is an addition to matters srising from
time to time and topical items which might be of concern to the Committee,

During the 2015 financial year, the Committee focused on three principle areas which are summarised bealow:

Risk and internal controls

External and internal audit

Participated in the annal risk
assessment process

Considered reports from internal
auditors on their assessment of
the internal controfl environment

Considered reports from external
auditors on their assessment of
the Internal contral environment

Considered output from the
annual risk assessment process as
identified and assessed by
management and members of the
Committee

Considered and interrogated on a
guarterly basis risk management
reports from the executives on
risk management activities and
improvement on the residual risk
ratings and risk mitigation
strategies

Assessed the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control
environment

Considered a comprehensive
analysis on the Group’s regulatory
campliance requirements
Considered and recommended
for approval improvement of the
risk management framewaork

.Eonsidered am‘:!_"arpuproved the

extension of the appointiment of
the external auditor

Considered and approved the
audit approsch and scope of audit
work to be undertaken by the
external auditor, including the
ralated fees

Considered the independence of
the external auditor and their
effectiveness, taking into account
non-audit services undertaken by
the external auditor and
compliance with policy
Considered and approved the
extension of the contract with the
outsourced internal auditors

Considered and approved the
annual risk-based internal audit
scope and budget

Considered the level of alignment
between the Group's key risks
and the internal audit programme

Accounting, Tax and Financial

_Reporting

Reviewed and approved the
interim and annual financial
statements and significant
financial reporting judgements
Considered the salvency and
liquidity of the Group for the basis
of recommending the Group's
interim and annual results to the
Board for approval

Reviewed the related disclosures
in the annual financial statements

Considered capital management
and gearing ratios

Reviewed and approved
disclosures in the Integrated
Report in refation to controls, risk
management, principal risks and
uncertainties and the work of the
Committes
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Significant matters identified and considered by the Committee

After discussions with management and the external auditor, the Committee determined that the key risks of

misstatements of the Group’s financial statements related to:

s Valuation of investment property;

o Deferred taxation;

s Restructure of rights and arrangements in respect of Attacq Waterfall Investment Proprietary Limited
(AWICT )

« Restructure of the Group: the internal transfer of Glenfair Boulevard Shopping Centre and Garden
Route Mall;

= Recogrition of a financial asset based on the purchase price adjustment on the Karoo Investment
Fund Il S.C.A SICAY-SIF ("Karoo™). Karoo is a specialised investment fund based in Luxembourg; and

& Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets.

The matters abowve were discussed during the yvear and principles and treatments agreed with management
and the external auditor.

Significant matters
Valuation of investment property

There is significant judgement by the Board in determining the fair value of investment property, however
management is supported by experienced independent valuers. To ensure that the methods used in valuing
properties are in line with Industry standards the Committee carefully considered the competence,
gualifications, capabilities and ohjectivity of the independent valuers.

Special consideration was given to the valuation of all properties in the Waterfall development. The valustion
in respect of Waterfall's vacant leasehold land and development rights is based on an external valuation
performed on a freehold basis by an independent waluer. The valuation is then adjusted downward by
management to take into account, inter alio, land currently held by way of development rights and the
estimated fuiure rental obligations attached to the leasehold land and developmeant rights.

Refer to the annual financial statements where the inputs with the most significant impact on valuations are
outlined.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is a focus area for management due to the complexities relating to the treatment and
recognition of deferred tax, in particular the rate at which deferred tax iz calculated in respect of investment
properties. The rate is dependent on the estimated manner in which the timing differences will be realised,

which is subjective,

After careful consideration the Committee supported the view of management in regard to the manner in
which timing differences will be realised and the rate at which deferrad tax is calculated.

Refer to the annual financial statements for the note on deferred tax.
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Restructure of rights and arrangements in respect of AWIC

As part of the Attacg Limited ("Attacq”) strategy to manage the entire Waterfall pipeling, Attacg became the
sole shareholder of AWIC during December 2014, As part of the negotiations, Attacq secured a pre-emptive
right in respect of all material developments to be undertaken by Atterbury Property Holdings Proprietary
Limited (“Atterbury™), thus ensuring Attacq’s continued access to Atterbury's development pipeline, Further
terms and conditions of the various agreements included certain amendments to Atterbury's exclusive rights
to act as Waterfall's developer, AWIC's disposal of 20% of the Mall of Africa shopping mall ("MOA") as well as
Attacq's reduction of its shareholding in Atterbury from 25% to 10%.

The Committee considered the complexity around the implementation of the various agreements and agreed

with management’s implementation.
Restructure of the Group: transfer of Glenfair Boulevard Shopping Centre and Garden Route Mall

In arder to implement the R3.2 billion refinance debt structure as well as to simplify the Group structure, twao
properties were transferred within the Group during the financial year, being transfer of Glenfair Boulevard
Shopping Centre by Aftacq to Lynnwood Bridge Office Park Proprietary Limited ("LBOP") and the transfer of
Garden Route Mall property from Mantrablox Proprietary Umited (“Mantrablox”) to Attacg Retail Fund
Proprietary Limited ("ARF"). With the exception of the Aurecon building (owned by Lynnaur Investments
Proprietary Limited — a wholly-owned subsidiary of Attacg Limited), LBOP s now the owner of all of the
Group’s properties in the Lynnwood Bridge Precinet.

The Committes interrogated management’s reasaning and procedures in implementing the transactions from
an IFRS, taxation and Companies Act perspective. In implementing the transactions, Management received
external legal, conveyancing and tax acvice and the Committee fully supports the implementation of the
restructure,

Recognition of a financial asset for Karoo purchase price adjustment

During the previpus financial year, Attacq realised a R&8.1 million loss on the disposal of the investment in
Karoo to MAS Real Estate Inc. (“MAS”) for a consideration of a further 23.4% shareholding in MAS. The
transaction was structured on the basis that Attacg will share in 2 percentage of the realised upside on the
Karoo assets directly by the way of a purchase price adjustment (“agterskot™) mechanism to be settled in MAS
shares.

In the current financial year management assessed the status of the transaction and concluded that MAS will
most likely issue additional MAS shares to Attacg following the increase in the Karoo share price, The financial
asset recognised by Attacg for the purchase price adjustment amounts ta R359 million. The purchase price
adjustment will potentially result in Attacg's investrment in MAS as at 30 June 2015 increasing from 45.3% to
approximately 49%.,

Management considered whether the financial results of MAS should be consolidated a: ocpposed to
accounted for as an associated company. To this end management considered the requirements of IFRS 10;
Consolidated Financial Statements and specifically the reguirements pertaining de facte control,

The Committee agreed with management on the conclusion that MAS should be accounted for as an
associated company as Attacq does not have de focto control aver MAS,
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Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

In preparation for the ISE listing during October 2013, Attacq internalised the property and asset manager
during the 2014 financial year for a purchase consideration of R271.1 million. The purchase consideration was
settled by way of a cash payment of R135.5 million and by the issue of 11.3 million new Attacy sharss issued
on 4 Cctober 2013, An intangible asset representing the right to the asset management of Attacg's properties
has been recognised and s amortised over a period of 15 years. The goodwill that arose from this purchase s
tested for a potential impalrment on an annual basls,

During the current financial year AWIC purchased certain Wi-Fi rights for a purchase consideration of BE0
millien and in addition purchased all the shareholding of Micawber 832 Proprietary Limited {"Micawber") for a
consideration of R475.2 million, The purchase price was in excess of the fair value of the identifiable net assets
and therefore resulted in poodwill to the value of R109.7 million.

Management conducted an impairment test to assess the recoverability of the various elements of goodwill
and considered whether there are indicators of impairment with respect to all intangible assets, As 3 result the
poodwill partaining the acquisitton of Micawber was impaired in full,

The Committee considered the goodwill and other intangible assets in the Group and determined that the
disclosure, assumplions and judgerments applied are appropriate.

Summary

After reviewing the presentations and reports from management, and consulting where necessary with the
external auditor, the Committee was satisfied that the financial statements zppropriately address the critical
judgements and key estimates pertaining the above matters, both in respect to amounts and disciosures, The
Committes was also satisfied that the significant assumptions used for determining the value of investment
properties, other investments, taxation, goodwill and other assets and liabilities have been appropriately
gxamined, guestioned and challenged. Mo materizl errors in the consolidated and separate financial
statements wera noted by the Committee,

Golng cancern

The Committes has considered and assessed the Group and company’s status as @ going concern operation in
the preparation of the annual financial statements. The Committee has reviewed the Group's cash flow
farecast for the 12 months ending 30 June 2016 In light af this review and the current financial position, the
Committee and Board are satisfied that the Group and company has access to adeguate resources 1o continue
in operational existence for the next 12 months, The annual financial statements and the Integrated Report
have been prepared on the going concern basis,

Internal Audit

Artacg maintains internal controls and systerns designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of the financial statements and to adequately protect, verify and maintain accountability for its
assets, These controls are implemented by trained individuals with segregated duties and responsibilities.
Since Attacg’s listing on the JSE on 14 October 2013, the Group has adopted a more formalised approach and
continues with the project of documenting processes and controfs with appropriate communication
throughout the Group,

Attacy has outsourced its internal audit function to PwC Internal Audit, 3 professional service provider,
ensuring that an independent strategically aligned function exists. The function is responsible for preparing
and implementing the internal audit plan over a three year rolling perind.. The Committee reviewed and
approved the plan incorperating the field work for the ensuing year. This internal audit function operates
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under the direction of the Committee, which has approved the scope of the work to be performed. Critical and
significant findings are reported to the Committee on at least a quarterly basis. Corrective action is taken to
address internal control deficiencies identified in the execution of work,

A risk-based internal audit plan was developed during the 2015 financial year. The resuits of the rick-based
audits were reported to the Commitiee. The Committee has evaluated the internal audit report, and has not
identified any material breakdowns in internal controls within the areas reviewed. Follow-up audits were also
conducted during the financial year and corrective actions reported to the Committee,

External Audit

Deloitte is the external auditor of Attacq and its major subsidiaries. The engagement partner on the audit is
Zuleka Jasper. During the year, Deloitte provided certain non-audit services, including a review on certain tax
matters and certain agreed upon procedures. The Committee is satisfied that the non-audit services provided
by Deloitte do not bring its independence into question.

The role of Committee with regards to the external audit is:

e Review of the independence of the external auditor including the pre-approval of non-audit services
provided;

= Approval of the audit budget for the year;

= Consider the annual audit planning, conclusions and final opinion reports:

«  Approval of audit engagement letters: and

¢ Review of management report itemns identifying effectiveness of controls and recommendations for

corrective action.

Internal Controls

To meet the Group's responsibility to provide reliable financial information, the Group maintains financial,
legal compliance and operational systems of internal control. These controls are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are concluded in accordance with management’s authority, are
properly authorised and recorded and that the assets are adequately protected against material losses,
unauthorised acquisition, use or disposal.

The systems include a documented organisational structure and division of responsibility, established policies
and procedures [which are communicated throughout the Group) and the careful selection, training and
development of people,

Risk Management

Effective risk management is an Integral part in ensuring that the Group’s strategic intent and growth targets
are met,

Attacg has implemented an enterprise risk management policy and framework which is reviewed, assessed
and amended, where applicable, by the Committee on a regular basis. The risk management policy and
framework outlines and prescribes the risk management process and is applicsble across the Group and its
subsidiaries. Attacg's risk management process s based on IS0 31000 risk management principles and
guidelines. Attacq applies a formal risk assessment process on an annusl basis and continuously identifies and
guantifies emerging risks to the Group. Residual risk is re-assessed on a guarterly basis to monitor
improvernent of the Group's cantrol environment,
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The Board takes ultimate responsibility for risk management and has delegated oversight responsitiifity to the
Committee. Management, as the implementers of strategy, has to ensure that that the Group has an effective
system to manage risk, and that effective and efficient risk mitigations are implemented. On a guarterly basis
management reports {0 the Committee to confirm that all potential and emerging risks have been identified
and recorded and furthermore that appropriate action has been taken to mitigate the risk to acceptable levels.

Risk management is a strategic partner for business ensuring that it not only protects value, but acks as an
enabler for business and growth. Management and the Committes are committed to continuously improving
the risk management process to ensure a risk resilient environment.

Attacg’s risk management policy and framework aims to:

e Setout governance and reles and responsibilities;

& Provide an overview of all risk management processes;

®  Define commaon risk management terminology;

& Clarify the risk management organisational structure, refated roles and responsibilities;

+  Provide guidance related to the key components of an effective risk management initistive,

* Provide a bespoke vet consistent approach to the application of risk management across the Group;
and

e [Ensure that the risk management function is integrated with the business planning processes.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Specific focus was placed on the risks in the table set out in the Risk Management section of the Integrated
Report,

Regulatory Compliance

Statutory and regulatory compliance is a standing item on the agenda for the Cammittee as well as for the
Transformation, Social and Ethics {"TSE™) Cormmittee and is addressed by the risk management function on a
guarterly basis in reports to both Committees.

The Committee oversees the compliance with accounting standards and financial reporting requirements,

The Board receives quarterly feedback from the Chairpersons of the Committee, the TSE Committes as well as
the Rermuneration and Mominations Committee.

The TSE Committes provides oversight znd ensures that the Group complies with the Code of Conduct and
Ethics, as well as legislation governing ethical conduct, This includes the implementation of an independent
Whistleblowing Hotline and ensuring that all employees were made aware of the availability of the Hotline.
Since implementation of the Hotling (1 November 2014) to the date hereof, no incident has been reported.

The compliance risk management process |5 facilitated by Attacg’s Head of Legal and her team and supported
by the risk management function from a menitoring and reporting perspective.

The legal and regulatory compliance process is defined in the risk management policy and framework. Attacg
has established its compliance requirements (both grescribed and voluntary) through a formal compliance risk
assessment process and applies the compliance risk management process as prescribed in the risk
managament policy and framework,
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A formal process is in place ensuring 8 mandatory authorisation process for dealings in Attacg's shares, formal
procedure for both acceptance and granting of gifts and inducements, disclosure of conflicts of interest, as
well as formal levels of authority and delegated sipning authorities for business transactions.

Far the current reporting period, Attacq has had no penalties or fines issued relating to non-compliances with
legal and regulatory requirements,
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Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Number: 1987 /006435/08)
Annual Firancial Statements for the year ended 30 Jure 2015

CERTIFICATE BY COMPANY SECRETARY

In tarms of Section BE(2 je) of the South African Companies Act, 71 of 2008 a5 amended ("the Act™), | declara, to the best of my knowledge thatl the Company bas
filed the necessary retyins and notices as required of & public company in terms of the Act, and that all such notices and returng are tnee, carrest and wp Lo date

IKodole

Tas)m Kodde
Company Secretary
18 September 2015



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
[Registration Mumber: 1957 /00054 3/06]
annuzl Flrancial Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2015

Directors’ Report

The directers have pleasure in subrmitting their snnuzl report for the year ended 30 lune 2015,

1 Natwre af busingss

Attacq Limnited ("Attacq”) carries on the business of a property halding, develgpment and investment group through the ownership of:

» directly ekl investment properties; end

= subsidiarics, associates and other investments with directly held investment prapertics and property investments

The business of the Groug s to invest in and develop groperties as long-term investments which ganerate quatity rentzal income and sustainatye capital growth for

its tharsholders

2 Internalisation of the asset manager

In order 1o internalise the asset manage mant function, Attacg acguired the entire issued share capital of Attacg Management Services Proprietary Limited (™~ AmS" )
[Formerly, Atterbury Asset Managers Proprietany Limited] from Atterbury Property Hokdings Propristary Limited and Attventure Proprietary Limitad duning the

pravicus financial year,

The abjectives of the intermalsation was to conform to market practice, to create synerghes between Attacy and the asset manager and (0 rermove sny potential

conflicss of interest between Attacg and the asset mansgear.

During the year, the benefits of the abovementioned internal=zation becama apparent, Synesgies were sreated betwean the twe formerly sepregated teams by
combining respensitlities. This resufted in vital information being readily available ta support & more efficsent rapid decision making process.

3 Authorised and issued share capital

During the year the oaly significant changes to the ioeed shares arose through the raising of REA0m through the lssue of 29 820 630 ordinary sharet at @ price of
R21.a0 pershare interms of a vendor consideration placing to partly fund the Attacg Waterfzll Investment Company Froprietany Limited (" SWH "] transaction as

annognced sn SENS on B Decernber 2014

A5 at 30 lune 2015, Attacq’s issued share capital comprised:

Total Issued shares TAT 422 TIT
Trezsury sharas {46427 553)
Earorbill Properties 91 Propretary Limited 16 #1037
Attacg Retail Fund Frogrietary Limited 29 726516
Wet issued shares TO0 995 224
4 [Hirectoss' Interect In Attacq shares A0 June 2015 30 June 2014
Name Direct indirect Total Direct Indirect Total
HH El Haimer - 3500 - - 7
PH Faure J31639 731638 - 1715674 1715674
I Hanmiman 60000 - B0 000 B0 000 - 000D
W Masekela® - - 24 820 3R 194 262 314
5 shaw-Taylor B500CD - G50 000 &80 000 . B50 000D
P Tredaims 27733 27 733 27733 7733
IHP van der berss B3L 4E1 G311 481 . 7033 8033
L5 van der Watt 12 543 543 12 B45 8317 7 1E2 16 598 667 16600951
BF wan Niekerk** - - 1R 288 307 I8 ZER 397
BAC Whilken BOE 263 505 263 2125 263 2135 263
Total 715784 14 B39 G59 15 555 443 837 109 35571 BBl 40 50E 965

* Resigned - 30 November 2014
** Resigned - 27 lune 2014

& Special resolutions passed by subsidiaries

The following companies amended thiicexisting Memarandum and Articles of Associstion and substituted it with the Memorandum of
Incorporation: These reselution were taken and signed on 18 March 2015,

» Adamax Property Projects Brooklyn Proprietary Limited
= Attacg Management Services Fropriezary Limlted

» Attacq Retail Fund Propristary Limited

Attacg Retall Services Proprietary Limitead

= Attacg Waterfall Investment Comgany Proprietary Lirbited

= Brookhn Bridge Office Park Propriefany Limited
= Mantrablos Proprietary Limited
= Nicawber 3332 Proprigtary Limited
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Directors’ Report

5

10

i1

Special resolutions passed by subsidiaries [eantinued)

Lynnwoed Bridge Ofice Park Proprietary Limited

+ The existing authorized ordinary share capital of the Compaimy consisting of 1 000 Ordinary pad value shares of A1 each be converted to 1000 no par valee
shares, each ranking pari pasay in all raspacts, The resclution was signed 18 December 2014,

+ Subject to the passing of special resolutions above, the authorised capital of the company, consisting of 1 000 ordinary ne par valus sharss be incregsed to 2 000
ordinary no par value shares, by the crestion of an additional 1 000 ordinary no par value shares, all shares ranking pari passu in ewery respact to the existing
shaves of the Company, The resolution was signed 18 Decambear 2014

Primoris Propvest 61 Proprietary Limited
+ The company change s name frem Primernis Propeest 61 Proprietary Limited to Attacq Sroup ESD Propriezary Limited. The resolution was signed 12 December
2014,
» The mam oiect and mgin business be changes to Gensral trading and activities relating to Enterprise and supplier develogmant. The resolution was signed 18
Dacamber 2014,

Inwestment property

Investment property Increased by 26.18% an grio year largely dus to the continued raliout of Waterfall, Sgditions to investment property totalled R2.56 billien,
comprising B2.11 hillion spent on properties ondes developmaent and R349 million on the acquisition of new developments. Fair value adjustments on knyestment
property amaounted (o R1-11 billion for this financial year,

Dizsposals

The following assets were disposod of during the year as part of Attecg's strategy of smplitying ts group structure:
= Part-disposal of stake in Atterbury Froperty Holdings Proprietary Umited {"APH"} and disposal of 20% undivided share in the Mail of Africa

As part of the AWIC restriecture, AWIC disposed of 2 20% undivided share in the Mall of Afica fer RI1E million to APH, whe prioe o the restructure beld an
127 /5% Indirect stake In the Mall of africa via their sharehelding in AWIC, This 1B, 775% was transforred from AWIC to APH,

I addition to tvis & further stake of 1.225% was sold from &WIC to APH. An amount is pavable to&tacg for the additions! 1.225% stake in the fdall of Africa
acquired. The ameunt payable & determined with reference to the market value of the mall ore year after its opening. In the current year, the amount
receivable and profit realised, taking imto aceount their present values and the stage of completion of the mall, hawe been recognised,

» Diposal of the Fountains Regionzl Mall,

* Dispos# of the Growp's entire 26 60% holding in Rapfund Holdings Progristary Limibed,

» Disgosdl of the Growp's entire 50% holding in Keysha Investments 123 #raprietary Limited to Valentla Properties Proprietary Limived for R14.9 millan.

» Disposal of the Growp's entire 50% holding in Aetall Africa Consortium Holdings Proprietany Limited to the Knuger Trust and the Pickard Truast in December 2014,
[tha company declared a dividend of R190 000 effectively clearing all the resarves before It was dicposed of for a neminal vafue of R3}.

Dividends
Mo dividenas were declared by Attacg during the current ard price firancisl vear,

Directors and board changes

P Trachouix Indegandent non-executive chalrman

MAC Wilkoen Chief Exacutive Officar

M Hamrman Chief Financial Officer

LLS wan der Watt Mon-executive director {Non-executive director from 1 [uly 2015]
AW Mauta Independent non-exedutive director (Independent Non-executive director Trom 1 July 2015)
JHFP van der Marwe Non-executive director

S Shaw-Taylor Independent ner-erecutive direstor

HE El Haimer Independent non-executive director

FH Faure Non-executive director

mAR du Tost Meoivpxacutive director

WL Masekela Indepandent non-esecutive director [Resigned 30 November 2014)
TIA Aeilly Non-executive director (Alternate to HP van der Merwel

KR Malnko Independent non-executive director |Appointed 2 February 2015)
BT Magie Non-gxecutive director (Appeinted 1 lely 2015)

Company Secretary

Attacg’s company secretary is Tasia Kodde,

Registered office: Att House, 2nd Floor, Maxwell Office Fark, Magwa Crescent West, Waterfall City, 2090
Postal addrass: PostMat suite 205, Frivate Bag X20009, Garsfonteln, 0042

Auditors

It will be proposed at the next annual general mesting chat Delaitte & Toudhe continue inoffice in accordanee with the Companies Act.
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Artacq Limited and its subsidiaries
|Registration Mumber: 1957, /000543,/06)

Annual Finencial Statements for the vear ended 30 lune 2015

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION GROUP COMPANY
Figures in R'DO0s Nota 2015 018 2015 2018
ASSETS
MOM-CLIRRENT A5ZETS
Progerty, plant and eguipment & 10641 11061 153 4531
IFivestment prapecty 5 16 187 ET3 13 825337 272761 585255
rer valuatian 1EET00TE 13 138 538 277458 &0K1 509
saraight-line l=ave gabtar {882 195} 308 604 (4 Taa) 15 258)
Straight-line lease dehtor 482 199 304501 4738 15284
Deferred initia lease expenditure 9154 714 1335 4 384
intangibip assets B 344 523 2184 Bl -
Goadwill 7 aF 7ra 62847 - -
Investient in associates a 4 369 5 2850274 2295197 2639482
Investment in sebsidiaries 49 - 5 782 571 d 100 561
Other muestrments bl 402 414 Sy red 334 108 454 435
Dheferred tas assets il 19 g9 11570 = .
Loans to subsidiares 15 . - 414 77 -
Orther financial dsiets 13 0% H3 . 07 *
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19997 289 165 580 440 2157 338 TEBMM 313
CURREMT ALSETS
Taxation recesvahle 408 L0k -
Trarn and other receivabiles 12 233 0e4 167302 8702 e
Othar financial assets i3 any2ez B173 402 517 B 502
Lans Lo associates 14 141037 FTLE3S 104 840 ZBB Dii
Loans bo Subtidiaries 15 - - 5-_35? 50 3612 055
Cash and cazh equivalernts 16 747 145 3E9 793 259 097 116 653
TOTAL CUARENT ASSETS 2 618 956 1335 600 4143 ME 4132159
Hon-current assets hald for sale &7 B84 441 13E BdE 187 258 I3 BA6
TOTAL ASSETS 23 300 6B1 1E 454 BE6 13 488 242 12 085 118
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
ECIUITY
Stated Capival 18 £430418 5 7R EEY 5812 505 S1m1930
Avallzbla-for-sale resaree B2 575 EZ 746 3058760 25HTME
Distributale reserves 4 515 584 3 B36 830 2 200 337 1483 361
Share-baved payment reserve 15 40 359 B1 347 40 355 #1317
Foreign currency translation sesarve A5 T4 112925 - -
Acquisinan of non-controfling interest resere (116 4E3) {2 574) - -
Equity attributable to ownars of the halding cormgpany 11457 158 54917 191 121614951 10 374 656
Feon-contralling interests 91 7252 214 567 =
TOTAL EGUITY 11 564 450 Ak 135 758 12 161 951 10 324 656
HON-CLURRENT LIABILITIES
Lang-term borrowings 20 B BG3 852 5226 121 335 G54 TILOBZ
Hher Fnancial habilities 13 28086 A8 DZE 3130 10158
Finsnce lease abligation 1 71346 A6 00 - -
Provisians for llabilitees relating ta assaciates L1579 & hag 1578 B
Dwferrad tax liabifties 11 1 365 368 SO0 851 738 730 537 818
TOTAL MOM-CLRRENT LLABILITIES 10330731 T3 511 1070235 1272902
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-tesm bomawings 20 A28 339 449 027 12 541 85204
Dther financal labilighes 1% 113258 5ESL 1128 5851
Finance lease obligation 21 1331 £ ¥ =
Laans from associates 14 magy 146078 - T2 440
Loans fram sibsidiaries 15 - 170 148 ZB6 ShY
Takation pavehle 10185 11154 G411 10 E20
Trade and other payables 2 H61 16 175 964 20 476 A6 518
ProwiEions 23 1453 10142 L E
Bank overdrafy 15 19 349 - 15 384 .
TOTAL CURRENT LIARILITIES 1005 500 1088 217 256 056 457 764
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11336231 B33gaize 1326 M1 17062
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 23 300 681 LB 464 BE6 13488 243 12 095 318
_—
Het aiset value per share |cenis) 1706 1437 14627 1434
Het assed value per share - excluding deferred tax feents) 1898 1610 1726 L1513
Mumber af shares in issue JO0995 234 LI 9RY 504 TAT 422 777 717393 147




Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
sRegstration Mumber: 1957/0805430E)
annual Fmancial Statesments for the vear anded 35 June 2014

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

GROUP COMPANY
INCOME
Mot

Figures in R000s s 2015 2014 2005 2014
Gross revenug 113120935 BTG ESD &0 912 3900

Rental incorme 1140335 Teb 185 T1418 &E 940

Straipht-line lebse income sdjustment 172 600 1T 652 {10 516 (3040]
Froperty expensas (358 BAS) (2300 300 |17 652} 142 184|
Met rental inceme 354 050 E4E S50 4% 260 41716
Profit from sale of inventary - 41332 ] -

Sale of imeentony - 263 20% - -

Costof sales - (ZTLETT) - -
Bargzm purchase on acguisition of subsidiary a2 % 43178 5 =
Crther innome 24 205 590 5% 325 B 193 119 322
Diperating and ather sxpenses 14 (305 559} (353 743) (g Gie) (551 910y
Operating prafit {loss) 854 051 507 247 (104 372} (350 872]
Amortisation of intangible asiat N0 3] 14 §34) - -
Fair value adjustmerts 1114724 4h3 192 26 05 LEE]

Inuestmant praperty 5 1110711 F1% 054 21 B30 |5 290

Other financial assets i3 68 0BG 30058 4 156 & a5

Other inwestrmants 10 B2 576| = r =
G dloss| an available-for-sale financial asse1s - 05 B4 |7 d24aj
Het income [kass) from assocates g 50 548 | 58 164 = v
Ineastrment inpome 15 14z 531 474 796 #30 357 9518
Finange costs M [GBS B72| 1582 122) (76 T24) [223 263)
Profit before tanation 1485 108 1230 &30 H_T!ﬂi o7 o¥e
Incame tax espense Fi 471 0aE| [21E 156] (155 B&S5) 55 892

Current tax |75 183) (6% S08) (66952 {50 B65)

Daferred tax 306 155] (148 G4 188 903) 107 457
FProfit fur the year 584 161 1012 254 Ti7 968 154 870
Aptribitable o

Chwners of tho boiding company A7E 651 G4 147 T17 966 154 470

Kgn-contraliing interasts 5 507 66 107 - -
Dther camprebensive income
ttemes that will be reclassifled subsequentty to profit or loss
Gain on avadable-far-sale financial assess 661 986 1604 Gl T 155 1508123
Taxation relaling bo commponents of ather comprehensive incamse 7 {63 153] 121 E04) {139 858) {Ere oy
Azalisation of available-for-sale finangial assers = - {38 545) TARA
Dther comprehensive intarme for the year net of tanstion 288 833 B3 746 471 712 12372490
Total comprehensive income for the yoar 1 582 994 1095 000 11B8 678 1 352 160
Attributabde 1a:

Lrwners of the holding company L5337 487 133 833 - -

regn-ppnirolling mierests 5507 a6 107 - -

1583994 1096 000 - -

Eamings per share

Basat {cents| 28 1424 1634 =

Diluted |cents) 28 14211 163.1 -
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Attacqg Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Number- 19%7/000543/05)

fnneal Financial Ssatemants fos the year ended 30 fune 2015

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS GROUP COMPANY

Figures in R'00s Hote 2015 2014 2015 014

Cash Aow fram operating activities

Cazh generated from (utilsed in} coerations ol 650 572 LOE (45 4 788 138 270y
Interest income 25 96 242 % 5EL 32697 1% 108
Disidends income a5 23431 356 2712 IG5 67E 549 Jea
Finarca costs 26 (E27a02) (582 122) 63 357 {223 263}
Taxateon paid 75 768} (60 208} [58 251) |56 447
Met cash generated fraom operating activities &6 575 TG B1E 301515 401 334
Cash flows from investing activities

Expendituce Io maiminii operohing copacity

Praceads from disposa! of investmens propertkes 5 = 25 7ES . -
Fraperty, plant and equipment acquired a {3 bE6) (B 545} {504] 14 70a)
Expenaitvre toexpand openoting comacity

Subsadianes acguined &z {1 em| [£18 128 {54 986} (554 15|
Investment properties acquired 5 (2 353 04T {2 148 N15) (18 245) (21 254)
Asiociates acouired a - {2156 823 . (2156 B21)
Asiociates disposed 235035 - 235 035 -
Cithar investrments acgulred i} . 1347 258) - 271 0ET;
rthar investments disposed 10 110383 43 803 110353 -
Orther loans {repaid] raised (155 234) 41 156 1069

Agditions ta intangidde assels {20000} -

Additiars o deferred Initial lease adjustrments {2 784} -

Cash flow refating to non-current assets held far salo 138 B4 A57 &24 -138 846 A0 673
Mot cash (utilisad in) penerated fram investing activities {2182 147] {3 970 95%) 411 608 [2013 103)
Cash fiows from finencing activities

Lapital rassod 13 m_i_'-"ﬁ 35417 &40 575 33386 169
Share uy-back 18 ] (182 243) - (282 244
Long-tenm borawings ramed ] docadas 13947 100 = 540 408
Lorg-term barrawings repaéd mn (L DE3 BRI (344 7h0] |3B5-463) [B3F F85)
Loars fram assaciatas repald] raises 14 1175 0a0| 245 030 - 144 724
Livars repaid (advanced] 0 Group companiss 14 20 [LE (330 a82] (922 557| {1037 8ai)
Other financial zssets ralsed 13 = . {5800
Other financial labdites repaid 13 - |138405) (20 583) 5
Orther financial liabilites raived 13 aT 528 11179 - 3117
Cash flow relating to non-cwrent assets hefd For sale s {34E 573) = (233 428]
et cash generated from [utiised In) financing sctivities 2453 GB4 3 81 402 {690 028) 1878310
Total ash meverment for the year 338112 35 960 FEN I H 266341
Cash at the baginnng of the year IES 144 44 389 216 653 (49 B38)
Cash acguired with subsidiaries 5.2 90 187 5 . -
Cash and cash equivalents at tha end af the year 727 166 B2 294 139 748 G653
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Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
|Repistration Number: 1997/ 000543/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L1

1.2

13

131

132

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Group and Company Arnual Financial Staterments as at and for the year ended 30 June 2045 have been prepared undear the supe rdision of M Hamman [£a)]
58, Chief Financial Officer ("CFCT | of Attaca Limited ("Attacy™]. The principal sccounting policies of the Attacg and 15 subsidieres ["the Group”) as well as the
disclosuras made in the Annual Finandal Ssatamants comply with International Financial Repooting Standards 1"IFH5":I as wiued by the Internaticnal AcLounting
Standards Board ["1458°] and International Financizl Reporting Interpretations Committes {“IFRICT] interpretations effective tor the Group's tinancial year as well
as the RAICA Financial Reporting Guidelines as isswed by the Accounting Practices Committes and the Financial Reperting Pronconcements as issued by the

Finangial Aeporting $tardards Council and the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the J5E Listings Requiremants,
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Annizl Financial Statements have been prepsred on the historicsl cost bisls, except for investment properties wihich are measured at fsic value and finzncial
instruments which are measered at fair value or at armortised cost. The Annual Financial Statements sre propared on the going concedn basis. The Annyal
Financeal Staterments are presented in South African Rard, which is the parent company's functional and presentation currency,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with (FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. |t akso requires management to exercise
it judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting polices. The areas Involving 8 higher degree of judgement or compdexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the company and Group Annual Finencial 3tatements, are disciozed In note 2.

The sigrificant accounting pabcies are consistent In all material respects with those applied in the previous financlal year. No restatement was required in these
firancial stataments with respect b the adoption of new and rewvised standands and intergetations,

COMNSOLIDATION
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated Annual Financial Statements Incorporate the Annual Financeal Statements of Attacg Uimited, its subsidiaries, joint arrangemeant and associates
("the Growp") up to 30 June 2015,

The Consolidated Annual Financial Statements present the consoblidasted financial position and changes therein, operating results and cash Bow Information.

where necessary, adiustroents are made to the linancial statements of sussigiarios, associates, joint ventares and joint arrangements to bring the aceounting
policies used in line with those used by the Group,

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acguisitions of businesses are actounted for using the acguisition mathod. The consideration transferred in 3 business combinations is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acguisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Grouwp, labilities incurred by the Growp to the former owners of
the acguiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchenge for control of the acqulree. Acquisition-refated costs are generakly recognised in profit and
Inss &8 incwrred.

The acquires's ientifiable assats, llabilities and contingent liabilities that maat the congitions Tor recognition under IFRS 3 Business Combinglions are recognised
at their fair valwas a1 the acquisition date, except for:

= deferred tax 2ssets or lizblities, and assets or liabilites related to employes benefit arrangemants are recopnized and measured in accordance with 45 120

tacome Tawes and §AS 15 Emplaoyee denafits , respectively;

liabllies or equity Instruments related oo share-based payment arrangements of the acquires or share-based payments arrangements in the Group encered

Into to replace share-based payment arrangemants of the acquiree are measured In accordance with IFRS 20 Share-based Payment at the ecquisition date;

* non-curcent assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sode ond Discontinged
Operations , which are recognised and measured at fair value bess costs 1o sell

Goodwill is measured a3 the edcess of the suimn of the considesation wansderred, the ameunt of any non-cont=alling interests in the aoquinee ang 1he faie value of

anfumed,

When the consideration transferred by the Group in 2 business combination includes assets or labilities resulting trom a contingent consideration arrangemant,
the contingent cansideration is measured at its acguisibon-date fair value and included a5 part of the coasideration transferrod in a business combination.
Changes in the fair walve of the contingent consideration that gualify a5 messurement period adjustrments are adjusted prospectively, with corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ |which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acguisition date.

Cantingent consldaration classifled as an asset ar labllity that is a financlal Instremeant and waithin the scope of 145 39; finagncial Instruments: #ecogalfion ond
Mensurement or Y 37 Provisions, Contingent Linbilities angd Contingent Assets, s measurad at fair value with changes in fair value recognised sither in profit or
loss or s a charge to ather comprehansive income. IF the cantingent consideration is not within this soope, it s measured in accordance with the appropeiate
IFRS. Contingent consideration that & classified as eguity i3 not rermeadered and subseguent settlement is accounted for within eguity.



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Mumber: 1997/000543,/06)
Annual Financal Statements for the year ended 30 lune 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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133

CONSOLIDATION [continuad )

Compoanents of non-controlling interests that are curmert cwnership interases and entitle their holders to a proporionate share of the acquires’s net assets in tha
ewert of liguidation are measured at the acquisition date at sithar:

® Fair valus; of
* The non-controliing interest’s proparionate share of the acquiree’s identifiabie net assets.

When & Business comblnation is achieved in stages, the Group's prewiously hadd equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-dats Fsir value and
the rasufting gain or less, i any, & recognised In profit or loss. Amounts arising from interest in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have bees
recognised In other cornprehensive incomea are raclassified 1o peafit or loss where such trestment would be appropriate if thit interest were disposed of.

If the Initial accounting for & busineds combinations is incomplete by the end of the reparting periad In which the combination ocours, the Groug reports
proviional amaunts for tha [tern for which the accounting & incomplete. Those provisianal amounts are adjusted during the measurement perlod, ar additianal
asiets of liabilities are recogniced, to reflect mew information cbtained abowt facts and cieumstances that existed at the scquistion date that, I known, weuld
have affected the amounts recognised at that date,

ACCOUNTING FOR SUBSIDIARIES

£ sulsidiany 5 an entity controlled by the Group, Contral i achieved where the Group has zll of the following;

* Power owver the investes;
* Exposure, or rights, to variable returns feom its involvernent with the investee; and
* The ability to use ts power te affedt its returns,

The Grodep considhrs all relevant facts and clroemstances in assessing whathar it has power over an Investiee and re-sssasses whather or net it contrals an
imesster if facts and circumstances indicace that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of eontrol

When the Group has fess than & majosity of the voting rights of an investee, It has the power over the instes whan the voting rights are sufficient to gve it the
practical ability to direct the retewant activities of the invesiae unilateratly. The Group considers all relevant facts and cirosmstances in assessing whether or not
the Groug's voting rights in an frvestee are sufficient to glve it power, Including Hut not limited to:

* thesize of the Group's holding of veting rights relative to the size and dispersion of tha holdings of the gther vote hodders;

= potential voting rights held by the Group, other vorz halders of other parses;

+ fights arising from other contractual aivangemeants; and

= any sdditianal facts and circuristances that indicate that the Group has, or does nat have, the current ability to direct the ralevant activitios at the time that
decisions need 1o ke made, including voting patterns at the previous shareholders meetings

Consalidation of 2 subsidiary begine when the Group obtaing eontrel over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses rontrel of the subsidiary. & change in
the ownership interest of 2 subsidiary, without 2 loss of contred, is accounted for as an eguity transaction. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired of dispesed of during the year are Included in the statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control untl the date the Groug
ceases to cpntral the subsadiary.

Profit of koss and esch component of arhet cormprebensive income are attributable to the cwners of the Group and to non-controlling interests.. Totsl
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is atteibutable to the owners of the Group and to the son-controlling interests even i this results in 1the nea-contraling
imterosts having a deficit balance.

All inter-company transaclions and balances, income and expenses are sliminated in fell on conselidation. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prapared for the same regarting period 35 the parent company, USIng eonsistant accounting policies.

Separate disclosure is made of non-controlling Interests where the Groug's investment is less than 100%. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of thess
interests at the date of the original buskness combination and the allocsted share of changes In equity since the date of the combinztion. Total compreheniive
nenme within g subsidiary Is attrisuted to the nan-contrelling intersst even if it resuits in a deflct baiance.

When the Groug leses control of 3 subsidiary, 3 galn or l0ss i5 recegnised in profit or loss and is caloulatad as the difference between;

* the aggregate of the falr value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and
= the prevlous casrying amount of the assets (including goodwlll) and liabilities of subsidiary and @y non-controlling Interest.

All amouni: previcushy recognised in other comprehensave income In celation to that sehsidiary are accounted for as if the Groug had directly dispoced of tha
related assets or [iabilities of the subsidiary {i.e. reclassified to grofit or loss o transferred to another tategory of equity as spesified or permitted by applicable
IFR&s]).

The fair value of any mwestment retained in the former subsidiary 21 the date when contrel is lost is regarded as the fair value on the initial recogniton for
subsequent accounting wnder $A% 25: Fiagnciol instruments: Recogaitian ond Measurement , when apolicable, the cast on the inftal recognition of n investmen)
nan associake or & joint vantura.

27
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INVESTMENTS I ASSOCIATES AND I0INT VENTURES

An gssociate is an entity over which the Groug has significant infleence. Significant influencs is the power o garticipate in the financial and aperating golicy
decisions of the investes but is not contral or joint contrel oeer those poficies

& joind venture i5 a joint arrangement whereby the parties that hawve joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangements
Joint conirol is the contractually apreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only whan decisions sbout the relevant activities reguire unanimous
consant of the parties sharing control.

Investments in assockates and foint ventures are accounted for using the eguity method, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, |s classified as held
for sale, in which case it s accounted for in accordance with JFRS 50 Non-cwrrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations . Under the aquity method,
investmants in associates and joint ventures ane caried in the consalidated stabemant of Tinancial position at oost adjusted Tor post Fequisition changes in the
Group's share of net assols of the associate, fess any impairment lossey

Losses in an associate and joint ventures in excess of the Group’s interast in that associate are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred a legsl
or constructive cbligation to make payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment 0 an assocate ar @ joint venture is accountad for wsing the eguity method from the date on which the Investee becomes an assoclate or a joint
venture. On acguisition of the investmant In an assockate or Joint venture, ary excess of the cost of the invastment aver the Group's share of the net fair valee of
the identifiable assets and llanalivies of the investee 5 recognised a5 goodwill, which is included within the carrging amounts af the investrment, Gay excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifabde assets and Tabilities over the cost of the imvestment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profin
or [oss i th period inwhich the investrment i acguired.

This regquirements of IAS 33 Fnanciad nstrements: Recognition and Measurement are applisd 10 determine whether it i necessany 1o recognise any impairment
loss with respect 1o the Groug’s investment in an associste or a joint venture, When necessary, the entive cannying amount of the investment {inclading goodwil)
is tested or impairment in accordance with $45 36 impairment of Assefs as & single asset by comparing its recoverable amount {the higher of value in use and tair
value less costs to sell] with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carmang amount of the investrnant. Any reversal of that
impairmant loss is recopnised in accordance with (45 36; Impoirment of Asseis to the extent that the recoversble amount of the investment subsequently
Increaseas

The Group continees the use of the egulty method whan an nvestmen) in an asscciate becomes an imvestment in a joint venture and yice versa. Thase is no
ramedsurerent Lo Tair valug upon Such change in awneship inferests,

W tha Group redyces ity cwngrship interest in an sssoiate or @ joint ventere ot the Group contimges to use the sgquity method, the Group reclssities to
profit or logs the proportion of the gain or loss that had previousty been recognised in other comprehensive incorne felating to that reduction in ownership
interest it that gain or loss would e reclassified to profit or foss on the disposal of the refated assets and Habitities,

The Group discontinueas the use of the eguity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment is
classified as held for sale. When the Groug retains an interest in the farmer assocate or joint venture and the retained interest & a financial asset, the Group
measuras the retained interast at the fair value at the date and the fair value & regardad as its fair value on the initial recognition in accordance with (A% 39
Financial nstrements: Recogmition ond Measuremeant ,

The differensce Detween the carrying amount of the ascociate or joint venture at the date the eguity method was disgontinued, and the fair vadee of any retained
Enterest and gy proceeds from disposing of @ part interest in the associate o joint venture i included in e deteomination of the gain o ss on dispusal of the
assnciate or joinl venture

In addition, the Groug acoounts for all amounts previoushy mecpgnised i gther comprehensive income in relation (o that associste or joint venture on the same
rasis a3 would be required i that associzte or jnint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or libilities. Theretore, if 2 gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprebensive income by thet associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the relsted assets or
liabilities, the Group raclassifies the gain or loss from eguity to profit or loss {as a reclassification adjustment] when the eguity methed is discontineed.

when a Group entity transacts with an astociate of joint wenture of the Group, profits and losses resulting fram the transactions with the associate or joint
wenture ae recognised [n e Group's consofidated annual financlal statersents only to the extent of interests in the associate or jonl venture that are not
redated ko the Group.

INTEREST IN IOINT OPERATIONS
& joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have ioing control of the arrengement fave fglts ta the assets, and ohbligations of the Tabilities,
relating to the arangement, faint cantrnlis the contractually agreed sharing of condrol of &n arrangement, wiieh seiste only when decisions about the relevant

attivities raguire the unanirmous consent of the parties sharing control,

The Group has various undivided share in investmant properties which are being treated as joint operations, hence only the Group's parcentage share in the
property is included in the consolidated resufts. Refer 1o the segmental reporting in mote 38 for the Groups undivided shares im investrnent properties.
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1.6

INTEREST IM FCHNT OPERATIONS (continuad]

When o Groug entity underiakes |5 acihvities under joint operations, the Group 25 3 foint operator racognlses in relation to its intarect ina Jolnt cperation:
* its assets, Intluding its share of any assets held jointly;

* lts Wabilties, incuding its share of any labilities incurred jointly,

* s revenud, including it share of revenue arising from the sala of the autput arising from the joint operation; and

¢ fs expenses, Including its share of sny expenses incurred jointhy.

The Group sccounts for assets, liabilives, revenue and expenses relating to its interast ie a joint operation in accordance with the (FRss applicabla to tha
particular assets, |akilities, revenues and expenses.

When a Group entity transacts with a jolat eperstian inwhich 2 Group entity 5 3 joint operator (such as # sale or contribition of assers), tha Group is considerad
to b2 conducting the transection with the ather parties to the joint aperation, and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are recognisad In the Geoup's
conselidated finandal statements ooly fo the extent to other parties’ interests in the joint operazion.

When a Group entity transacrs with a joint cperabon in wnich 8 Group entity is 3 joint operator (such as 4 purchase of assets), the Group does nol recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets 10 a third party,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Groug measures finarcial Instrurments, such as, derivatives and certals investients and investment properties at faic walue at gach reporting date.

Fair vahug 15 the prce that would be received to sell zn assel or paid to transfer a liability in an erderly transaction Setwesn market partizipants at the
migasurement date, The fair value measurement is based on thie pressumption that the transaction to sell the atset or transfer the liability tekes place either;

* |nthe principal market for the assat or liakility; o
= lathe absence of a principal markat, in the most advantageous market for the assot or liability

Thi principal or the mast @dvantageows markst must be accessible oy the Group,

The tair value of an asset or a lability 5 measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or Hability, assuming that
markat participants act in their econamic best interest, & fair value measuremant of & non-financial asset takes into zccount & market particpant's ability 1o
Benarate eoonomic benefits by using the asset In its highest snd best use or by selling it to arother market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

Fair walue 1or mezsurement andfor disciesure purposes in these finzncial statements & determined on the zhove basis, exlept for share-basad payment
transactions that are within the scope of JFRS 2; Shore-based Payment , leasing transactions that are within the scope of M5 17 Leoses, and the measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as vaiue in use in 45 36 Impairment of Assefs

The Groug uses valuation techniques that are appropriae In tha circumstances and for which sufficiant data is available 1o measure tair value, manimislag the use
of retevant nbservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All sssets and liabilities Tor which fair value is measured or disclosed n the fingncial stztements are categerised within the fair value hierarchy, descriced as
fodlows, based on the lowest level input that s significant 1o the fair value measurement as & whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markats for identical asseds or |iabilities; or
* Lewel 2 — Vatustion technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremant is directly or indirectly observable, o
¢ Lavel 3 = Valuation techniguees for whick the loweast level input that is signifizant to the fair value measurement is unohservable,

Refer to fair value measurement in note 3% for the categorisation of the Group's financial assats and liabilities within tha fair valuz hlasarchy.

For assets and Rabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on & tecurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have ocourred
Between the Levels in the hiararchy by re-assessing categorisation [based an the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value messuremant as 3 whale) ai
the end of each reporting periad.

For the purposs of falr value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabifites on the basis of the nature, charactaristics and risks of the et
or liability and the fevel of the fair vatue hiararchy 25 explained aboye.
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GOODWILL

Goodwill #rsing an an acquisition of a business is carmied at cost 25 astablished at the date of acquisivion of the businass less accumulated impairment losses,
any.

Goodwill is measured as the axcess of the sum of the consweration transferred, the emount of any nen-contralling interest in the acguiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer's previcusly held squity interest in the acgquiree [if any} over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifizble assets acquired and the
iz bilities ssswrmed,

If, after reassessment, the nat of the scquisition-gate amounts of the identifiabie assets acquired and the Gabslities assumed exceods the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controfling interest in the acquires, and the tair value of the scquiver’s previously held eguity interest in the

gcguiree (if any), the excess 5 recognsed immediately in profit or loss as 3 bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill i initially recognised ag an assel a1 oosl and is subsequéantly measured at oost less any socumwlated impalrment losses. For the purpose of iImpzairment
testing, goodwill is allocated 1o sach of the Group's cavh-generating units expected o benefit from the synergies of the combination

#i cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated s tested for impairment annuably, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unt may
be iImpaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocatad first to reduce
the carrylng amaount of any goodwlll allacated to the unit and then to the ather assets of the unit pro-rata on the basls of the carmying amount of each asset in the
unit. An impairment ke recogeised for goodwill s net reversed in a subseguent periad.

On disposal of the relevant cash-genarzting unit, the attributabde amount of gocodwifl ks inciuded in the detarmination of the profit or loss on dispesal.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties are properties held o oeam restals andfor capital appreciation, including developrient rights, infrastructure and senvices and
devalaprments pnder construction For such purposes.

‘Where 3 property is under construction with the purpose of holding the completad property for long-term rental vields andlor for capital appreciation, such
property is classified as developments under construction.

Inwestrment property s recognized as an asset when, and only when, it i= probzblz that the future economic benefits that are associated with the imestmant
progerty will fiow 1o the enterprise and the cost of 1the investrment property can be measured rellably.

Initial measurement

Imeestment property is inftially recognised at cost, including traraaction costs. Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently 1o add to, or
1o replace a part of, or senvice 3 property. H a seplacement part i recognissd in the carrying amaunt of the investment propaty, the carrying amaunt of the
replaced part is derecognised, Maintenance and repairs, which neither materially add to the value of the properties nor proleng theis wselful lives, ase charged
against profit or loss.

Tenant Installations are cost paid by the lessor on bahalf of the lassee on sienature of the lease agreemant for cost spent by the fedsor to ensure the buildings is
in the condition suttabke for the lease. Tenent mstallations on the first lease are capitalised against the development, while tenant installations on subsegquent
leases signed are caphtalised and expensed through the statements of comprehensive income over the inigal lease pericd, whera such tenant installations will not
e recoverad through a lump sum or through rental aver the Initial lease perlod.

Subseguent measurement

Subsequent to Initial measurement, Investment prapertbes are measurad and recognised at falr value

Where an investment property & ender constrection, Fair valie ls measured and recogrised as the present value of the anticipated fair value of the Investrnent
progerty on compietion and determined wirh referance to the stage of complation of the investment property.

I the fair value of an investment property wnder construction is not determinabbe, it measured at oost untl the earlier of the date it becomes determinable or
construction is complate,

A gain orloss arising from a change in fair value is included in net profit or loss dor the percod inowhich it ariseas.
Perecognition
An Inuvestrment property 1s derecognised upon Jisposal or when the invastment property i permanently withdrawn from use and ne future econemic benefits

are expectad from the disposal. Any gain or loss 2rising on Serecognition of the property (caloulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amaunt of the zssat) is included in profit or toss in which the investment property is derecognised.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQLIPMENT

Froperty, plant and equipment is carried a1 cost less accumulated depreciation and ary impaimment losses, Depreciption is provided on all property, plant and
equlpment to write down the cost, less residual value, using the straipht-line method of depraciation. aver the iterns' estimated useful Hves.

It & the podicy of the Group to write down items of property, plam and eguipmant with a cost less Than R7.500 in full during the year the asset qualifies for
reCognition in terms of 145 16 Property, plant and eguipment, to align with tha relevant tax awtheities.

The sssets’ residual values and useful Ives are seviewed, and sdiusted if appropriate, annually, An asset's ca rying arncunt % wittben down immadiately to s
recoverable amewnl if its carrying amount i greater that it's estimated recoverable smount,

INTAMGIBLE ASSETS
Intangitle assats with finite weeful lives ara stated at cogt, s accumulated smortisation and accumulated impairment losses, i any.

Amortisation s recagnised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated wetul life, and commences whan the Intangibie assat s avallable for e
and ceases at the varlier of the date the asset i classifiod a5 held for sate or the date it is dereeognisad,

useful lives and amartization methods are reviewed on an annual basks, with the offect of #ny changes In estimate accounted for on 2 prospective basis

The Group’s intangible assets with finite wsetel Ives are as follows:

* Management contracts; and
» Wi-Fi Rights,

The difference betwean the procesds and the carrying amount of an intangible asset is recognised as the profit or lass on disposal.

Intangible assets acquired in o business combination and recogrised separately from goodwill are initally recognesed &t their fair value at the scquisizion date
(which is regarded as their cost)

Subsequant to initial recogrition, intangible assets acquired in @ business combinalion are reported at cost less accumulaled amortisation and accumulates
impalrrent losses, Amortisation [ recogaised on a streight-ine basls over the estimated useful lives. The estirmated useful lives and amortization rmethed an
revlewed al the end of each reparting pariod, with the effect of any changes accounted foron 8 prospective basis.

An intangitle asset i derecognised on disposal, or when ro future economic benefits are expected fram use of dispesal, Gains or losses wrising from the
derecognition of an Intangitile asset, measurad as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assers, are recopnised in
prafit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Initial recognition ond measurement

The Group classilies finsncial instruments, or their companant parts, on inlsal recognition @5 @ financial asset, @ financial liability or an eguity Instrument in
accordance wilh Lhe substznce of the cantractusd arrangament. Financizl instrurments ane recognised inltally when the Groug becomes 5 party to the contractuat
provisions of the instruments.

Financiaf asyets and liabillties are recognised initially at fair value. in the case of financial 2ssats or labilities net classified at fir value through grofit and loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributatle to the acquisition or scue of the finandal instruments are added 1o the %ir value,

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the followlng specilied catesories:

* Fair walue threugh profic or loss ("FYTPL) - Thiese include financial assets held for trading and financial z2ssets designated upon initial recognition at fair valye
through profit or Ioss. Hnancal assets are classified as hald for trading I they are acquired for the purpese of seiling o repurchasing in the naar term; e én
initia| recognition it is part of a portiolio of identified financial Instrurments that the Group manages topether and has a recent actual pattern of shart-term
profit-taking; or itis a derivative that is not desipnated and effective ag a hesging instrument.

* Loans and recelvables - These are non-derivative financial assers with fixed or determirable payments that are not quoted in an scove market,

Lwalkable-for-sale - These include squity imvestments and debt securities. Equity irvestments classified 23 avallabie-far-sale are thase that are neither
elassifiedd as held for trading nor designated at fair value through prafit or |6ss, Debt securities are thoss that are intended to be heid for an indefinite pericd
of time and that may ba seld for Hquidity needs orin responss to changes in market conditions, The Group holds no debt securties classified as available-for-
sala

*
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1.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)
Finantial assets {continued)

The classification depends on the sature and purgose of the financial assets and is determined at the tirme of initial recognition. A0 Bnancial assels are initially
recognised at falr value plus transaction costs, except far financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss which are measured at fair value

Subsequent measurement
Financial assety are subsequently measured agcording 1o their categony classification:

v FVTPL - These are held at fair value and any adjustments to fair value are iecognised in grofit or loss. Listed investrents are carried at market value, which is
caloulsted by reference to stock exchange quoted selling prices at the close of business on the reportin g date,

+ Loans and recesvables - Thesa are hald at amortised cost using the effective interast rate mechod less any imgairment losses recognised to reflect
Irrecowverable amounts. Amortised cost is caloulated consigdering any discount or premium on aoguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. amortisation Is recognised in Investmeant income in profit or loss. Impalrment losses on loans are recognised in finance costs and
impairment lnsses an receivables are recognised in "Dperating expenses’ in profit o loss.

= fvzllab’e-for-sala - These are held at fairvalue and any adjustment o fair value |s recognised as other comprehensive income as 3 non-distibutable reserve
until the investmeant is derecognised, at which fme the cumu lative gain or loss (s recognised in profit or loss. Where the investment is determined to be

impalred, the cumulative galn or Iess is reclassified to profiv or loss.

Burchases or sabes of linancial assets that reguire delivery of assels within a time frame established by regulation or consentian In the market placa [regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits o purchaseor soil the asset,

Derecognition

A financlal asset Is derecopniced whan the rights to receive cash flows have aexpired or the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset, or
has assumed an obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without materizl oelay to the third party (where the Group has transfarred the nisk and rewsrds
of the asset or has transferred cantrol of the asset).

Financial liabilities and equity

A eruity isstrament s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after geducting all of its llabilicies, Equity instrurnents lssued by a
Geroup entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of diresl issee costs.

Repurchase of the Company's cwn equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. Mo gain or loss is recognised i profit or boss on the purchase,
sale, issue ar cancallation of the Company's own equity instrumants,

Financlal Habilities are classifiad according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the detinitions of a Brancal Bability and an eguity
Instrument.

Financial labilities are classifled into the following specified categorles:

* FVTPL - These include financial liabifities held for trading and financiaf liabilities designated upan initial recognition at fair vatue through proficor loss. Financlak
Eabilitios are classified as bedd for boding if they are scquired for the purpase of sefling or repurchasing in the near term; on initizl recognition it s part of a
portfolio ot identified fina ncial restroments that the Groep manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or Itis & derivative
that is not designated and eHective as a badging instrurment

o Linbilities at amorised cost - Thess are non-gervative financial Habilities with fiked or determinable payments that are not quaoted in an active market.

The classification depends an the natwre and purpase af the financial Tabillties and s determined at the tirme of Initlal recognition. All financial liabllities are
initially recognised at fair value and, in the case of liabitities atamortised eost, net of directly artribatable fransaction costs,

Subsequent measurement
Firangial liahifities are subseguently measared aocnrding Lo thair category classification:
* FWTPL - Fair vlue gains and basses on labilities at faic valoe through prefit or loss are recognised in prefit arioss,
+ Liakalities at amaortised cost - These are held at smortised cost using the effective interest rate method, Amortised cost is caloulated considering any discouns

or premium on scquisition and fees or costs thatare snintegral part ol the effective inlerest rote. Amortisation cosls are recognseed i finance Co508 in crofil
or lass.
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1.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)
Fimancial liabilities and equity {continued)
Derecognition
A financial Hability is derscognised when the abligation under the llability is discharged or cancelled, or expires, Gains are recognised In seofil of loss when the
llzbllity is derecopnisad, When an existing financia! Fability Is replaced by another fram the same lender an substantially different terms, o the terms of 30

2xisting tahility is substantizlly modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the derecognition of the criginal lizbility #nd the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respestive carndng amounts is recagnised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantes controcts

A financial guatentae contract ls 2 contract that requires the sseer o make specified payments 1o reirbuese the holder for & loss it incurs because 3 specified
debro fails to make payments whien guee in accordance with the teqns of 3 debt instrument.

Financia! guzrantee contracts issued by 3 Group entity are initizlly measured at thais fair values and, if not designated as at FYTRL, are subsequently meazarad at
the higher of:

+ Theamount of the obligation urder the contract; as determined naceordance with a8 37 Frovigions, Contingent Liobilites and Contingent Assets ; and
* The amount initially recognised less, where apgropiate, cumuslative amaortisation recognised in accordance with 1he revenue recogn ition pollcles,
Effective interest rate method

This i a method of calowlating the amortisad cost of a financial asset and of sllocating interest income over the relevant pariad. The effective interest rate is the
rage that exgctly discounts estimated future cash recelpts thiough the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropelate, 2 shorter period.

Income is recogrilsed on an effective interest basis far debit instruments other than those financial assets designated as at FVTRL,
Significant financial instruments

Loans to {fram) Group companies

These inglude [oans to and/or fram holding oo mpanies, fellow subsidiaries, subsidiarias, |oint ventures and associates and are recognised initally at fair value plus
direct sransaction costs.

Loans bo Group companies are classified as loans and receivables.

Loans from Growp companies ara classfied as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Loagns to shareholders, directors, manogers and smployees

Thece financial assats are classified a4 loans and recanvables.

Trode ond other recalvables

Trade recewables are initially measurad at falr value and are subsequently measured at amortises cost using the effactive inferest rate method, Appropriase
allowances for estimated frracoverable amounts are recogeised in profit or loss when there is abjective evidence that the asset is Impaired, significant financial
difficulties of the detitor, probisbility that the dabitor will enter bankniptoy or financial recrganisation, and defzult or delinquendy in paymerts ars considersd
indicatars that the trade receivatle is impalred. The alipwance recognised 5 maasured s the difference betwean the asset's CArTying amount and the present
walua of estimated futwre cash flows discountsd at the offective interest rate computed ot initial recognition.

Trads and other payables

Trady payablas ars inlzially reeasured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the eHective interast rate methoe.

Cosh ond cosh equivalents

Cash znd cazh equivalerns comprisa cash on hand, demand deposits, end other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily cormvertible to a knawn
amount of cagh and are subject to 2n inslgnificant sk of changes invalue. These ars Initlzlly and subsequently recorded at fair value.

Bank overdraft and borrowings

Bank owerdratts and borrowengs are inially measured st cost and are subsequently measured at amartisad cost using the effective interast rate mathod. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the serllement o redemption of bormowings i recognised over the tarm of the borrowings in
accortnce with the Groug’s accounting palicy for borrowing costs.
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The Group snters inta a varety of derivative financial instruments to manage Its exposure tointarest rate, including interast rate swaps:

Dervatives are initially recogrised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts sre entered into and are subseguently remeasured to thelr fair value at the
and of each reporting period. Thae resufting gain or loss is recognised {n profit or less immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in grofit o loss depends on the natureof the hedge relaticnehip,

TAXATION
Taxatlon expenses
Incoame taxaticn expense reprasents the sum of the taxstion currently payable and deferred taxation,

Current and deferred taxation are recognised as an iIncome or an expensa and included in profit or loss for the year, exoept to the extent that the taxation arises
from:

= i transacton or event wiich i recognised, in the sarme or & different period, (o other somprebensive income, o
* i business combination,

Currant taxation and deferrad taxation are charped or credited to other comprehensive income it the takation relates to items that are credited or charged, in
the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income,

Current taxation and geferred taxation are charged or credited directly to equity if the @xation relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or 2
different periad, dirsctly In agquity.

Current taxakion

Cufrent taxation is based on tasable protit for the year, Taxable prafit differs froa “profit belore taxation” as repered in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because of itarms of incormie or expense that ame taable o deductibie inather years and items (nat are nevers taxable or
deductible. The Group's current taxation & calculated using taxation rates (and taxation laws) thit kave been enacted or sabstanzively enacted by 1The end of the
reparting period,

Current taxation for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recopnised as a liability, IF the amount already paid m respect of cursent ang prior periods
exceeds the amount due fior those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Deferred tanation

Deferred Limadion is accounted foe wsing the lability method in respect of temparary differences arsing betdwean the carrying amounts of assets and Hablities in
the fimanciisl statemaents and the corresponding baxation bases used in the computation of taxabbe proefit

Dreterred taxation labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deterrad taxation assets are recognised for all dedoctible temporasy differences,
and the carry forward of unused taxation credits and any unused taxation lossas to the extent that it s probasle that taxabie profit will be available aganst which
these can be utilised. Deferred taxation assets and labilities are not recopnised if the temporary ditference arises from goodwill or frem the initial recognitien
{athar than in @ business combination} of other assets and liatilities, which affects neither the taxation profit nor the acoounting profit at the time of the
transaction.

Defarrad taxation Nabllities are recognised for takable temporary differences aricing on Investrments In subsidiaries end associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary differeace and It |s probable that the temporany difference will not reverse In the
foreseeable futare. o respecy of dadectible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarias, assoclates and interssts in Joint venturas, deferred
samation ssaets are recognised cnly to the extent that it is probable that the temporgany differences will reverse In the foreseeable future and tasable profit will be
available sgairat which the ternposany differanops can be wtifised.

The carrying amount of geferred taxation assets s raviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suticient taxable
profits will be available to allow atl or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred taxation assets are reessessed st each reporting date and are
recognised to the extant that it has become probable that future taxable profies will aliow the deferred taxation assetto be recoverad.

Deferred takalion & calculated at the taxation rates [and taxation taws) that are expected to apply 1o the period when the asset i reglised or the liabiliy settled,
using tasation rates and Laxation laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the regarting date. Deferred tasation Is recognised n profit or loss,
encepl when it celaties toiterms credited o charged 10 other comprehensive ineome or directly to equity, in which case the deferred tasation is recognised In
gither other compeehensive income or directly in eguityraspotively.

For the purposes of measuring deferred takation lizbifities and deferred tasation assets For investment progerties that are measured using the Fair value medel,
the carmying-amounts of such properties are presumed 1o be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption i rebutted, The presempticn is rebutted
when the investmant property is deprecisble and is held within a busingss model whese objective is Lo consume subslantially all of the sconomic berefits
embodied in the investment property cver time, rather than through saks
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LERSES

Tre getermination of whether an arrangement is, or containg, a lease is based on the substance of the arrgngament at the (nception date. The arrimgement i
Assessied for whather fulfilment of the arrangement is depandent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a Fight 1o use the asset ar
assets; even if that right is not explicitty s pecified in 20 arrangemeant.

Leases are classified a4 fimance leases whenever the terms of the lease teansfer substantially all the risks and rewarsds of memership ko the lessee, All other leases
are classified a5 operiting leases,

Assels held under finance leases are cagiralised an their fair value at the inception of the f2ase or, if lower, 91 the present walue of the minimum lease payments,
The corresponding liakility to the lesser, net of finence charges, i indudad In the statement of finandal position as a finance laase obligation, Lease payments are
dpportioned betwesn finance chiarges and reduction of the lease obligation so.as to achitve a constant rate of intarest on the remaining balance of the liability
Finance charges are charged 1o profit or loss.

Imvestmant property held under a lease accounted Tor as a finance lease is recognized inftially at the present value of the minimum |ease payments under the
lzase and thereatter in terms of the fair value methodology applicable to investment properny as per note 1.8,

A leased. asset ks cepreciatec over the uselul fite of the asset, unless it Is carrled ar fair abue: However, if thare is no ressonable cerzainty that the Group will
obtain ownership by the and of the lease term, the gsset is depraciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and The fease term,

Rentals payable under operating leases 2re charged to proflt or dpss on @ straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, Contingent rental costs are
axpensed wha ninourred,

MON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Men-current assets and dispesal Groups are clagsified as beld for sale f thelr carrying amount will be recevered principslly through a sale transaction ratier than
through continuing usa. This condition is regarded as mat only when the sale s highty probable and the asset {or dispozal group! is availzbie for immediate sale in
its prasent condition. Management must be committed o the sale which shocld be expected to qualify for recognition s 3 completad szle within ane yaar from
the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to 8 sale plan imvolving loss of control of & subsidiary, all of the assets and lablitles of that subsidiany dre classified s hatd for sale
when the criteria describied ahowve are met, regardiess of whether the Sroup will retzin 3 non-controlling interast in its former subsidiany after the sale,

wWhen the Group is committen to a sale plan invohing dispesal of an investrent, or @ portion of an imvestmant, in an assotiate or joint ventura, the investmeant or
the poetion of the investment that will be disposed of is cassified as held for sale when the criterls describied above are met, and the Group discontinees the use
of the equity method in relation to te pedion that s classified a held for sale. Any retained portion of an investment in an assoclate or 3 joint ventyre that has
not beer dassified as held for sale continues to be accosnted for wsing the equity method, The Group discontinues the use of the equity methard at the sime of
disposal when the disposal resufts in the Group losing sigaificant influence ouer the assccisle of joint venture,

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for 2ny retaingd interest in the associate or [oint venture in agcosdance with (45 39: Fingnoa! instruments:
Recognition ad Megsurement unless the ratained interest continues to be an associate or 2 joint venture, In which casa the Groug uses the souity method (see
the arcownting policy regarding investments o assaciales ar joint venturas above).

Nen-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lawer of their previaus carrving amount and fair value Bess coses ta sell
Fresperty, plant and equipment are net depreciated once cizssified as held for sale.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Group assesses al each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that &n asset may be impaired. If any such indicetion exists, the com parny
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irraspective of whether there is any indication of impaiement, the Groep alsa;

* testsintangible assets not yet available for use for impairmant annuzlly by comparing 48 carrying amount with its recoverable ameunt. This impair ment test is
performed during the annual period and at the same time every perod; and
= tests goodwill acgquired in a business combination for Impalrment annually,

If there s any Indication thit an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individuat @sset If it & not possible to estimate the
recoverabie amount of the indvidual asset, the recoverable amount of the tazh-generating unit to which the asset belengs 5 determined

The recoveralite amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value iess costs to sell and its value in use,

It the racoverable amount of an aseet i less than ity carrying amount, the carnying amount of the asset i reduced to its recovarable amount. That reduction is an
imgakrment loss,
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IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS [continued)

An impairmeant foss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amorntisation Is recognised mmediately in profit or fose, Any impairment loss of
arevalued asset is rreated as @ revaluation decrease.

The Growp assesses a1 each reporting date whethers there is any indication that-an impairment loss recognised in prior pesiods for assets ather than goodwill may
nex longer #xET Or may have decreased. It ary such indication exists, the recoverable amaunts of thase astels are estimated.

The inereased carrying emount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to 8 reversal of an impairment loss cennot exceed tha carrying amoust that weoueld
hawa been determined had no impalrment toss been recognised for the asset in prior parlods

A reversal of an Impairment {oss of assets carvied at cost bess accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill 5 recognised immediately in profit or
lass. Ay reversal of an impairment koss af a revabued assel & treated a3 a reversal af impairment,

SEHARE CAPITAL AND ECLITY

If the company reacquires its cwn equity instruments, the consideration gaid, including any directly attributaiie incrernental costs (net of income taxes] on those
instruments are deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled or reicsusd. Mo gain or loss is recognisad in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the company’s own equity instruments. Conskderation paid or recelved shali be recognised directly in equity.

Tha trarsaction costs of an equity transaction are sccountad for a5 o deduction from equity bo the extent they are incremantal costs divectly attributabyle oo the
eguity transaction that otherwise would have been avoidad.

FROVISIONS

Frovisions are recognised when!

+ the Groap has a present obligation as o result of a past evans;
o b ig protable that an outflow of resaurees embodying econarmic beretits will be reguired to settle the obligation; and
= i reliahle estimate can e made of the obligation,

The amount of & provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be reguired to settla the obligation.

Prowicions are nat recognised far future operating lossas.

If an entity has a contract that Is anerous, the present abligation undar the contract shall o2 recognised and Mmeasured as a provision,
REVEMUE

Revenue is measured ot the fair value of the consideration received or réceivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the
rioeeal course of business, net of trade discaunts and volume rebates, and value added tax,

Revitol income

Rental incoms includes all recoveries from tenants, excloding Value Added Tax. Rentzl income exdudes tenant security deposits which represent financal
advancas made by tenants as guaranteas during the lease and are repayable by the Group upan termination of the lease contracts,

Rental income receivable s recognised on 2 stralght-line basis ower the term of the lease. Directly attributable lease Incentives are recognised within rental
income on the same basis.

Contingent rents, belng those lease payments that are not flxed at the Inception of a lease, for example Increases ansing on rent reviews or rentals linked to
tenant revenues, ate recorded 28 income in the periods in which they are earned. Rent reviews are recognlsed as Income from the date of the rent review, based
an management’s estimates. Estimares are dedved from knowledee of market rents for comparable progerties determined on an indwidual property basis and
updated for progress of negatiptions.

Service charge income is recognised. on an accruals basis in ling with the service being provided

As cpecified in the lease agreements, the Groug has the primary responsibifity for providing services to tenants (electricity, water and gas utilities, interor and
exterior cheaning, security, maintenance, repairs, etc). The Group negoetiates directly with the suppliers all contracts for services provided to tenants. Thase
contracts are concluded between the Group subsidiaries which own the properties and the dizect supplier,

Revenue from a contract 10 provide sendices is recognised by referance to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion of the contract is
determined as fol lows:

= |nstaflation faas are recognised by refarence to the stage of completion of the installation, determined as the proportion of the total ime expected to install
that has elapsed at the and of the regorting period;

= sen/icing fees included in the price of products sold are recognised by reference to the proportion of the totzl cost of providing the servicing for the product
sold; and

= revenue from time and material contracts is recognisad at the contractual rates as labour hours and direct expenses are sncurred.
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REVENUE (continued)

Iterest income

Interest s recognised, in grofit or loss, using the effactive |aterast rate method,
Diwidend income

Divldend ingome from investments |s recognised when the sharaholder's right to recelve payment has been established {provided thar it & probable thar the
cecaomic benetits will flaw to the Greap and the armount of incoms can ba maasured reliably).

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly atzribetable to the sequisition, constraction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset
until such tirme as the asset is ready for s intendsd use, The armount of borrowing costs edigible for capitalisation i detarmined as follows:

* actual borrowing costs an funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of nhtaining a guealifying asset less any temporany investment of those Borowings; and
» weighted average of the borrowing costs spalicable to the antity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifing asset, The borrowing
oosts capitalised cannot excaed the total borrowing costs incurred,

The capitafisation of borrowing costs commences when:

o aypenditires for the asset have occurred;
* borrowing costs hiave been incurred; and
+ activities that are netessary to prepare the asset for its intended wse or sale are in progress.

Lapitalisation is swspended during extended parinds in which aotive development is interrupted.

Capnalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepars ehe qualifing assel for its intended use or sale are complete.
All other borrowing costs are recognised 3s an expense in the period in which they ane incurred,

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financal statements of each individual Groug entity, transzctions in currencees other than the estity's Tunctional currency (forelgn currencias)
arg recognised at the rates of exchange prevalling at the dates of the transactions. At the and of sach reporing pericd, monetary ltems denominated in forelgn
currgngies are retransiated at the sates prevailing st that date. Mon-monetary items carried at fair walue that are derominated in foreign currencies ane
refransiated st the rates prevailing ar the dite when the fair value was determined. Mon-manetany items that are measured in terms of histarical cost in 3 foreign
CUrrEnCy are not retransiated.

Exchange differences on manetary items are recognlsed in grafit ar lass in the period in which they anse except for;

» eachanpe differences on foreign currency Borsowings relating to assets uncer construction for futere productive use, which are incaded in the cost of thase
asyets whan they are regarded a5 an adjustment to interest costs onthose farelgn currency borrowings:

» exchange differances on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain fareign currency risks; and

exchange dfferences an manstary iterms recevable from or payabls to a fereign speration for which settiement & neither zlanned nor likely 1o ceon

{tnerefore forming part of the net investrment in the ferelgn operation], which are tecognised initially in other comprahensive Incame and reclassified trom

equity to grofit or loss on repeyment of the monetary [tems.

For the purposes of presenting these annual fingncial statements, the assets and labilities of the Group's forelgn operations are translated into Currency Units
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting pericd. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the penod,
unless eachiange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in witich case the exchange rates at the dates of the fransactions are used. Exchange differances
arising, it any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accurmulated in 2guity Jand attributed to non-contralling interests 95 3 pproprizte).

0 the disposal of & foreign cperation {ie. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a fareign operation, or @ ditposal involving loss of controf over & subsidiary
that inctudes & foreign cperation, or & partial disposal of an interast ina joint arrangement or an associste that includes & foreign operation of which Lhe retained
intarest becomes a financial asset), all of the axchange differences accumulagad |n equity In respect of thet cperation attributabie to the awners of the Company
are reclassified ro prafit or logs.

bn addition, in reladon toa partisl disposal of a subsiciary that includes a foreign nperstion that doss not result in the Groug lasing cortral aver the subsidiary,
the propertianate share of accumulated exchanga differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss, For all other
partial dispasais |ie. partial disposals of associates or jaint arrangements that doonot result in the Group kssing significant isfluence or joint control], tha
propartionate share of the accumulated exchenge differences is reclassified to profit or loss,

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and lablitles assumed through acguisition of 5 foraian operation are treated as asets and

lisbilites of the forefgn operatsan and translated at the rate of exchenge prevaling at the end of gach reporting perlod. Exchange differences arising are
recopnksed In othear com prehendien intome,
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Equity-settied share-based payments to employeas are measured at the fair welue of the equiy instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-sectled share-basad trarsactions are s2t out In 19,

The fair value determing at the grant data is expensed on a straight-line bass over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of the equity instruments
that will eventually west, with @ coresponding increase in equity. &8 the end of each reparting perad, the Group revises s estimate of the number of equiry
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revisian of te original estimate, if any, is recogrised @ profit or loss such thar the cumilative expense refiacs
the revised estimate, with & corresponding adjustment to the shane beses payment rosene,

Equity-sattled share-basad payment transactions with parties other than amployees are measured at the fair value of the goods or servicas received, except
where tat fair valoe cannob be astimated reliably, inowhich case they are measuced at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measored at the date the
entity obtaing the goods o the counterparty renders the service,

DETERMINATION AND PRESENTATICN OF OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Groug determines and presents operating segmants based con information that is provided internally to the Chief Operating Decisior-Maker, namely the
Chiet Executive Officer,

Segment results that are reported to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker incluge itams directly attributable to 8 ssegment or 2 region, a5 well &5 these that can be
gllocated on a reasonable basis,

On a primary bass tee operations are arganised into 1he follewing business segements: direct and indirect owned real estate investment. Direct properties congist
of: affice and rmixed use, retail, vacant land and infrastructure and light industrial. The Chief Operating Decision-Maker however asses sach investment property
an an individual hasiy inomaking decsions about fs perfarmance

Ary capital expenditure relsting to investment property will be accounted for as under note 1.8 (Investmant Property] and will be shown separately pnder note 5
lIreestment Propertyh of the annual financial statements
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i

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directars are required Lo make judgernents, estimates and assumptions about the carmying amounts of
assels and liatdlities that are not readity appinent from other sourcas. The estimates and assccizted assumptions 2re baged on historical experience and other
factoss that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these pitimate:

The estimates and underlying assumptions ere reviewid on an on-poing basis. Revisiing (o accounting estimates are recognised in tha period which the estimates
i ravised if the revision affects anly that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision sffects both currant and fisture periods.

The fallowing are the key zssumptions and judgements concarning the fulure, ard other key sources of estimation unceriainty at theend of the reparting perind,
that have a significant nsk of rausing a material adjustment to the cansving amounts of dsses and labilitles within the nest financial year:

Criticol occounting judgements
Control over certain investment in assoclates

The Growep has certain investments in associates inwhich it efactively owns an excess of 35% of the ksued share capital of the ssaciates, In more cases than ane,
the Group is the singe largest shareholder in these investments, The Group has deemed these Investments 10 e associates o5 it does not have contral. The
sssassment of control aver these investments took inte account the Toliowing:

# thie furmber of directors the Groug has o the Boards of the Investmeants:
# the involvernent in declsion making aver significant transactions and/or events of the investments: and
= the pattern of sharehelder vating at sharaholder mestings.

Motz & describes that MAS Real Estate Inc {"MAS") Is an assoclate of the Group: The Group has & 45.26% ownership in MAS, The directors of the Groug mssessed
whether or not the Groug has control over MAS based on whether the Growp has the practical ability to dlrect the relevant activities of MAS unllateraliy. In i king
their judgement, the directors considered the Group's absolute sie of holding in MAS and the relative sire of end dizpersion of the shareholding owned by the
other sharehedders. After assessment, the directors concluded that the Group doss nat have a sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities
of MAS and therelore the Group does riot have cantrol ovar MAS,

It must be noted that Altacg has no rght interms of MAS' constituticnal decuments trappaint a director. Attacg does not have any sgreements 0 place governing
the actions of MAS ar the MAS beard.

Furthermore, in terms of the MAS mermorandum of insorgorstion ["MOI"), a sharehelder resalution to remove a director must be passed by shareholders holding
at laast 75% o the veting right in refation thereto. Any steps by Attacg on its own to remewe members of the MAS board of directars couls easily be biocked by
the rerpining chareholder grougings.

Recognition of a financial asset for Karoo purchase price adjustment

During the previous finandial year, Attacn rezlised & REE millian loss on the disposal of the investment in Karoo investment Fund 500 SICAN-S and Karan
Investment Fund 1l 5.C.4 SICAVSS [now collective the “Kanca Fund”) to MAS Real Estate Inc, ("MAS") for a consideration of 2 further 23.4% sharehoiding in MAS,
Tre transactlon was structured on the basis that Attacg will share in & percentage of the reaticed uzside on the Karon assets directly by the way of & purchase grice
adjustment |"agterskat”} mechanism to be settied in MAS shares,

I the current financizl year management assessed whethar an azset shouid be recogrised by considaring the share price and projected share price of Kareo and
comcludad that MAS will most likely ssue additonal bMAS thares to Attaca following the inceass in the Karoo share price.

Determination of fair value of Investment property

The Group measures and recognises all investmant proparty, Initlally at cost and subsequently at fair vzlue as noted In 1.8, The fair value estimate & made using
independent external valuations onan annual basis,

However, the Graowp makes the following adjustments ta the Tair valee estimate from the independent vabuer:

* Anadjustment for the estimate of the future rental ohiigations to the lessor of the Watertall Business Estate, Newtown and Majestic tand:

* Cornpleted Developments - completed developments valuzd using the discounted cash flow of future rental income are adjusted with the value of the straight-
lining cebtor; and

Developments under consiruction - an adjustment to the presant value of the difference betwesan the estimated fair value of the investment property at
complation and the total estimated developmant cost esing the stage of complation method. The stage of complation is determined with referance ro the cost
imcurred to date versus the total anticipated cost of the developrment, excluding the cost allacated to the land.

Tne above adjusirments are made to reflact the fair value ar which the asset could be sxchanged bstwesn market participants at tha reporting date under current
marger canditipns,

Key sources af estimation uncertainty
Trade receivables and Loans and receivables

The Group assesses Its trade receivabies and loans and recelvables for impalrment st the end of each raporing period. In determiring whether an
irnpairment foss should be recorded in profitor foss, the Groug makes judgemeants a4 to whethar thers is cheervable data indicating @ measurable decrease in the
estimated feture cash flows from & financial asset
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY {cantinuad)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (contimed)
Useful lives of property, plant and eguipment

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and eguipmant at the end and the wuseful livas in the current and prior years are:

Itam Useful ife

* Cleaning equipment 3 years

* Computer egulpment and software 3 years

* kitchen aquipment 3 years

« Mator vehicles 5 years

= Other fixed assets 5 1o 10 y=ars

Effective date of property Iransactions

Im the event of an investment property being disposed or acguired, the effective date of the transaction is generally treated as the date when all suspensive
conditions have been meat, and the byver becomes contractually entizled to the income and expenses associated with the property, and not necessarily when the
property is transferrad,

Fair value estimation

Thie fair walue of financial instruments traded in active markets (such a3 trading and available-for-sale secorities) s based on guotad markst prices at the end of the
reparting period. The queted market grice wsed fer financizl assets beld by the Groug is the current bid price.

The fair vatue of financial istruments that are not aded inoanoactive market [for example, over the counter dedvatives) s determined by using valuation
technigues. The Group uses 3 variety of methods and makes assumptions that sre based oo markel conditicns existing ol the end of each reporting period. Ouoled
market prices or cealer guotes for similar instruments are used for fong-term debt. Other techniques, such a5 estimated discounted cash flows, @re used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate swape is cafculated as the presant valee of the estirmated huture cash
flawes. The falr value of farward foreipn exchange contracts Is determinad using guoted forward exchange rates at the end ot the reperting period.

Thie carsying value less impairment provision of rade receivables and payasles are assumead to approximeate thelr fair valuas. The fair walue of financial lizbifities for
disclogure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows &t the current market interest rate that i avallzble to the company for similar
firnancial Instrurments.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amouwnts of cash-generating units and individual sszete have been determined based on the kigher of walue-inuse caloulatiens and fair values less
costs to sell, These calculstions require the use of estimates and assumpticns.

The company reviews and tests tha carrying valus of assets when events or changes in croumstances suggest that the carnang amount may not be recoverablz. In
addition, goodwill i tesved an an annual basis for impairment. Assets are compared at the fowest fevel for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of othes asse1s and ligbilities. IF there are Indications that impalrment may have occurred, 2stimates are prepared for expectad
Tuture cash flowed lor sach company of assets, Expected future cash flows used o determine the watue in use of poodwill and tangible assets are inhereatly
wnceriain and could materially changs over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors incleding industry specific and macro-economic variances.

Yalue in use is calcufated as the net present value of future cash fiows derived from assets using cash flow prajections which Bave been discounted al approprate
discount rates. In caloulating the net present value of the future cash flows, certain assumptions are required to be made in respeet ot highly uncertain matters
including managameant’s expactations of:

= & cash-gessrating units 1o wiich an intangibile asser has been allocated i 1estad for impairment annually;

= The discounted cash flow methed is used to determine the Fake value of the cash-ganerating unit;

= The future cash Hows of the cash-generading units b which an intangible asset s allocated s used as input in the descounred cash flow valuation;
* The appropriate long term growth rate is applied 1o the fubere cash {low of the cash-generating unil; ard

The selection of appropriate discount rates to retiect the ricks invodved, usually the weighted average cost ol capdal {"Warc")

-
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY [continued)

Key sowrces of estirration uncertainty (continusd}

Impairment of goodwill

Betermining whether goodwill is impaired requites an estimation of the value in wse of the cash-generating units to which gooawill fas been allecated. The value
i use caloulation reguires the girectors to estimate the future cash fows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and @ suitable discount rate in order to
calculate prasent vabue,

Value in use i calcufated as the net present value of future cash flows derived from assets using cash flow projections which have been discourted at agprogriate

disceunt 1ales, In calculatng the ret present vakoe of the future cash flaws, certaln assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters
including management's expectations of;

A cash-generating units to which poodwll has neen allocated & tested for impairment annually or when there is an indication that poodwill is smpaired;
The distounted cash flow mathod is used to detarming the fair vilue of the cash-gensrating wnit;

¢ The future cash flows of the cash-penarating units (o which goodwill i 3llocared s vsed a8 inpul in the discountad cash flow valuation:

The sppropriste long term growth rate & applied to the future cash fiow of the cash-generating wnit; and

= The selection of appropriate discount rates to reflect the risks involved, usually the weighted avarage cost of capital [“Wacc”]

*

Expected manner of realisation for deferred tax

Leferred taw is provided for on the fair value adpstments of investment properties based on the expested mannes af secovery, Le. sale or use. This manner af
recovery affects the rate used to determine the deferred tax liability, Refer note 11 - Deferred rax.

The dederred tax rate appliad to the fair valye adjustrments of investment propemy s determined by the expacted manner of recovery. Where the expectad
recovery of the investment propany or is thigugh sals, the capital gains tax rate of 18.548% (2014 18.548%) is appliad. If the expected manner of racovery is
through definite uss the normal tax rate of 28% [2014: 28%) ic applied. If the manner of recowary is parth through use and partly through sale,  combination of
tapita| gains rate and nocmal bax reke s used,

The appiicable tax rates on timing differences are based on management’s best estimate of the manner la which these timing differences will raalise,

Gains in the fair walue.of investment property Eive rise to tixable timing differences, being the difference berween the origingl tost price and the marker valus as
determined annually by external valuers. Refer to note 5 for valeation details of investment propermy.

Miarket value of investment properties represents the best estimate of value to be realised in the ogen market between 3 willing buyer anel a willing sellar, Thas,
dispossl of investment properties will primarily give rise to cepital zains tax.

Irdetarmining the amount of deferred tax ta be raised, accounting standards require:

* insespect of the investment property, management is required to estimate the expected pariod of use wnlil sale and an estimated sales value (residual value),
The fair value adjustiment is then split between & use value and 2 sale value com poanent and the respective tag consequences applied 1o each componant,

Given the cverall nature ef the Groug's investment property portfelic and the historic perlormance of the portfalio as.a whoie 28 well as the individual properties,
management estimates the expected future sale value {residual value) of the frvestment propertias to at laast be equal o the market values 3t year end. Thus, the
fair value attributable to the value in use component of the investrment properties s most likely to be il There & thus no benefit te valus land separately for
datermining deferred tax consequances.

Consequent by:

= netfair value gains an investment properties are included at capita? gains tax ratos,

» straight-line rentals are incluged at normal tax rates;

* future recoupment of weir and tear allowances on individual depreciable components of investment propermies are included normal tax rates: and
v deferred initial lease cests are included at normal tax rates.

Feir value measurements and valuation processes

some of the Group™s sssets and llabelities are measured at fair vakoe for financizl reporting purposes. The Boarg, through the Chief Exacutive OFficer, Financial
Director and Head of Asset Manzgement, determine the approoriate valuation techniquas and Inputs for fai value measuremants,

In estimating the fair value of an aseet or a fability, the Group usss market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level L inputs are net available, the

Group engages third party qualified valugrs to perform the valustion. The above offlcers works closely with the qualified externzl waluers 10 establish the
approprate vakuation tachnlgues and iputs to the model,
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
{Fegistration Mumber: 1937/000543,/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Z; CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY {continwed)
Key sowrres of estimation uncertalnty (continued]
Falir value measurements and valuation processes [continued)
The above offlcers reports the decisions 1o the Board ewvary quarmer 1o explain the cause of fluctuations in the falr value of the acsets and Habilities.
Infarrmation ahout (e valuation techaiques and inputs used o desesminiag the faic value of various assets and Babilities s disclosed npates 513,10 and 37
Amortisation of intangible asset arising fram the asset management of the Group’s investment property

Mapagernent has getermined the usetul live of the intangitle asset to be 15 years, The residual value relating to the intangible asset bas been determingd as Rnil,
In making this estimate, managemeant has considared the foliowing:

= the general Initial leate period relared 1o the underlying investment properties which 1s generatly 7 to 10 years for offices and industrlal tenants;
o theinigial remewal period of the above leases;

= thegeneral and initial renewal pericd of all other leases; and

s the likelihood of renewal by the tenants following the initial lease pericd,

Estimation of the futura rental payments to Waterfall Development Company Proprietary Limited

In 2009 Attacg Waterfall Investment Company Proprietary Limited, & subsidiary of the Group, enterad Into & sale of development rights and lease agreements with
Waterfall Development Company Proprietary Limited in terms which it obtained the right to develop the relevant fand parcels and to call for the registration of
leng-term ipase agraements againgt the title deads of these lengd parcels.

I lerms of the agreerments the company is obliged to pay, to the Bed ownee, an amognt equal 10 6% of the net rentals T generates from the leasehoid

improwements. This obligation is deemed inseparable from the leased land and should therefore impact the fair value of the relavant investment property.

The 6% net rentzl obligation 15 calcelated based on:

* AlAgpar e rental ingcarme sireams based anant iripa:e-:! Wnplﬁ'riﬂ-ﬁ dares af the warinus leasshold imprmemen:s o ﬂ-:ipnsal of leasehold rlgl‘rts,
» iscounting of antizipated cash flow sireams to determine the present value of the obligation 31 rates betwesn 16% and 22% [2014: 18% 1o 2534); and
» discounting of anticipated cosh flow streams to determinge the gresent value of the obligation at 3 rate of 0% {2014: %) for Land Parcel 3.
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Mumber 1997 /000543/08)
Annad Financigd Statements for the year ended 30 Juna 2018

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The foliowing accounting amendmants, standard and intedgretation became etective i the current reporting period:

3.1  New and revised IFRSs sffecting presentation and disclosure only

Standard or Interpretation

= |FRS 10 Consolidared Fenancial Staternents

IFRS 12 Dlsclosure of Interest in Other Entities

145 37 Separate Financial Statements {as armended s 2011)

= 1A% 16 Property, Plant and Equigimant

* |AS 19 Employes Bernefits

* A% 74 Related Party Disclosures
= A5 27 Separate Financlal Statements [as amanded in 2011)

= 1A% 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

A 36 Imgairnent of Assers

-

145 3R Intangikde Assats

» 1A% 3% Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurameant

= A% A0 Investment Propey

* FRIC 21 Levies

Nature and Impact

= Aamendments for Investment antites,

Amaendments for iInvestmeant antities

Amendments for investment ertities

Amendmants resulting from Annual Improvements 2010 - 2012 Cycle (proportionate
regtaternent of acoemulated depreciation an revaluation).

Amended to clarify the requirements that relate to how contributions from employess or
third parties that are lnked 1o service thould ba attributed to periods of sarvice.

Amandments restliing frem Annual Improvements 2010 - 2002 Cycle (management entities).

Amendmeats o inyestment entities.

-

Amendments relating to the offsetting of assets and labifities.

Amendments arising from Recoverable Amaunt Disclosures for Non-Fnanclal Assats.

Amendments resulting from Aanual Imprevements 2010 - 2012 Cyele {praportionate
restatemant of accumulated depreciation on revaluation).

s Amendgments for novation's of derivatives,

Arnendmients resulting from Annual iImprovements 2011 - 2043 Cycle [interrelaticnship
bertween IFRS 3 and 145 40).

Prowides puidance on when to recegnse d liability for a levy imposed by @ government, both
for levies that are accounted far in accordance with (45 37 Provisions, Contingenr Labilites grg
Contingent Assers and those where the timing and amoaunt of the levy is certain. The
intzrpretation covers the acccunting for puttlows imposed an antities iy gevermments
fincleding government agencies and similar odies) in accordanse with laws and/or
remuelations, Boweeer, it does not include income taxes, fines and other penalties, liabilities
arising from ermissions trading schemes and cutfiows within the scope of other Standards. The
Interpretation does not supersede FRIC S Linkilities grising from Participating in a Specific
Mirket — Waste Electrical and Electronls Equigehent , which remains in force and s consistent
with IFRIC 71 Lavigs,
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Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Mamber: 1937,/000543/05|
Annual Firancial tatements tor the year ended 30 lune 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES [continued)
3.1  mew and revised IFRSs not yet effective

Thee Campany has not yet adopted the following groncasncements, whizh have been izsuad by the International Accounting Standards Board, The Board of
Directars does not currantly believe the agdoption of thase pronouncements witl have 3 materlal impact an It results, financlzl position or cash fiow,

Thie fillowing accounting amendments, standard and interpretation become effective for pericds beginning on ar afrer the effectve dates set out below:

Standard or Interpretation Nature Effective Date

# |FRS 5 Mon-current Assets Held for sale and Discontinuad amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2013 - = 1 July 2016
Operationg 2014 Cycle. Adds specific gukdance In IFRS 5 for cases in
which anentity reclassifies an asset from held for sale to
held for distribution or vice versa and casas inwhich held-
far-distribution accounting is discontnued.

= |FA% 7 Financial instruments - Disclosure Amendments fesulng from Anacal Impdovements 20132 - # 1 Juiby 2036
014 Cycle, Additional puidance to carify whether @

Eervicing contract s continuing imvolvament in a

transfarred asset, and clasification on offsatting disclomures

in condensad Intarim financial stataments.

Imtrociuces & 'fair value through other cormprehens ve = 1 lanuary 2018
income category tor dartain aebdt inktruments, Financial

liabitities are classitied in o simiar manmer te under Ja5 23

Financial instruments: fecogritian and Messwrement, wewer

thare are ditferences in the requirernents apphying ta thi

measurement of an entity s own credit sk,

+ [FR5 9 Fimancial Instruments

Introduces an 'expected credit loss' model for the = 1laruary 2018
measurement of the impainment of fingncizl assets, so s

o b necessary for @ credit event to have oocurred

before o credit less is recognised,

Introduces o new hedge accaunting modil that s designed = 1 lanuary ZD1E
to b mora closely alignod with how entities sndertake risk

management actvities whan hedging financial and nan-

fingncial risk exposures,

The requirernents tor the derecognition of finanoal assets = 1 lanuary 2018
and liabiiities are carried forward from 145 38 Faoiciol

Ta clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of * 1 danuary 2016
assets from an mvester to It associate ar [alnt venture,

Reguire full recognition In the investas's financlal

stavements of gains and losses arlsing on the sale or

contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined

i iFAS 2 Business Combanobons ).

= |FRS 10 Consalidated Financial Statements

-

To address issues that have arisen in the context of » 1 fanuary 2016
applying the coasolidation excegption for investrnent

Raguires an acguirer of an interest in a joint operation in » 1 fanuary 2016
which the activity constitutes a business [as defined in IFRS

3 gusiness Combinations) to apply all of the business

combinations accounting princigles In IFRS 3 and ather

IFRss, except for thase principles that conflict with the

guidance in IFAS 11 and disclose tha information required

by IFRS 3 and ather IFRS: for business combinations.

* |FRY 11 lolnt Arrangements

Toaddress jssues thar have arisen in the context of + 1 Januany 2016
applying the consolidation exception for Investment

= |FRS 17 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

Permits an antity which is a first-tirme adapter of IFRS to = 1 lanuary 01k
coftfinue o account, with some fimited changes, for

‘regulatory deferral account Balances' In accardance with

Its prevdious GAAP, hoth an initial adoption of IFRS and In

spbsequent financial statemenes.

= |FRS 24 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
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Attacy Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Mumber: 1987/000543/08)

Anneal Financial Satemants for (he year anded 30 fune 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

12

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

MNew and revised IFRSs not yet affective {continued)
Standard or interpretation

= IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

= |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

= A5 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

= |AS 27 Separate Financial Staternents

* AL 2B bevestments in Associates and loint Ventures

= 1A% 34 Interim Reporting

= |A5 38 Intangible Assats

* 14530 Financial Insruments: Recognition and Measurement

Mature

-

Provides a single, principle based five-step model to be
applied to 2l contracts with cusiomers, Guidance is
provided on topics swch as the point in which revenue is
recognises, accounting forvariable considerstion, costs af
fulfitling and obtaining & contract and various related
matters. Mew disclosures about revenue are also
introduced,

Amendments resulting fram Annual Improvements 2012 -
2014 Cycle. To sddrass perceived impedimeants to
pregarers exercising their judgement in presenting thair
financial reports,

Amendments reslong from Aanual Improvements 2012
7014 Cyele. Clarify that the high quality corperate bonds
usad in estimating the discount rate for post-employment
benefits should be dencminated in the same currency as
the benefits to be paid.

Amandments regarding the carification of acceptable
methodds of depreciation and amortisation.

Arnendmants to permit investments in subsicianes, joint
ventures and assaciates to be optignally aceounted for
using the equity method in separabe financial statemeants.

To clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of
assats from an Investor 10 ity sssociate or joint venture
Requires the partial recognition of gzins and losses where
the assets do net constitute a business, 1.2 a gain or loss is
recagnised anly 1o the extent of the unrelated invastars’
interests in that associate ar joint vanture.

To address [ssues that have arisen In the eontest of
applying the consolidation exception far inwestment

amandments resulling from Annual Improvements 2012 -
2014 Cycle. Clarify the meaning ot ‘elsewhere in the interlim
repart’ and requirea cross-reference,

Armendiments regarding the clarfication of acceprable
methods of depreciation and amartization.

Amendrients to permit an anticy to elect to continge to
apply the hedge accounting requirements in 145 35 for a
fair value hedge of the interest rate exposyre of 3 partion
af & portfolic of financiak assets or financal liakilities when
VRS & Finpncial fnstruments is appfied, and to extend the falr
walue option to cerlain contracts that maeet the 'own use'
SCOPE exceplion,

45

Effective Date

-

1 January 2018

1 Juby 2016

1 July 2018

1 January 2016

1 January 2046

1 lanuary 2016

1 January #016

1 July 2016

1 January 2018

1 lanuary 2018



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
[Registration Karnder: T997 00543,06]
Annuz Finargial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2005

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figuresin R'000s
Compurter
tleaning Kitchen Other Fixed
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND IPBAENT iy tE Matar vehicles Total
2 i Equipment Expipomes Eqjuipment Azsets
Software
GROUP
2015
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2014 1056 5088 139 155 16361 16 810
agdditions 415 423 - LFF PRI R
Balance at 30 Jume 2015 1472 5521 139 T 12 387 20485
Accumubated dopreciation
Balance at 1 July 2014 257 1594 138 135 3210 5743
Depreciation 218 1656 - 184 2044 4105
Balance at 30 lune 2015 ars 3650 138 333 5258 9855
Carrying amount at 30 fune 2014 785 3105 . ] F181 11061
Carrying amount 8t 30 lune 2015 957 1871 - B4 713 10641
04
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2013 4B 1553 139 155 5634 rg70
Additions 349 3546 - - 4759 3545
additions - iFRS 7 Business Cambinotitn 23z T - B 23 ikl
Iransfer ta non-current assets held for salke - - - [ [{3=]]
Balance at 30 lune 2004 1055 Soas 139 185 10361 1 B10
Accumulated depreciation
Bafance at 1 July 2013 206 253 133 118 1588 234
Cweprecistian 21 1M1 - 31 1645 468
Addrtions - F85 T Business Somibination = - 3 5
Transfer 1o nen-current assets held for sale 5 (28] 12E]
Batarce &t 30 Jene 2044 257 1934 139 183 3210 5745
Carrying amowsnt at 30 June 2013 278 1300 - 37 4051 5 666
Carrying amewnt af 34 June 2014 739 2105 . ] 7151 11061
COMPANY
2015
Cost
Balance &t L July 2010 39 4554 14 a8l 2114 742
Additions - 132 = . & F &G04
Dispsals 233 {4 B26] 1314) (381} {2 306] [5 (a6)
Balance at 30 juna 2015 B - - - AB0 180
Accwmulated deprociation
Balance at I July 2024 1a 1513 314 ir3 837 3161
Dapreciaton F 1368 * B 310 103
Dispesals 11485) 17 882} {314) (381 11 150) 14853y
Balance 2t 30 June 2045 - - - - 17 17
Larrying amount at 30 June 3014 18 31BL - B 1377 4 581
Carrying amowent at 30 June 2015 - . - - 163 163
2014
Cast
Balance at 1 July 2003 131 1431 314 381 776 3033
Additions e 3263 - - 1333 4732
Balance st 20 June 2014 230 4554 314 341 2114 1742
Accumulated deprediation
Balance at 1 July 2013 123 ] 314 32 0 1557
Depraciation i 1445 - il 117 1534
Balance at 30 June 2014 124 1515 314 i Ba7 3161
Carrying amount at 30 June 313 B 1 363 - Ex) £l 1456
Carrying amount at 30 june 2014 118 3i81 - 8 1297 4581
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
|Registration Nurnber: 1897 00543,06)
arnual Fnancial Statements far the yvear ended 30 lune 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Figures in R'000s 25 2014 2015 2014

L INVESTMENT PROPERTY [cantinued)

& register of investment properties, together with the tithe deeds relaging to the awned
investment groperties are available for inspection st Lhe registered office of the compary.
At House, Second Floor

Meaxwell Office Fark

fagwa Crescent West

waterfall City

Medrand

Deualapmint rights [AWiC)

Intgpendent valuer's saluaton 2 007 000 2045 000 - -
Adjusted for

Adjustrent relating te the future rental sbisation {534 9681 (5B BHE4) -

Undeveloped land on Maxwell OHice Park heid directly by W partiner {4610 112 767} - -
Adjusted valuation 1467422 1503549 = -

The valuation = done by applyang the residual-land valuation model and indudes the following
key assumatians:
»  garviced l2nd prices between B2 250 and B3 350 {2004: B2 360 and F3 3500 par bulk square
metre, depending an services mstalled and intended ssage;
= estimated capital outlays #nd professienad fiees as per Independant guantity surveyon
= prowision fer any additonal costs, for example, agents comenission and marketing,
= anestimated development plan spanring 110 10 pears |2014: 1 Lo 10 vears);
= ducount rates for prasent value calcubations betweer 163 and 22% {2004: 16% 1o 22%;
and
» discount rates far present value calculatons of 0% (2014:.0%) for Land Parced 3.

The estimated Impact of a change in the fallowing significant unobservable Inputs wauld result n
achange in the independent valuer's valuatan as fallows:
«  anestension by 1 year of the astimated develoament plan {283 338) 1303 038! - -

= an increase of 200 basis points in the discount rate 5000 1EB2397| = =

Tha rffective date af thn resaluations on developmant rights was 30 lune 2015 Eeafuations were performed by an independent values, Mr Bruce Eastingn - N Bip Property Valaation,
Property hssocisted Valuer, of Old Mutual Investrment Group: South Africal. Mr Bruce Eastiman and Obd Mutoal Invastment Group: Sguth Africa are not connected to the Group

There was 0o chanpe 1o the valwation technigee from the prigr year, The fair value of deselopment ights is deamed ta be Level 3 as defined by JFES 13; Fair Ve Measarements

In 205 the Company ertered mto o sale of develapment rights and leese sgreements with Waterlall Development Compaiy Pragrietary Limited rermis of which it obizined the right
b0 develza the land parcels Bted below and to call for the registration of long-tarm lease agreements against the title deeos of the land parcels. i is antkipated that-all the loase
agreaments will be registerad within the foresesahle future.

For both years presented, waterfall comprise remaming undeveloped development rights obtained relating fo;
s tand parcel 3 of porton 3/RE on the Farm Wiatnrfall No. &
= Aemainder of land parcel 8 oF portign 173 an the Farm waterfall ko, 5
= RAemalnder of land parcel 9 of portion 1/RE an the Farm Waterfall ko 5
= Ramainder of land parcel 10 of portion 1/RE on tha Farm Waterfall Mo, 5
= Land parcel 10a of partion 1/AE on the Farm Waterfall Mo. 5
= Land parcel 10b of portisn 1/RE an the Fars Waterfall Na. 5
+  band parcel 12 of partion 1/RE an the Farm Waterfsll o, §
= Hemainder of land parcel 1% of Partion &1 of the Farm Waterfall o, &
+ Aemainder af land parcel 22 of Partion #8 of the Farm Waterfall Ba. &
+  Lagnd parcel 24 of portion 1,/4E anthe Farm Waterfall No. &

Land [Le Chateaw Property Deselopment Proprietary Limited)

Dorectors waluatlon 17000 17000 -
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
(Regitratian Nurmber: 1987 005435085]
Annual Finarezal Statements for the year endad 30 June 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Figures in R00Ds 2015 2014 2015 2014

5 INVESTMENT PROFERTY {continued)]
Urewelopments under canstruction

The carrylng ameunt of developments under construction are recondled as follows:

Balance at the beganing of the year £ 881247 1369 207 .
Transfer of cost from development rights 48 584 BI 136 - =
Trarsfer from infrastructu e and services 8 346 135 696 - -
Transfer of lair valee from devslopmaent sights 51 E84 170 716 = =
Additions 1833512 1650310 = =
Disposals 1288 623} . -
et gain from falr walue adjustment A 024 2R 3897 358 £
Transfer Lo complete develspments [ 582 735) |1 487 225) - x
Independent valeers' valpation 5 D56 683 63221708 = =
Adjusted for - against fair value
Cost te complete and percantage of completion 12 937 GG} 14 330 &%) .

28017 1851 147 = =
Recondled a5 follows:
Cosg 1 TE3 B3 1 355 BR3 3 -
Fair value adjustments A43 161 L35 164 E

Taram7 21891147 = T

The fallowing unchserdable inputs wera uséd by the mdependent valuers in sstimating the
fair walug of the investment property!

= Discount rate 12,25% - 14.00% 52508 - 14,00% - =
= Reversionany discount rate 12,255 - 14,00% BE5% - 14,00% -

»  Barkaetcaprate B.25% - ES0% E.50% - B,50% a

= Aewersionary cap rale G 5% - B A0 B 5005 - B,50% - -
»  Expense prowth 700% « RO A - FS0% - -
®  lALGife prowth B {HTH B00% - o
=  Long term vacancy rate 0,009, - 0 50% 0,00 - 1,50% = =

The estimated ampact of & changs in the felowing significant unahservable anputs wodd
resyff bn g change in tha indepepderl valeers' valuation as lallows:

= adecrease of 50 kasis paints in the discount rate 174107 213414 =
= aninceoase of 50 kasis poants in the dscount rate (167 255) (207 OE2) .
o adecreasa of 50 basis oinls in the reversionary cap rate 112 BER 260 754 L A
o an increase of 50 basis pomts in the rewarsionary cap rate (182 151) (228 575k - -

The independent vaheers” saluation of the following developmeants undar construction represent the companies’ sharehoiding as they are baing dovelpped theough a joint veniure
andfor undivided share:

= Lummins - 5. The balanoo is hold by Truzen 134 Trost (*Zenprop’ ],

= Mawwell Offica Park - 50%. Thie balaace i hetd by Ezst and West Inwestments Proprietany Limited (" The Msotman Group™);

= Mallof Africa - BO%. The balance is hedd by Awmerbury Property Haldings Propaetary Lirited ["ARH"); end

»  PwiC Tower - T5%. The balance is heid by P Waterfall Property Partnearship.

Refer 1o note 38 for a detailed brezkdawn of all the investriant peogrerties under constructon.

The vales of devalopments under constrectian is determined with referonce to tho cost incurrad fo date plus a portion of the peesent value of the final antcipated fair vakie gain
wpon complatian af the buliding The final anticipated fair walue gain upon completian of the buildings is the difference betwesn the total costs of deselopment and the far value of
the building a1 cempletion based o the independeant valver's valuation

The portion af the present value of the anticipated fair value gain, 15 dotermined with reference ta the stage of campletion of the buliding. The stage of cormaleticn of the building &
determined with reference to the cost bo Gate of the top structure and the total anticipated costs excluding the dewsfapment nghts (land| and the refated funding costs. The effect of
this podicy is listed par pragerty a0 deserited 25 he "Coit ko compiete snd pereantage of completion'.

The fair salue of devalopments under construction is deemead 14 be Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13 Foir Wolue eaiureduenis
Developments under construction were valued as ot 30 Jume 2015 wiing the discounted sk fow of future income streams methad by independent valyers
Al independent valvers were registered in terms of section 19 of the Property Valuers Professional Ack, Act Mo 47 of 2000, For both vears, the valuess were as lollws:

el Mutasl Investrmant Group: South Africa

() M Pring - B5c, Hons [Property Studies), Pragerty Associate Values

tiy ¥ Hook - BSc Hons |Property Studies), Progearty Associate Values

Ly M Sl - ND Praperty Valuation, Propenty Associate Valuer

[ivp 5 Crous- ND Reat Estate (Property Valuation), Chartered valuation Survayor

Bills Fitchet KZIN
[vh  TBabe- M5C, B5c Land Econ JUK], MBICS, MV [50], Prafessiana Valusr

Jones Lang LeSalle Proprietzry Limited
lwil K Pfaff - BSc MARICS, Chartared Valuation Surveyar, Frofesssonal Valuer
Iwil} ) ®arg - Senior Valuer
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
(R pistratlon Number: 1937/D00543 /061
Anrual Financial Statermants For the vear eanded 30 une 2015

MNOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in R'000s s i1 B ik ] 2004
5 INVESTMIENT PROPERTY [costinued |
Completed developments
The carrying amount of completed developments are recontied as follows:
Halance at the bepinnivg of the year 7671590 5 138 280 SE5 255 16 =09
Transfer from dovelopments under constrisction 2 ERT a5 1487 238 - -
Additions - IFES 3 Business Combsnatians 48 I FELE- b ] -
Additiang 125501 70 108 18 145 16354
Wet gain fram fair valua adjustment 108% 476 TI60ME 15 E71 B 624
Straight-line fease Income adjustment 2gainst fair value 1172 600) (107 6511 10516 Ipan
Sale of building ta Lynnwoad Bridge Office Fark Progrietary Limsted - 3 {351 38E] 5
Irdependent valuers” vaheation 11 945 535 LR EELE] 237 494 34271
Adjusted for
Stralght-line fease debtor against fair value (AE2 199} (309 5010 14 T3E| {15 254)
Transfar froom non-Current assets beld Fos sala - 157 TR 3T I57 782
11 863 437 TaT1 AR 473 16) SH5 255
Reconcied as follows:
Lozt B 308 308 6034 335 135303 443 f43
Fair wafue adjustments 2 6EE 128 1937 045 TT4a80 141 612
114863 437 Tar1 544 278 TEl SH5 255
The total and individual impact of the change in astmate i listed kelow for each
af the investment properties.
Total impact of change in estimate on Indepandent valuers” valuation
Piscownted cashk flaw of future income stream methodalogy - 7592 611 - B0 510
Lapitalsataon of normalised net income methodology - TIT9ES3 - E00009
- 1X 458 - oM
The fallowsng unshservable inpits ware used by the indepencent valuers' in
astimating the fair value of the investment property:
& Discount rate 12,500 - 15,600 12,50% - 15, 00% 14 00% - 14, Thk: 14,00%, - 15, 00%
*  Reversionary discount rate 1350% - 1525% B0% - 15,05% 14,00% - 14,75k 15, 00%
= Market cap rate 6, 75% - 9.50% T.50% - 5.175% 8,75 - B A0K 8,004 - 9,00%
= Reversighary cap rate T25%-9.50% E75%- B.50% B.50% - 500% 8,50% - 9,50%
= Expenie growth 7.00% - 8,00% B35%-B15% 1.50% 7.50%
= licome groeth ,00% - 9.00% 6,00% - B,00% B D0 % 5,005,
#  Long terrm vacEncy rale 0,00 - 3,00 0005 - 6,005 1005 - 2.00% 1.50% - 2,00%
Thie estenated impact of 2 change i the Tollowing signilican unobsaervatie ingats
wauln rezult i 3 change m the independent valuers' vakuaton as fallaws
s o adacrease ol 50 Badis painls in the discount rate 205909 AR BOT E{35 11 "4k
& =nincrease af 50 bass points i the discourt rage (483.052) {364 214) 14913 (10 511)
= adacrease of 50 basls paints In the reversionary cap rate 425 908 150753 10579 17984
= &0 Increase of 50 hasis points i the reversionary cap rate {370 9ER) {252 713) {3 A85) (27 3E5)

The independent valuess’ valuation af the following developments, represent S0 of the valuers’ salue as they are held through @ joent venture andfor undmided share:

= Ciemimins - with Trazen 116 Trust ("Zenprop’);

= ARech Building - with the East amd West investments Proprietary Lmsted |"The Moalman Groug™);
= Blaxwell OFice Park - with the Eoft and West investments Froprietary limited (" The Maolman Group”}: and

= Great Westerfard - with Leaf Capital.

Rafer to nobe 38 for 2 detalled brezkdown of all the invesimant properties under construction,

The fair walue of compieted devaiopments § desmed to be 3 Level 3 as definesd by JFRS 15 Fair Volue ideosurmments.

Carmpleted developments were satues a5 at 30 fone £01% using discounted cash fliow of the future income streams method by independent vakuers. This s m lime with the prioe year.

sl inpepengent valuers wene registersd in terms of section 19 of the Frogerty Valuers Frofessional Ack, 201 Mo 47 of 2000, For both wears, thiesaduars were as follows:

Old Mutual Investrments: Sauth Africa

[} I Fring - BSC. Homs [Property Studaes), Property Assaciate Values
I=1 T Eirg - B52. DipSure MAIC Valuer |SA), Proflessional and Chartered

Mills Fitchet KZN
8] T8ate - M5, BSc, Land Econ (UK|, MRICS, BN (5A), Professipns Yaluer

Jones Lang LaSalin [Py} Ltd

|kl K Prafl = BSc MRICE, Chartered Yaluation Sumveyar, Professional Valuet
[ 1 Karg — Senias Valuer
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Attacqg Limited and its subsidiaries

|Registration Number: 1857 000543/05)
Anriial Fnancial Statermants for the year ended 30 une 2HS

MNOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS Group COMPANY

Flgures im R'D00s 2015 1014 2015 2014

6 INTAMEGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
Balance at the beginning of the year 295 460 - -
additions From ieparate acguisitions 80 000 :
Acguisitions throvgh busnass cambinations 295460 i
= Atracg Management Saruces Froprietary Limited - 110804 . -
= Attacq Aetail Services Proprietany Limited - 1BAES1 - -
Balance at tha end of the year 378 450 299450 - -
Aocumulated amartisation
Balance at the beginning of the yoar |14 G34) . - -
Amarization expense |3 303 {14 6534) -
Balance at the end of the year (34 937) {14 &34) - 5
et carrging smount at the beginning of the year 2B4 B26 = = ]
Met carrying amount at the end of the year 344 533 284 826 - .

During the 2015 financial year, the Group [thraugh wholly-owned subsidany AWICT acouired the
Wi-Fi rights in relation toirs Sovelopments over the 'walerd all Farm From wiaterfall Investment
Company Praprietary Limited. The mghts atlow AW fo exploil ary nuhtimedia and broadband
based services in respact of its developments. AWEE cerrently has & contract with a third pary
and will commence revenue generation from these rights in tha 2016 financial year.

Curing the 2014 financial veas, the Group ecquired the erbire issued shasa capital of Attacy
Maragement Services Froprietary Limited and Attacg Retsii Services Progriotary Limead, which
15 considesad te be o business combenation a5 defined by (55 3; Business Combinghian.

Thie intangible assets are amortised over 15 years and are tested for impairment o an annual
Dasls or when there are indications that the intangible assats may be impaired.

Banagement of the Group has tesied the intangible assets far impairment as at 30 Jupe 2015
and cenduded that the sntangeble assets are ol inpaired.

7 GOODWILL
Cesd
Ealance at the begmning of the year B a7 - ¥ -
Additionat amnunts recognised from business combinstions 109 670 62 847 - -
Agditional ampunts recognised from purchase grice adjustment Attacn 4977 ¥ - -
Balance at the end of the year 177 444 62 EAT -

Accumisdated Impeirment losses

Balance at the beginning aof the year . -
Imgairment lass rn:;ugni:-ed in the year (105 BT = - =
Balance at the end of the wear {18 670} - - -
Met carrying amount at the baginning of the year 62 BAT . - =
et carrying asmount at the end of the year BT 774 62 847 = =

The goadwill relatas to the following cazh genersting anits:

= ARtacq Management Services Proprietary Limited a3 457 38570 = -
= Attacq Retail Services Proprietary Limiled 20 27T 24277 - -
EY 774 B2 BaT E ¥

Hefiar to mote 5.2 for details of the acquiston of goodwall,
The goodwill is not amortised but wesved for imgatemest on an annual basis of when there ara indications that ihe gosdwill may he impaired.

Maragement of the Graup has tasted goodwill that is allacated (o Attacg Management Services Propeistary Limited and attacg Aetall Services Proprietary Limited respactaply, for
impairment as at 30 June 2015 and concludéd that the goodwsl is not impairad based an the following:

= the positive net asset value of the cash-gensrating unis;

& nnimpairment of the investinent by the Group in the underlying cash-generating anits;

*  thepresent value of the fubsee discounted cash flows genarazed by the Cash-generating units: and

*  tFe additions to the asset base which will be managed by the cash-genarating units.

During the year ended 30 une 2015, the Group, through wholly-vweed subsidiary AWIE, acquired 1005 of the issued share capital of Micawbar B32 Progrietany Lenited.

Mariagemant af the Group has tested goodwill that was aBocated to Micawber 832 Proprietary Limited for impasnment 35 81 30 fne 2035 and conclurded that the goodwsl i imagited
based on the Following:

= the fair value Inss costs to sall was considered to be the most appropriate madel to assess the impairment;

= the entire company, Micawher 832 Proprietary Limited, was considerad ta he the smallest cash-generalimng wirt;

= fair values wera obiained for the propeny, the single largest asset;

= the girectors have estimated Fair values for alf asher assets and labilties with reference 10 current market conditions;

= e botel (5 valies less costs to 3e8 were less than the fotal carrping value of the tatal net assets by 8109, 7 millian;

The amount of goodwill impaired was sllocated tn the seatement of profit or 1oss and ather coiriprehpnsten income uncar "other expenzes”
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Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries

{Registration Mumbar 153000052 3/05)

Annial Financial Staterents for the year ended 30 lune 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUFP COMPANY
Flguras in R'0005 2015 014 2015 2014

B INVESTMENT IM ARSOCIATES

Set out below is the sssecrsted campany of the Groug as ag 30 june 2015, which, m the apinion
o the diractars, iz matenal ts the Growp, The sssodated carmpany &8 set oot below hbs ardinary
shares, which are held drectly by the Group; the country of incorporation is alse the grincipal
miace of Busness

Hame of asscciate neRs Real Estate ing

Frinciple activiny Real Estate lneastrmant Company

Place of incesparatian gritish virgin Island

pringipal place of fusness Isle af Man

Proportion of ownerskip S voling rights hetd by the Graup 4%, T 47 04% 45 26% 47 8%

The abowe associate 15 acoounted for using the equity mathod In these consobidated financial
statprments.

summanised fimancal informaan in rospect of the Growp's materlad associate s 561 ouk beho,
The summarized financid information below represents amounts shawn m the associate's
financial statements prapared in accardance with IFRS {adjusted by the Group far eguity
BCCoUNEING pUrpasas),

MAS Aaal Estato Inc.

Current assets 1 6ZE3ET 3 008 269
Mon-current asiets S oEE 325 1473834
Current liabilities 117 967] 147 £39]
ran-currant liahilities 1306 262) (251 1ig}
Frvenue LI6Z78 TIELS
Frafit From cantimung aparations L BAS 502 70 536
Fradit For the year B45 302 T 8A6
Other comprehansive income For the year HY 543 2199
Total comprehensive incoime for e year FEFR-L3 T3 105
Dividends received From MAS Real Estate Inc. during the year 41539 17 EAR

kgreanciliatson of the abowe spmmarised Financial information 1o the carmging amount of the
mtarest in MAS Real Estate Inc. recegnmed in the cansalidated financial statemanty:
MAS Real Estate ing.

Balance ot the beginning of the year 14976 817 G gkT " 2_!1 386 27
Bdditians - 18404817 - 1840817
Fair vatue adjustment through other comprehensive mcome - - (109 60D 171942
Share of retained profits  |losses| and other comprehensive mcome for the year 201513 {73 607) i -
2178380 1976837 T 112 786 2221 385
Raconcibed as Follows:
Cond = LI 19904901 199[!_9[!_1 1990801
Net gain from fair value adjustmaont - 1218385 231 48%
Sharp of retaned profits £ {losses) 11328 (14.41654) - E
Jsher comprehensive Incoms since acquisiton 332638 - = =
Farelgn currency translation effect {113 978|
Diwlgends paid {42 535} - - -
21781350 1676817 2112 '.I'Iiﬁ TZ232 380

ineludad in e share of retained profity dor the year ended 30 June 2005, is & pofie of RLO 587
THO b the daenad dipasal of 1,98% of the Groug's sharehabding in MAS Read Cslate Inc

{"MAS"] disa to the lssue of additional shares by MAS as considerstion for the Internatisation of
shieir asses management function as well in rospect af sorip dividends declared by the company

MAS closing balance was converted on 30 June 2015 at the spot Euro rate of RI3.64

Carryimg amount of the Growp's interest in associates

BASS Rieal Estate Inc 2178 AL 187E 817 27132 TG 2323388
sggregate amount of other associate that are not individaally Immaterial 191534 HT3 437 183 011 417 %5
2369 584 20950274 2305 797 2639482
thare of retained profits |/ [losses)
MAAE Peal Extate fne. 11328 |14 DEd} - -
Apgregate amaund of other associate that are not individually immazgrial A5 Z40 144 D35}
50568 {58 DE2} = .

In the priar year, the Grogp Beld a 25% interest in Atkerbury Property Holdings Proprestary Limited ["APH"} and sccounted for the ineestment g6 an associate. Doring Decenber 1014,
the Growp disgosed of & 15% mteieit m APH bor procesds of B33 million. The Group bas scosunted lor Wi remaning 10% a5 an inveslment at fair value.

Tha Group held an nterast of 49.5% in both Bagaprog Uriltad ard Mall of Mausitivs 3t Bagatelle Limited through attesaury Bauraius Caonsortiem Proprietany Lienited, 3 subsidiary of
the Growp and ageounted for the investmants as assoriates, During Decembar 2394, the Group met all requircments as stpulatod in (FRE 50 Mon-ourrent Assers Held for Sole and'
diserndinued dorretions and the investments in assariates were dassfied accardingly. Refer to note 17.

Refer to mote 28 for the interest in direct associates.
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
{Reg:stracion Mumber: 100 70NI5a3,05)
annual Financal Statements for the year anded 30 June Hi4E

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPANY
Figures In ROD0s 2015 2014
k] INVESTMENT I SUBSIDIARIES
Batanca at the baginning of the year 4 130 951 ¥ 3R 853
Additions 1548 512 554 205
Daregistration 144 713} -
Distriburtion received - returp of cagizal 121 as4) £
Fair value adpistment through other nomprobansive ingams 366 059 1163634
Raversal of impairment lass {impairmant loss) 2 137 5483)
Movement in provision far habilities relsting to subsidiaries - 15 189
Transkar to non-carrent assets held for sale [1ETgEE) -
Transfer from inwestreent in gssocintes - 64043
Balance at the end of the year STRZ 7L 421204961
T ——
Eecanciled as follows:
Cost 2830 g0 1443682
Impairmant {1010 I35 453)
Nat gain from fad value adjustmens 2910431 1732732
ETE2971 4 13051
Het investment n subsediaries STE29T1 41730 861
Investment in subsidiares comanse the following:
AlH International Limited
Balance at the heginning of the year 4 536 153
Fair walue adjustment through other comprehensio incarms T ma 4777
Balance at the end of the year 12 645 1 936
Reconciled as follows;
Cost* : .
Nel gain From fair value sdpistment 13 Bas 4936
13 Ba5 L0835
Alfabri 86 Proprietany Limited
Balance at the beginning of the year 254 18112
Addditlons = 2
Rewarizd of impsirment lass {impalrmant kss) - (7 7a7]
Fair walue adjustment through other comprehansive incame ' 110313)
Balance a1 the end of the yea 256 154
Recencied as follows:
Cnosk 3001 8001
EmipErmEnt {7 745] {7 147}
256 254
Attacg Management Sarndces Proprietary Limited
Ealance at the beginning of the year 271 .!9_5- -
Addtrons 11 968 271 395
Balance 21 the end of the yea 183 363 271395
Reconcied a= follaws:
st 283363 271 355
Attaeq Retail Fund Proprietary Lmited
Balznce at the heginning of the woar 1157 264 S BET
Additions 145358 155 54T
Fair value adjustment sthrough other comprebensie incoms ZEI L2 5 606
Balance zt the end of the year 1550 370 1187 360
Reconciled as follows:
Cast 11017 pad BET 186
Het gain from fair walue admstment 572 62 2B 4TS
1590270 1147 260
Attacq Waterfall investment Company Proprietary Limited
Balance al the beginning of the year 1324069 H#81 137
Additions 108l 459 15 096
Fair valup adjustmant through other cormarebensive incame 102978 437 B3E
Balance a1 the end of the yesi 4 50 506 1324063
Reconciled as fallows:
Cost 1105 536 5057
et gain from Fair value adjustment 14031950 1298973
2 50E 506 1329069

® Tha cost of this investment &5 less than R DO




Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
(Faplstration Number: 2957/000543/06]
Armual Fnancial Stataments 1or the year endad 30 June 2015

ra——

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Flgures In R'0005 2015 2014 2015 Fona

9 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES {continued)

iweditrrenl in subsidiaries comprise the following:
Atterbury Attfund mvestment Company Mo, 1 Proprietary Umited

Aslanco at the haginnng of the year - 54113 sS40y
Fair value agjestment through other comprehensive intame - - (51505 (14)
Deragistration |2 50E| -
Hatance at the snd of the year - . - 013
Recanclbed as follows:
Cost o o 2 508
Met gain from fair value agjustrmant 2 2 - 51505
- - - 5403
Attarbury Attfund Investment Company e, 2 Proprietary Limitad
Balarice at the beginming of the year = v 52 20 360
Imgairment loss - - - |6 B}
Fair walee adjustment through ather comprehensive income § (13 578}
Deregistratian - - (&) -
Balarice at the end ol the yea - - - 53
Recondled 2 fallows:
Cast* - 4 = & 7EL
Impair mmeant - - - {6 ELO|
= - i
Arterbory Attfund Investment Company No. 3 Proprietary Limited
Ralance a1 the beginning of the vear s 3 42110 33843
Meverzal ol impairmeant loss B = = EZET
Dierapistration - - (az 110} -
Balance at the end of the year - - - 43110

Racenciéed as follows:

Cost - - L1133
Imipairment - - [ERFET]
-3 - = 12 110
Atterbury Mauritiss Consartivm Proprietary limited
dadance at the begimning of the year - - 226100 144 736
Fair value adjustment thraugh other comprebensive incomes - - [3E 242) El 304
Trarsfer fa non-current assets hald for sale - - (1a7 258) -
Hafanca at thie and af the yoar - - 23510

Reconciled as folfows:

Lost® - = E 3
Met galm fram fair value adjustrent - - - 126100
- - - 126100
Atterbury Property investmants Propriptary Umited
Balsnce at the beginning of the year o = = 93854
Irmpasrment |oss . . . 128 729}
Fair value adjustment through ather comprehansive mcome = * - 165 125}
Balance at the end of the year - - - -
Remnciled as fallows:
Gt - - iRTIR
Inpaisment - = = 1287251
Brookbyn Bridge Office Fark Progrietary Umited
Balance at the begmning of the year = = 194 416 -
Transfer from investment in associakes - - - (A 43
Additions . » Bk
Fair value adjustment through others comprehensive incoma - - 11 7EF 54 143
Balance a1 the end ol the year = = 206143 134116
Reconciled as follows:
Cait - - 126 540 125540
Met gain lroim (Bir value ddjustment - - 72603 E7B7E
= 206143 194 415
Oe Ville hopping Centre Propriatary Limited
Ralance at the beginning of the year - - - {11 188}
tovement in provision for liabities relating ta subsdianies - - - 11 188

Balance 3t the end of the year . T =

* The cost of this investrmant s less than K1 pa0



Attacg Limited and Its subsidiaries
(Registration Mumber: 1997/000543/06)
Annual Financial Staterments for the year ended 30 June 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Figures in R000s 2015 2014 2015 2014

5 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES {continued)

Invectrnent in subsidianes comprise the feflowing:
Herlequin Duck Properties 204 Proprletary Limited

Balanca at the Deginning of the year - 1225 L464
Fair value adiustment through ather comprefiersive ineame ] - |GE} [ rl]]
Ealance at the end of the year - - 2157 2225
Reconclled as folbows:
Cost? - - -
Mt gain from fair value adjustment - - 2157 2225
E = 2357 3225
Highgrows Property Holdings Proprietary Limited
Balanca st the bBeginalng of the vear = - TS EBE 73740
Fair value adjustment through othe: comprehensive income 1 177 1926
Balance at the end of the year - 75843 T5 Bak
Reconciled as fallows:
Cost - - 18543 18 543
Met gain from Fair value adjiestment . - 56 SO0 [Tk
= * TERAR 75 BES
Lagy Bropks Proprietary Limited
Balance at the beginning of the year - - 15938
Impairment loss - - 3 065)
Fair walue adjustment through ather comprenensive incarme - - - {2283
Balance at the end of the vear & - - -
Racenciled a5 follows:
Cost - - 3065 k3]
Hmipairment - {3 D65) 13 Q65)
Le Chateaw Property Company Proprietary Limited
Balarice st the beginning of the year . . - (5 00z)
Mawement in prowision for ilabiities relating o subsidiaries . - . 5002
Balance at the end of the vear ¥ * 5 ¥
Raconciled as follaws:
Cnst - 1 1
Met gam fron fair value sdjustment - [44] M}
Lord Charlas and Lady Brooks OHice Park Haldings Propristary Lmited
Ealance at the heginning of tha year . - -4 704 A7 03
Fair value adistment through other comprehensive income = - (EXEET] 37
Deregistration 3 - (1) -
Balance at the end of the year E = 47 Bt
Reconcled a5 follows:
Cost Z : - |
Bet gain From fair value adjustment - - - 47039
- - - 47 20
Lynnaur Investments Proprietary Limited
Balance at the beginning of the vear - - 114 519 00 511
Addhipns - 50 060 -
Fair value adjustment threugh othar comprefensive incame - 11581 14 608
Balarice at the end of the year E - 176 560 114 519
Recondled a5 follows:
Cost - £ SOO60 -
Met gain from fair value adjustment - E 126 500 114 519
3 176560 114 518
Lynnwaood Bridge Office Park Proprietary Limized
Balance at the beginning of the year - 1T 0LG 121 374
Adgitions & 156 629
Fair ¥alue adpstment through othar comprehensive inoames - . 119 B33 CER-EE
Lalance at the end of the yaar . - ESZATE ATEOLG
Reconcied a5 follows:
Cost . 26RET 12 ME
Met gaim from fair value adjustmént . - ELERA 263 BER
- 652 478 26

* The cost af this investment is lags thap R1 000



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Mumier: 189700054506
Annuzl Firancial Statements far the year endad 30 June 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUFP COMPANY
Figures in R'000s 2015 a4 015 Z014
9 INVESTMENT PN SUBSIDIARIES {eantinued)
Imvestment in subsidiaries camprise the following:
Majestic (fices Proprietary Limited
Balance 3t the beginning of the weas - 12066 Bk
Fair walue adjustrment through otirer comprebensive income - - 1E33 F037
Bzlance at the end of the year = - 136555 12 056
Reconcied as follows:
Nat gain from fair valua adjustmient - 13055 i1 D66
- 13955 1066
#antrablox Proprietary Limited
Batance at the Degirnag of the year - - 117813 15877
Additions - - - 21454
Distributinn recenwed - return of capital - -|2:|. -IEl'lj H
Fair value adjustment thraugh ather comprehensive incoma - |96 355) B0 482
Balance ab the and aof the yeai = - = 117813
Reconciled as follows:
Cinst 20 = X 21454
Met gain raart Rair value adjuskment - - - Qi 359
r . 117813
Misuwtawn Property Development Company Proprietary Limited
Balance at the beginaing of the year - 19957 20131
Fair value adjustment through other camarehensive incoma - (1o a11) [174]
Gafance al the end of the year - - 9946 19957
Recanclled as follows:
Cost® - - - -
Met gain from fair value adpstment - - oadi 15857
. ER-T1s ELL
Razorbill Properties 91 Proprietary Limited
Balance at the begmning of the vesr - WB1ma 1Ha3E
Fair valise adjustment thiough otler comprehensive income - - 69 B34 152 535
Balance &t the end of the year - - 250 B4S 1E1 011
Reconciled as follows:
Met gam from far value adjustirent - - 250 HE 1E1 011
. 250 paE 161011
3.1 Non-controlling interests
The balance comprises of the foiowing majr components:
Allacy Waterlall Investment Conpany Proprietary Limitad - IHI4ES - -
Atteshury Bauritios Congortium Progrietary Limited 124 2R} 1E 555 e S
Lynnawur tnwestments Progrietary Limited 5 33401 F &
Mieuwtown Progerty Davelapment Company Praprietary Lenited 2552 14967 - -
Majestic ffices Fropnetary Limited 12 GEd G042 -
T 52 214 567 A -

The non-confrollmg interest balances recognised are it deemed to e material by managemeant



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
|Hegistration Number; 1997/300543/05)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Jupe 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Figuras in R' 0005 2015 2014 2015 2018

9 INVESTMENT IN SLIBSIDIARIES [continued)
5.2 Ewslness Combinations

Micawber 832 Propristary Limited
AWIC Acguired 100% of the company or 31 lanuary 2015

Micawher 832 Froprietany Uimited i the owner of the Ped offices located = Sannnghill,
Gauteng. The company was arquired with the riain inteéntion of entering into 3 12 year lease
foor the new 26 Storey Pwl head affica In Waterfail,

Eensideration transferred

Cash TLEM £ ¥

Assets acquired and lisbikties recognised at the date of acquisition

Wan-current assels

Inwasimant property 28 THY - -

Dederred tax assers 13515 - -

353 2ES =

Currant assets

Cash and cash equlvalents a0 - *

Tawation receivahis 19_i|} - -
2310 -

Non-current lisbites

Loan from shareholdar 1354 542 - =

Current liabilites

Trade and other payables 172} 2 .

Loans from shareholders {39B1) - -
(3 053} -

Fair value of identifiable net liabilitie: acquived LEER L] - -

Cansigeratkon translerred {71 670] - -

Gaodwill arising on acquisitian {109 670) = =

At the date of sequistin, the assers ang tiabilities of the subsidiary were Fairly valued, The

differance between the assets ard Labilities of the subsidary, farly valued, and the

consideration paid gave rise to goodwill, which was assessed for impairment as getailed in

note 7.

Mot cash autfiow on acquisition of subsidiaries

Consideration paid in cash T1 670 - =

Less: cash and cash egquivalent balances acquired {380} = -

Total 71 280 - =

e ——————

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the group

Prafit foe the year atiributable to the additonal business 44074 -

Revenue for the year attributable to the additianal business 184961 . -
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Attacqg Limited and its subsidiaries
[Registratinn Mumbes: 195 2000543 6}
Annual Financizl Statements for the year ended 30 Jupe 2015

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in R'ODOs 4 2015 2014
G INVESTMEMT IN SUBSIOLARIES [cantinued)
9.2 Business Combinations

Attacy Management Services Proprietary Limited

Acoured 100% of the campany in the prios year |4 Doaber 2003

Attacg Management Services Proprieiary Lmited, which carries on asset management as its

principal activity, was scouired with the main gurpose of internabsing the asset management

fusictior of the Growgp.

Consideration transferred

Cash . FT10EG -

Aseats acquired and llabilities recognised at the date of acouksition

Non-currant assals

Fraperty, plant and equipsnent - 147 -

Irtangible assets . 24E dan -
- 295 60T -

Current assets

Lash and cash equivalents - P TR -

Trade and ather receivaties N 3152 -
- 291712 -

#on-currgnt liabilities

Leimg term liahbilities . 113 4E5) -

Deferred taxation U 43 28%) -
= 126965 =

Current lialbilithes

Tax payahle E |1 025) =

Loan accounts - (271 OBE] -

Trade and other payaldas - {4 424) -

Provissang & (2 575) &
= [#&8122) =

Fair walue of identifiable net assets aoquired - 208 2032 -

Comsideration vransfered - 1271 0B3) -

Goodwill arising on acquisition - (B2 847) -

A1 the date of acguisition, the assets ans Babifties af the subsidiary were lairly valued.

Inclicied In-the fair value of the assats is asset management contracts valued at

RI95 £60000,

The difference between the assets and liabilities of the subsidiany, faicky valued, and the

consideration paid gave rice to gaodwill

Mot cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiarias

Consideraton paid in cash * 71048 T

Lezs: cash and cash equivalent halances acquinnd . |40 820 -

Tatal - [19 481) -

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the group

Lass for the year atiributable tothe asditioral business - 16 B85} -

Fevenue [or the year slbributabla 1o the additional business - 35 BB =

5B




Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries

|Registration Nussber: 1997/ 0006543,/06)
Annual Financial Statements far the vear enced 30 Jene 20315

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Fegures in R'00Ds 2015 1014 s 2014

% INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES [eontinued]
4.2 Business Combinations [continued)

Brooklyn Bridge Office Park Proprietary Limited
acquired 5% of the company mn the prior year |13 Masch 2674

Braokiyn Bridga Ofice Park Froprietary Limites, which halds property for the purpeses of
oarning rertal and capital appreciation, was acquired as the Brocklyn Bricge Offsce Fark is
seen asone af the Grown's core assets and alse cue to the Group’s interest in Brooklyr fMall,

Consideration iransferred

Cash ' 46 000 =
tasue of Attacy Lid shares al & discout - EN BN
& TE AT =

Assets acquired and [Eabilities recognised at the date of acquisitian

Mon-currant agsets

Property, plant and aguipmant = 25 =

Inwestmant progerty - 509411 -

Straight-line lease debitors . 25 404 -
5 b7 B4 -

Current assets

Tratde and other recalvabiles - el i

Deferred leasing charges - 1526 -

Cash apd cash equivalents . 4701 -
- T 1k -

Mon-ourrent liabilities

Lang termn Gabilities - 144l Bod) -

Current liabafities

Trade and olher payabies 3 I B42) .

Fair walue af identifiable net assets acguired - 183 430 -

Fair walue of presiowsly held equity interest - (63 5151 -

Consideration transfarred = (?P6:132) -

Gain on bargsin purchase arising on scguisition . 23783 "

The gain on bargaln purchase arose due 1o the increase in fair value of the mvesimant

progerty, This increase in fair walue 15 8 direct result of vacanoes that were filled and achievng

markes relased rentals from the date of the pontract to the eFectiee date g5 defined = IFRS 7

Busimess Cosmbinadions .

et cash outflow on acquisitien of subsidiaries

Cansigeration paid in cash = A6 ODE =

Less: cash and cash eguivalent balancas acquired E {4 701) -

Total - 41 299 .

impact of acquisitions on the results of the group

Prafit for the year attribatatde to the addition 2l businacs - To33 .

HAevenue far the year attributable to the additional business - 13 148 .

54



Attacqg Limited and its subsidiaries
|Registration Mumber: 1997/000543/06)
Annuzl Financial Statements tar the year onded 30 luna 2035

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Figures in R'000s 2015 014 2015 2014

5 INVESTRMENT IN SUBSIDHARIES [continued |
9.3 subsidiaries disposed

Atterbury Parkdey Consortium Proprietary Limited

Disposod of the Growp's 100%: sharehalding in the carmpany in the prior year {20 August
14013,

asterbury Farkdey Consoctiun Proprietary Limited, which was held for purposes of esrming
rental and vapital appreciation, was disposed of as It was considered nol te form a part of the
core business of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash - 1243 =

Dhelba Property Fund Lnrted units - A0 800 -

Total = 47 (043 =

Assets disposed and liabities derecognised at the date of dsposal

Maon-current aEsEts

inwpstment progarty - R -

Straight-line leasa debitor - 1163 .-
- 136048 -

Currant azsals

Cash and cash equivalents = 458 &

I'rade and other receivables - L5 -
= 4550 -

Non-currant [babilities

Long-term liabilities = |2 oA} i

Ceferred tax liahilites - {34 035} -
5 {106 124} ¥

Current Habilities

Trade and other payables = 13 D42) =

Fair welue of identdiabla net azseds disposed o J1E32 =

Constderation transferrod = (42 043) -

Loss an disposal = [1D211) -

Met cash inflow on disposal of subsidiarines

Consideration recelvedin cash i 1743 =

Lesg: cash dnd cash equivalent balances disposed - {4 458) -

Tatal - {3 21g) -

e Wille Shopging Centre Proprietary Limited

Desposed of 100 of the company on 31 March 2024,

e Wille Shapping Centre Proprietary Lemited, whicl was hald far purposes of parning rental

and capital apprecaation, was disposed of 5 it was considered not Lo form a part of the core

busiress of the Group.

Cansideration transferred

Cash - HE T -

Azcots disposad and liabilities derecognised at the date of dspesal

Mon-current assets

Praperty, plant and equiparant - 37 =

Current assets

Trade angd athes receivablas = 14a7h =

Cash and casth equivaients - 2 868 =

Mon=current assets daisified as held for sale = 275 963 =
- 230 506 -

Mon-ourrent Rabilities

Creferrnd tax liahiktins - 3 TA9) -
E [EREH x

Current Habilities

Trade und nther payables - |3 04| -

Mon-current liahitities held diromily asseoated with assets bald for sale - (4] =
= [2 505] =

Falr walue of identifiable net assets dispoied . 120 84% =

Consideratian traaslarred - {203 771) =

Profit on dispasal - 13078 .

—_—_— ==

et cash inflow on dispossl of subskiiaries

Cansigeration receved in cash - 203 771 =

Less: cash and cash equivalent nalances disposed 2 (2 BiEa) -

Tol . 200 903 =

ED
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Attacqg Limited and Its subsidiaries

(Rogistration Mumber 1537/000543/06]

annieal Finardial Statements For the yeas epded 30 June 2015

Befer to note 37 far the fair velue disdasure of the above ineestments.

B2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figuras in R'000s 2015 2014 2015 2014
10 OFHER INVESTMENTS
Balance at the beginning of the year L2370 EUE L] A58 436 L]
Additons aare 47 358 5115 &1 EaY
Fabr walup adjustment (58270 LT ARG {65 768) 471 a6k
Resarsal of impairment loss N Mmrea? = 264
Despasal |09 458) + {102 458)
Cress sharebalding acjustmeat 1i3 1
Transfer frominvestment in assaciates 39684 39 G
Balance an the end af the year a0k d14 523 750 334109 dhd 235
Reconciled a3 follows:
o 170925 434 23k 294 195 358854
Wet gain fram fair value afustment a1484 BG G 25813 95 503
402 414 523 750 33109 454436
Dther muestments comprise thie folipwing:
Afvican Land Investrments Limited
Halance at the Geginning of the year 137 566 - 137 686 x
Addtians - 105458 - 103 456
Dipasal (169 458} - 1108 A5E] B
Fait value adjustment {18 208} 1B 208 {18 208} 1§ 208
Balance at the end of the year A 137 6645 -~ 127 ESE
Rocondied as follows:
Canst 5 1 Ak - 108 A5
Met gaan from [sf valee adjustment : 18 208 . 18 208
- 127 BhA - 127 566
Reinprog Proprietary Limited
Ealance at the beginmag of the vear 5470 L 470 CATS gamg
Fair valug adpistmant 14 679) - L ETI) .
Balance at tha end of the year 200 5470 800 T
Raconciled a5 follows:
. 1] 2 2 - 1
Nett gain fram fair valug acgustmont TEE 5477 788 5477
300 5478 ®00 547
Attorbury Proparty Hpddings Proprigiany Limited
Transfer fram investment in assooates 35 6E4 = 34 GAd =
Fair value adjustment 16 439 - 16 438
Crogs sharefolng adpstment 1234 s = %
Bakance at the and of the yoar 37 357 = 56 123 =
EBecondied as follpws:
Coat 35 634 = 39 684
et pam Fronn Fair value adjustment 17673 - A6 430 ”
57 357 - 56 123 -
Stenham Eurppean Shopping Centre Fund Limited Iz hesd through Foregn Investmenl Allcwances:
Investes Spcuritios Limilted
Ealange at the begnning af the vear 151 168 52 900 &1 853 52800
Additions 2744 TPE1 1487 2204
Fair vatue adiistment {7-637] - 4 135}
Reversal of impairment loss - 20 647 - 16 T0a
Balaro at the end of the year 146275 151 268 79 105 £1863
Recomclled as follows:
Cost 157330 154 586 S0 701 E3 214
Mel gair frarn fair value adjustment [&1 1]'55) 112 418] 131 436] |7 351)
136 275 151168 T2 205 ELE53
Sagfin Limited
Balance at the beginning of the yaar 138 439 - FELE R .
Additipng 3728 160181 3728 160181
Fairvalie adjustment 145 185, 70258 (45 185) 0 2En
Balance at the end of the vear 187 9682 235439 197 482 FELEEE]
RAeconciled as fodlows:
Cost 163 209 163 181 163 909 160 1E1
Met gain fram Fair vaiue adpstment 34073 58 3073 TRI5E
147 9521 230439 197 982 230430
The effective and proportionate shareholding in the mvestments is as follows:
Aftican Land Investmanits Limibed - 12.43% - 1Xaask
Atterbury Propesty Holdings Propratary Lmited 10.00% 25.00% 10.00% 25.00%
Slenham European Shapping Centre Fund Limited [SESCF) 19,91% 19515 I503% 16.03%
Rainprop Froprietary Lemited 1.50% 1505 1.50% 150%




Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
[Repistration Mumbies: 18687/000543,/05)
Annual Finarcal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in RO00s 2015 014 2015 1014
11 PEFERAED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The balances comprise:
Deferred fan assels
+ Tax lesses available for set off against future Lakable income 5653 5965 . -
*  Acquisilion in business combenaton (rafer 1o nege 8.1) 14 515 - =
*  Other EELH] 563 =
13819 11570 . :
Recandfiation of deferred tax assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 11570 5103 -
o [Reverdng) aoginating temporary differences on Lax Insses available for sat off apainst fuw e
tamadha Income (312} 1522 -
= Ovignating on aCqueisilion = busingss comaination 14 515 3 -
= (Reversing) arlgsnating temporary difference on other movements 15944) 1345 -
18 829 11570 -
—mieeeem T
Thie Groug recognied the deferred tax asset as the future taxable profits deemed sufficlent to offsel
tax losses
Deferred taw liabilitios
o Inwestment progerty {1384 723) {1023 #83) 120.233) (35 955)
o Lpraight-ling leaze debtor {124 342) 190 2686) [1327) 14 271}
= Tak lsses availabhe for set off against future takable income 331682 220623 = -
*  kairvalug on investments 5457 118 050} (637 643} {500034|
= BAS agterskot recelvable {56 329) - {56 325%) 12683
= MRS pquity 3ccounting deferied tanation 134 955 - = -
s fuded rranagement agrocments (refer ta nols B {76135} 181 553 - -
+  Other temporary dfferonges 126 803) 52 636 (24 1548) (5 25L)
[1 365 B68] 1200 E11) [ 7300 1532 B1E)
—_— e
Raconclliation of deferred tan hability
Balante at the beginning of the year {200 B13) {795 0ER) {532 B18) 1361 358|
+  iDviginating| reversing temporary difference on mvestment progerty {361 010 (107232 15722 24329
= (Originating] reversing lemporary difference on straight-line lease dabgor 134 1561 |33 a51) il T8
= Originating temporary difference on tax losies svaiable for set off against future taxable
incame 111054 Bh 90 -
= Reversing [odgnating) temacrary diffarence on revaluation of investments 24 037 (12 053 {137 509] 238 T53)
= Originating temporary fifference an MAS agterskot recesvable 156 329 {5%.022) -
= Driginating tem porafy difference an MAS squety accoenting defesrad {34 55} - -
= Reversing [originating) temporary Eference on aseot management agreenents 5E1E [£1553) .
= [ongnating) reversing other termgorary differences |115°'521] 66 315 {1857 12 206
Balance at the end af the year |1 365 858) 1500 87110 {733 730} {R32 A18}
Uze and sales tax ratg
The deferred tax rare applied to the fair value sdjustinents of investment proparty and fnancial asset
Is daterminad by the expecled manner of rocovery, Where the expected recavery of the investment
property oo finantal acsets 5 thraugh sale, the capital gains tax rate of 18,6488 (2014, 18 648%) is
used. Il the expected manner of recovery 5 through definée use the normal tax rate of 28% {2014;
185} is applied. i the mzanes of fecovery = partly through pse and partly thicugh sale, a
casrbination of capital gains rate and normal tax rate is used.
Ihe applicatds tax rates on timing differences are based oo managament's best estimate of the
maniner ircwhich these timing dfferences will reabse
Gains in the fair vaue of invastiment property give rise 1o Taxshla timing diffeences, being the
difference between tho original cost prce and the fair value as determined annually by external
wiers Rafar to note 5 for valuation dejasls
fodeferred tax asser to the amount of R25 DBE 015 {2034: kNl ) is nat recognized for AZ3 600 053
(20324 AN, @ portion of the estimated assossad Ioes in Miguwtown Praperty Develoomant Company
Praprietary Limitad
12 TRADE AND OTHER RECETWABLES
Trade seceivailes 35731 5§12 EXH 137
Muniipal rec=ivabiles 21073 E - -
Deposits 11 854 12 157 & 112
ther receivables 56 310 104 023 4631 5314
Fropayments 18287 - - -
Waldys Apded Tex T8 532 47 2121 am 111
Proveision for covbtlul debts (7 350| 11 7221 - 151}
233 084 167 302 sToz 6928

Thie lair walue of deposits, other recevabdas, and trade receivables are deomed to bethe same a5 the
carryirg value

&3




Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration Mambar: 1597000543 /046)
annuai Fiancial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in R'000s 2015 2014 2015 2014
12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES {continwed)
Trada ard recetvablas that are past due buat not impaced 17631 13464 3354 272
Trade and ather recelvables age aralyss exclugiag amounts impaired and provided for
= Carrant 14 750 2536 40 14
= A0 0Eys 8510 =13 Z 541 225
» B days 3362 231 E i ] 13
= A0 days LATE 575 e 14
= 130 days and mone 531 1637 2492 )
1 Bery L EI2 2611 337
Trade receivables that gre past due, considered to be impaired and pravided tar T 350 11N - 1511
323m 3900 3611 JRE
Movement In the provishan for doubtful debt
Cpening batance 1732 1877 El 1 504
Enpirment losses raised GA3S B5 3 i
impairment losses reversad {1207 (2240 {51} (1 B04)
T35 172 - £1
——
the crpation and release of prowision for goubiful sabt have been Included in operatng @xpenses n
the statement ol comprehensive meome. Amourds charged to the allowance account are generally
writhan off when there s no expactation of recoyering additienal cash
I comsadering any impairments on debtor accounts, the Group takes into account deposits held, bank
puarantess Issued by the deblor, additioral sureties provided by the grincipals of the debbors and
rumning credit chesks on debtars and their prncipals.
Mo materia’ coneentration af credit fids exiit
13 OTHER FINARCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Mes-curment assets 102 993 - 50 TEY -
= Loans 2nd receivailes 43 155 5 A8 ?_55 E
»  Derivative financial instruments 53 738 - 1532 -
Current asseds 547 282 6173 402 §17 B 502
= Loans and receivables 5AT 921 8173 43 56 E173
= MAS agtersiat 355 3461 155 361
= Dernative financial instruments - = = 2329
Other finandal assats 1010275 5173 453 404 E 502
Non-purrent liabilites {28 086} [45 D26} [3 270§ (10 158)
+ Loans and payables I- - ] | - | | - | [ -
+  Derivativa financlal instruments {28 DBE] (48 DIE| (3270} 10 158)
Current fabilitas (113 258] {5 B51) (1128} |5851)
*  Loans and payables {106 653] 1S B51) [1 128} |5 831)
v [erivatees financial instrements {6 558) - - -
Cther financlal llabllities [141 344) [53 B77] |4 398} [16 009)

The MAS afterskot relates to the realised performance of Karos Investment Furd 5. A, SICAY-5IF ("Karoo®) which Attacg sold to MAS in the 2014 financiat year, The agterskot will be
settled onthe earlier of the fund termination date o before 32 January 2016 by the issue of new MAS shares, priced in terms of 1the Eurg eguivaleant of the 30 day velume weighted
Fverage price of MAS shares on the J5E at ezch of the anderlying Karos redempton dates. As 31 30 Juna 2005, the astirmated fair value of the agrerskal was €26 378 517 [2004: M|

Refer to note 35 for the IFRS 13 information and to nate 37 for tha fair value mformation
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Attacqg Limited and its subsidiaries
|Resgivtration Mumber: 1597/ [0053.3/0E)
annual Financial Statements far the year ended 30 June 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP

COMPANY

Figures in f'000s

05

2014

2015

2014

16 CASH AND CASH EQULNVALENTS

{ash and cash equialents
Bank tverdiadl

The Growp, thraugh Attacg and AWIC, have overdraft Facilitios to thie amoent of R100 malliza
12014 R10G million ) and R10E miflion (2014: BMil) respectively with Nedhank Limited. The
owerdraft facilities bear interest at Prime {1014: Frime).

The Group, throwgh Attacg, has an owardraft fscity to the amount of B20 million [2014; RRO
millin) with $tandard Bank Limized. Standard Bank Limited had & mortgage bond aver
waterfall land parcel 104 a5 security which has besn released in the current linaacial year. The
overdraft facility bears interest at Prima less 0.58% [2014: Prime loss 1.0%],

Unutifised facilities as a1 30 June 2015 amounted to R200 millian.
17 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The following sulsidiany, #ssociates and loans 1 dssaciates are presented as held for szle
Imunstment in associates and retsted Ioans:

*  Bageprop Limited [$9.9%)

= tdall of Mairities at Hagatelie Lirated (49, 95)

heall of Mausitivs et Bagatels Limited (42.9%)
Sharehalders's loan to Mall of Maoritius ot Bagatalle Limited

»  Bithopsgate Holdings Limived (30005%)
= Rapfund Haldings Froprietary Limited (26, 75
Investnsent in Subdidisies and related bans:
= Atterbury Mauritius Cansortium Propeietary Limited {8000%)

Total non-current assets classified as held foe sale

A5 deseribed in note 8, the Group plans to dispase of I£5 49.9% nterestin bath Mall of
Mauritius at Bagatelle Limited and Bagagrop Limdted and anticipates that the dispassl will be
completed during the 2016 fmancial year. The Greug is currently & acgotiations with the
potential Guyer aid the directon of the Group expect that the fairvalue less cost to sefl of the
interast in the assoliates will Debower than the sgiregate canrying amount of the ralated
intprast in $he agsormates. Theeofore, 2 fairvalue fass of 61 074 4462 was recognised in “Fair
Walue Adjustrants” in the statement of prafit and Ioss

The Company plans to dispose of s B3% inferest in Allerbury Mauritivs Conaortium
Proprietany Lisited and anticipates that the dispesal will be cormpletéd during the 2016
Financial year. The Graap is corrently in negetiations with the petential buyver and the
derecions o the Company expect that the fair value less cost to sell af the interest in the
assoclates will be lower than the agprepale carrging amoant of the related interat in the
associates. Tharefore, previous gams recagnised in other comprehensive incone of R38 242
143 was revarsed,

The inwestrents held for sake as detailed abowe, fafms part of the Head office / other segment
detalled in nate 38,

The non-current asset classitied as beld hes Sabe in the priar year reldtes to the Growp's
interest in Rapfund Holding Progrietary Umited which was disposas in July 2004,

18 ETATED CAPITAL

Authorized
% billion graenary e par valee shares (50142 2 billlon erdinary no par w3los sharas),

Essued

Trdlinasry no par value shares

Reconciliation of shares Bsued in Rand valua:
Share copital

Batance at the beginning of the year
Isse of par value shares
Fssae of par value shares - agjustment

Conversion of par value shares to ng par value shares

Share gremium
Eatance a1 the haginning af Eha year

lavue of par value shares
Issuie of par value shares - sdjustmert

Convarsizn of par value shares tono par walue shares

TAT 145
{13 244)

AR5 32831

253087
(39 249)

HGASE

727706

359263

233 748

216553

462023
18391

1mary
12414

2B 027

135 BdG

1B7 BSE

84 241

138 846

187 E58

5435 419

57398 Sa3

6 &12 504

£ 1711930

45

143

51

fal

45
(aa)

53
(53

2 1599 549
573 55
1135 359}

2 B8 003
574 8495
1135 3549)

2640°175
{2640 175}

3 351635
{4 281 Ba5)




Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
[Hagistration Mumbes 194 7/000543,/06]
Annual Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2015

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in 8'000s 015 2014 2015 2014
18 STATED CAPITAL [continued)
Stoted copfhal
Balamce at the beginning of the year 5 TOE B43 - 6 171 630 -
Conversion of par value shares to ne par value shares o 1640211 = 2151 5E8
tssue of mo par value shares Bl 576 11804932 BA0ETS 2542 Gaz
Ehace buy-back - [22 300 - 123 300)
&439 419 5 798 843 6812 505 B171 930
HAeconciliation of number of sharas issued:
HArpormed st tha begnning of the yvaar 717 393 147 522 980 BES r 3-53 147 522 089 BES
Fasue of share capital durieg the year 0038 B30 257940 345 2GS B 194 401 262
Ae-acquirnd and cancalled during the yeas * [a3 537 083} -
TATAIZTITT 717 553 147 TAT 432717 17 393 147
Adjusted far tresiury shares held:
&ttacy Retail Fund Proprigtary brmibad (28 726514} 139 726 5160 - -
Rargrbal Fropertias 91 Proprietary Lenstad [16 700 D37} {16 700 037} - -
TOU 985 224 470 BEL 354 J47 422977 (REELERTH
In terms of a general autharity to ssia shares for cash passed by sharehodders at the last
anrual general meeting, a mazimem of 70093 523 shares were placed under the conteel af
the board at thes diseretion. Thidis subject (o compEanoe wilh the Comgany's memarandum
of Incorporation, the Companies Act and the J5E Lstings Aeguirements, This authority &5 valid
Far the shorter of 15 months o until the nest annaal general mesting. &5 31 year end, na
shares have been issued in terms of this authariey.
4 742 3T ordinary shares [2014: 180 838 136) wera placed undar the contrad of the
directors in terms of a rescluticn passed at the last annual general meeting, pravided that any
allotment or issue is subject to a magmmam discaunt of 5% af the weighted average trad ed
price on the ISE of those securities ovel the ther agreed mumber of business days orior 1 Lhe
allgtment, ssue or dispasal or the date that the price is agreed, as the case may be. This
avthorety s valid until the nextannual general maeting. At at year end, no shares have kaen
sued o terms of this authoring.
In terms of an ordinary resalution 8t the last annual general maeting, the board may, subjec
ta the Companics Act and J5E Listings Reguiraments, allot and ssue shargs pursuant to th
Attacn Long-Term incentive Plan as approved &t the meeting.
In terms of a special resalution &t the last annual general meeong, the board may, subgect ta
thie Campany's memosandum of imcorparation and the Companies Act, suthorise the
Compary to gllol and isiue shares to the Company's directoss (present and future| and
prescribed officess [present and futwre) garsvant to the Attacg Long-Tam incentive Flan &
approved atthe meoting,
19 SHARE-BASED PAVMEMNT RESERVE
Opening balance 83317 5 ARE 83317 5 AZH
Purchase of investment in Attacg Waterfall Investment Company Froprictary Limited from
Trinsam Trust . 11 586 E 11 586
Purchase of Attacq Retsil Fund Propristary Limited shares from dedbank £ 54 159 L] 54 158
Becognition of share options expense frl] 7084 - ToEe
Hecognitinn af long teem incentives and retenton allocations PRpense 318 - - =
Contribution to subsidiany - - 7042 -
20359 £3 317 80 359 83317
Reconciled as follows:
Share-based payméarts T4 Y T 45 20 74y
Share options 19198 135 12572 11572
Lo term incentives and retentan allocotions cepense 318 E s =
Contristion to subsidiary 5 < 7042 R
o] 359 B3 17 40 358 81 327
Share-based payments
Parchase of Attacg Retail Fund Froprictary Limited shares from Nedbank CBmited = 58§54 e L4 159

Acmulsitien of 18.05% In the issuad share capital of Attacy Retall Fund Proprietary Limited
from Nedbank Limtted, resulting In an IFRS 2 charge of R5% 155 835 dus to the increase in the
share price of Attacg subsequent ko the agreement of commeral terms with Nedbank arior
b Fisting on 14 October 2013, Subseyrenl Lo lisling, Lhe share grice al which the apreed
nurnber of chares were Issued upon impiernantation of the acquisition on 25 Novembar 2013
was R14.50 35 opposed to the contractually agreed ssue price of A11.63,
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
[Registralion Number: 1967 0000543/06)
Annual Financizl Statements for the year ended 30 line 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP

COMPANY

Figures in R'O00s 2015 2014

204

10 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT RESERVE
Share-hased payments [continued)

Purchase af investment in Attacg Waterkall Investment Comoany Proprietany Lmited from
Tiingaem Trust - 11 5B&

11586

This armaunt 7eprasents the Fair value of the sgrersioot payment ta be paid 0 Trinsam Trust n
respect of the acquasivmn of & 1.325% stake in Attaoq Waterfall lvestment Company
Fropaigtary Lmdted from the Tringam Trust, deterrmmed with referance 10 the sitimated
future development prafits 12 be earned by Attacg Walerfadl Invesumait Campary Proprietary
Limited up to ard including 30 June 2030, present valyed at a rate of 28%

The future development profits will be determined with refarence to valuations of the

oo pheled deweleprments a5 detennined by an ecternal waluer, less the related costs of
development escalated at prime frem the date of completion to 30 June 2020, In respect of
any develepments completed and sold prioe ta 2020, the develapment profit will be
gatermined with reference to the acfual disposal praceeds, less the relatad costs of
teveopment escatsted from the dote of completian of the developmant to the date of saks,
and the profit oo detarminad will ke acalated ot the prime interest rate from the date of zale
1o 30 mine 2020

Share options
Mavements in nurber of share 0plEons during the yaer is &5 follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year -ﬂ-ﬁl’ﬁq.l:lu 000 Q00

aranted during the year 500 000 A L35 05
Fxercised during the vear |00 ooo) (800 G05)

AHIE 000
500000
(400 000

ERHEGLH
3525 (00
[BOO DO

Balamee al the end of the year 4 535 60D 4 B35 000

4 925 000

4335 0O

The above share options were exércised an 14 Movember 2024 ot a price of B850 (2014 28
August 2013 ata price of AS.58).

Eey employees, expected o have an impact on the company’s future performance, were
olfered chare options as part of the share mcentive scheme.

For allgrants mace after 21 December 2012, B0% of the share cations will vest in the third
year after grant date, 1% of the opticns will vest in the fourth vear and the final 20% will vest
in yedr 5. The employee has & months after vesting date to eaergise his.or her gptions.

Thefirst grant, made on 21 December 2012, differs from the subsequent grangs since It vests
irregual portions ower the 5 years following the grant date, There is no matunty date by
which the options need to be ensrcded,

Long term incentive plan {"LTIP's") and retention allacations
Meovernents in number of LTIP's and retention sllocations during the year is a3 follows:
Balance at the beginning of tho years

Granted durng the year 475 000
Frercized during the year s

425 000

Balance al the end ol the yvear 425 030 -

425 000

The LTiP's were granted on I8 Juna 2015, For the LTiP's, no perlormence con ditions are
appheahis to particlpants receiving less thar 10 D00 grants. Fmancial and non-firancal
performance conditions are apphecable to participants who caceived 10 000 urits or more
Bath conditions are treated as non-market andmans ander [FRS 2

Financial parformance conditians apply to 70 of the benefits, Non-financial performante
conditions apply to 20 of the kenefits. The percentage of benefits that wosts (a5 quetad
Bl i that pereantage of 10% for Transharematian and 20% Foe Dewelopanent Roil Dk
conditkans

Retention allocations were granted cn 21 karch 2015 and 1 April 20315, The retantsan
sllocations were pranted as parl of an emplayment package and are desmed 10 have baen
granted on the liest day of emaloyment, These will vest taly if the empleyee has reraing in
the smployment of attacg far & peried of 3 years "esting period”}.
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Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
|Registraticn Mumber: 1952 0E1543/06]
Annal Financiad Statesments for Lhe year @nded 30 une 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Flgures In R'000s 2015 s 2015 20148
21 FINAMNCE LEASE OBLIGATHIN
Majestic Offices Proprietary Limited 5103 5009 - -
Mieuwtawn Froperty Development Comoany Proprietary Limited 67575 51400 - .
TR SE009 = =
Thee figures ahowe are reconciied s follows:
Majestic Offices Propr y Limbtad
tessar: Oy of inhornesburng
Minimum fease payments dus
= within one year 217 120 -
= imthe cecond to e Filth year, inclusiee 1157 1342 -
o later than free years 1B 282 19942 -
15676 11559 '
tess fubure finance chargas [1a ST3) 16 545] .
5103 5000 = =
Present valun of minimum lease payments due
= later than flwe vears 5103 5009 - -
—_— =
Mon-current abddies 5103 & 00E g
The Group, thepugh a subsidiany Majests Offices Proprietary Limited, entered inte a
finance lease agreement with the City of lohannasourg for 2 4% year lease an el 581,
Feewtomn, bohannesburg.
The effactrie finanoa leage starting date was 3 February 2011 with the basic monthly
Instalrment starting at AL5 000 (escalating at 8% compounded anneally), Onee the
developmient is cornpleted the basic rental changes will be the higher basic manthiy
instalment or 5% af rentad Ingome for the year
Nipuwtown Property Development Compamy Proprietary Limited
Lessar; City of Jphannesborg
Minbmiem lease payments due
= within ane yess 1085 ) -
& i the secand to the filth vear, inclisioe 5325 B 330 - -
= later than five years 13047 485 11 25E 063 -
13053 =07 11 265 213 =
Less future financa charges |12 98§ 332} (131 214 213) E
&7 575 51000 - -
Fresent value of minimum Iraps payments dusp
*  later than five yeprs 67 575 51000 - -
Mon-current liahifitios E7 575 S1000 =
The Group, through 3 subsidiany Niewatown Propery Development Coenpany Progiietany
Lemited, entered into a finance lease agrepment with the City of Johannesburg for 2 %0 vear
lease on Erf 45, 86, 47, 56, 57 and 58 Mewtoan, Johannesburg.
The effective inance lease starting date is 16 Suptesnber 2010 with the basic monthty
mstalrment starting at RES 500 [escabating with B} compoundad arnoaliy| Once the
deeplopment is completad the rentzl payvable & the greater of the basic manthly irstalifent
arthe turmaver ront for the financial year concerned. Turnowar rental is determined a5
lollowes: 1.755% of rental income for year 1-30; 1.9% of rental incama for yaar 33 to &0 and
% of rental Income lor year 61 10 50
Redar to note 5 for a further description of the investment prapearty.
42 TRADE AND QTHER PAYABLES
Trace payallas B4 551 240 200 6053 2 960
Accruals 1i7 628 95170 14 052 FhEM
Daposits helg 38 3-93 Iila 3120 6191
Rental income recelvied o adeance 19 396 9762 1r14 17
Value Acded Tax ihad 5% 3 &
A6 636 375360 24 4TE 3598

The fair value of trade payables, deposits neld, armaunts recoived in advance and sundry
pavables gra deamed to Be the same a3 the car ying wilue.

Trade payables indude amounts due refating to buildings ander construction

accrualinglude amaunts relating ta manicipal accruals on the imvestment properties,

81




Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
[Registration Mumber: 1857/00054 3406
annual Financial Statemants for tha year ended 30 June 2015

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in B'D00s 2015 2034 2015 2014
33 PROVISIONS
Leave pay provisian 142 .
Prevision for payment of prafit fram Majestic Ofices Froprietary Limited - G487 -
Arovision for payment of profit from Neuwtown Progerty Development Proprietary bS5 -
142 10142 £ -
—— o —_—
The gravidan redating to leave pay for the current year, was ralcodated based on the actual
leave day: autstanding at 34 lune 2015 at the hourly rate per emplovee.
The prouision refating to Majestic Offices Proarietary Limiteg and Miewwtown Propearty
Cevelopment Proprietary Umited in relation to the Nedbank profit share in the prior year
wias settled inthe current year,
24 DPFERATING PROFIT IS STATED AFTER INCLUSION OF THE FOLLOWING:
Dtharincome
Sundry inmams 19391 a7 314 BOTL 8320
Fareign eachange gain &5 619 - 53205 155854
Agsgt and property managemens fes Income - - 15 076
Profit an disposal of subsidiaries . . 3047
Profit on dispesal of obher investments and aisociates £ 161 3444 1373 .
Profit {losston disacsal of investment groperty 3199% 8567 - 12 64 2)
Aervarzal ol impatrment of invesimant in associxte 11l - 16525 -
Revarial of provisian for liabilities refating to associabes 7255 - 7 265 5 657
Had defat recovered ag - B2 =
Operating and other expenses
Auditees' resmuneratinn {5 307) (6370 [11| £ 103}
Sad debt writtan off {a4E] (1662 . 230}
Exefuutive directors' remineration [note 31) {1 o} {7834} {4 557| 17 R34}
Men-gmeculive directors' remunaration [note 31| |3 281) (3 38 {2 56 {3 89|
Staff experses (36 196 0BT {6 1812] [Z0r&51)
Marketing (10 0%5] 112 09} !dﬂ'ﬂ] (7481
Impasmaent of loans [10851) (5 TTa) [10 BS5) 146771
Impairmant of imvestments - - [!1{1?5] (263 005
Goodwill written off (105 670) .
valuation fees [180) 1E77] . ESR]
Loss on disposal of subsidiany . {143 255) -
Logs on dispasal of mvastrments . (65 150 - 165 1500
Share-basen payment expenses {Foa1) (E& 2431 - 166 243)
Exponsing of final payment on Lennwaod Brigge Office Park Procrietary Limited 11 674} {13031) {12.674) {13 031)
Expensing of final gayment on De Ville Shoppae Cente Proprietary Lmited - 12135] - [2335)
23 INVESTMENT INCOME
Dividend incame 28 644 REG 212 T45 140 494009
Bhuidand - Logal 11 687 126 748 EEEC14 521 545
Dhvigdends - Fpreign 15957 2T 464 56 226 27 64
Interest incoma 113 gEY G8 Sg4 1885 257 170109
GIOUG COMmpanies T2 4476 160 508 bETTAEE
Bank FLE 15 8536 23803 17 258
Other mterpst 12278 4 00 1945 2752
142 531 224796 530357 718118
26 FINANCE COSTS
Bark overdialt 137 1767 (il 1751)
Intercampary loans - - - 15721
hartgage bonds {625 173) |3E8 E27 62 645} {63 782)
Cither {2 692} 1145 75| (743} |140 288}
Cerivative financial Ebilities [57 270) {ES 753) {18327} (1130
(685 &72) {582 123) {76 724} (223 283)

B2




Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries

[Registragion Number: 1997/000543/05)
Annual Financial Statemants fos Lhe year ended 30 Juita 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMBPANY
Fipures in 70005 2018 2014 2015 2014
27 INCOMIE TRX EXPENSE
Major components of the tax espense (Induding other comprehenskye Incame)
Curfent
Current tax {r5 28z} {63 508 |BE 81] [50 565
Local incameé tax - current peraad 154 A0}, {73 718 {4E 3601 |60 776]
Local incame tax - prier perind [under) gver provision {18 623} 107211 (18 ﬂ-?.a] 10 211
Deferred
Criginatirg end reversing temaorany differonces {458 503 {165 #52) 1 EE8 801 1171 4600
Deferred tasation {285 755] {145 G48) i3 903y 107 457
Tarzalicel relating to companents of other compreheniive income ﬁ]iS}] (21 204) 1139 [ F] 1278 %17
{534 191) {239 360) {295 783) {222 pas)
Reconciliation of the tas expense
Applicable tax rate 28.00% 18.00% ZE.D0% ZEO0%
Adjusted for:
s Mon-deductible expendsture 0.734% Las% .
& Mon-racable income receivied {.880) [11.&78) 112.57%) 15455}
= Fairvalue adjustments (B00H) 270, (L7235 1B.765%|
»  Provision for impairment of investments f8a%) 1.3E% 0.09% 156%
= Prior pefiod adjustrent 047 (3.85%} 1.38% 10.71%]
=  Deferced Lax acquired 1..'51_’_.5 "
» Daferred bax assat mat recognised 1.18% &
«  Cither TR 1008 5985 315%
;Em 17.89%% 18.91% 13.75%

B3
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Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries

|Registration Number: 1997/000543,08)
AnrAual Financial Statarmente lor the yaar anded 30 June 1015

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Fegured in R'000s 2015 2018 2015 FLE
2% CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACT IVITHES
Profit belore tasation and ather comprehessiee inesre 2137185 1335 360 1485461 1614 E85
Adjusted for:
Inwesstrmend incarme [113 A7) {BE A%} [1B5'257) (170 Loaj
Uividend incame (28 B24) {a5G 113} [745 140) [543 J039]
Fimance casty BHS 870 ERX 122 TE 714 215 363
Depreciation 4 106 Aaad 174 1584
Arrartisation of intangibie ascat 20 303 14 E34 -
Orher nor-cash moeernerts 12 0r132) (66 EAL] 3983 -
Lezsk {prafit) on disposal of ather mvestments 1556] ES 150 - -
Prefit an disposal of assacizte (B 161) {7 a0 {1373} =
(Prafit]) Ipss on disposal of invastment gropermies (25 132) & 567 . SR
Gaim on availabie-for-sale financial assety - - (48 545)
[ Raversai of impanment lows b Impairment ks - other investments (100) 14 995 [l‘ﬁ 26} (26 704)
Impairment lass - associates 5 31 07% AR AT
Irmpairment lass - subsidiaries - - 143 155 A7 963
Fair valun to adjustment to athar investmarits {537 410) {104 950]) 1303 503) {97 4RE]
Fair valug adjustment to investment properties {1110 711) (919 0o4) [21 Ba5) 5540
Fair value adustment 1o other financial instruments (a8 0&5) 134 0%d) 14 25E] 16 0ES)
Falr value adjustments on investments in assoclates - 58044 1347 756)
Fair value adjustments oa investments in subsidiares - (i Blik) {1363 63d)
Fraksatan of mailzble-for-zale financial assets - A 95 545
Strasgnt line rental adjustment (172 600) (129 239) 10516 3040
Defarred inital lease expenditure E ) {1 144) a4 1494
Impairrent of leans 851 45 Gad 10855 all 195
Equity intarme Trom associates |50 564) 55 069 = -
Mavemnent in finance lesse hagilitby - [HE1]) - -
tayemant in provisions . 1 &858 - -
Movement In provision for Rabilities relating to associates 7 1E5) |63 510) {7 1E5) |62 51%)
Mowemnent in provision for Babilities relating to sebsidiaries - - - 116 129)
Impairment of goadwill 109 670 - - -
Share-based paymsnts 700z TP E3I0 = TTEI
Foreign currency franslasian effect &5 Big) 111 769 {53 295) -
Derecogrition af minority Interast . 206 386) - -
Cash generated by aperations before working capital changes 519 679 344 Bla 15005 191 12h)
{thanges in working capital:
Decrease in inventony - T 304 .
Decrapse (inciease] in accounts recemvabls {55 7B (3 922) (B 778) 16 4a?
Ineraase (decrease] i arcounts payable BES BIE 41 851 {12 443) {14 216!
650 572 503 04S 4788 [am274)
30 DFERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES
value of minimum lpase payments recaivabie
= within one year 1011725 70 63D 24191 a4 Gia
= inhe second Lo fifth year indlusive 14 068 600 2 B30 076 B2 ABR 130328
= dater than fes years 3102 728 2 335 051 I5075 izl
£183 053 5 265 26 121 ¥583 & 156
Leate pgreements are antered inlo with tenanis on varlable terms depanding an the lacation
and nature of the lettable area. The tease terms for office and industrad baildings are generally
longer than far ratal aotiets.
31 DIRECTORS' AND PRESCRIBED OFFFICERS' REMUMNERATION
Executive directors
MAC Wilken
«  Basic salany i 1247 BEE 2247
= Baonus 3188 1 RO0 1135 1 800
= Dapsfits 417 ar a5 &7
6 726 4114 1178 4114
M Hamirman
= HBasic salary 2100 1581 BT 1551
« Bonigs 2196 1375 75 1375
= Benafits 26 36 33 36
4983 1452 1475 2oay
LLS war der Watt
@ Basic salary B0 671 £59 71
+  Hanus 220 135 220 bt
w  Haonefis 22 18 2 18
301 TiE apl TIE
12009 7 834 4 552 T B34

The above are all short-term bengdits,




Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
\Registration Mumber: 1997/000543,/06}
Annual Financial Statesrants for the vear erdes 30 lune 2134

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in R'D00s 2015 2014 2015 2014
31 DIRECTORS' AND PRESCRIBED OFFFICERS REMUNERATION [continued)
LLS var per Watt served ac axecutive director unlil 30 June 2015 and Attacq paid a third of his
ExEckItE remineration. Efectivaly © luly 2015 e will serve as pon-execul lve directar an the
baard
Key managemant and prescribed officers
Made up as follows,
s Bas salary 2342 1344 705 1324
= Bonus - &30 - Bal
«  Eemefits 234 L 5 &)
2578 2024 71 2024
Ery maragament and prosoribed officers ware as foliows:
2015
& WoMulder - Sppeinted 1 Aggust 30714
s O Theron
= MW Clarnpett
2014
N Weir - Regigned 30 lune 2014
s 0 Theran - Appainted 7 june 3024
= M Clamaett
Dhurirg the current yeas, the Group was restructured, offective 1 Movervher 2014, From July
2014 to-Dotabier 2014 the directors were remunmerated by aftacg Limited. tfforten 1 Mavember
2014, &l Bxecutive girectons, prescribed officers as well as employess were remunsrated from
Attacn Managed Sardices Froprietary Limited {"AMS"), wholly owred subsidiary of Atacs.
Mon-execitive director - fees for services as directoes
AW Nauta 418 57 418 57
BF wan Niekesk - Besgned 27 Jure 2054 . 145 - 195
HE El Hairner ':!-‘2 187 EL 287
IHF wan dar Merwe 251 220 251 220
LM Mdzla - Resigned 30 April 2014 - 86 3 285
Ml du Toir 358 139 I5E 238
B Tradaus 713 B45 Ea3 a5
P'H Faure ELT] 255 40 2565
5 Shaw-Taylar LER 585 a3 =i
WL Masekela - Resigned 30 November 2014 144 31 144 321
KR Maoloke - Appainted 2 February 2015 127 . 127 -
IIB1 azap 2 -HoG aan

AW Mauta was appmnted a5 a director In &pril 2014 ard his fees were paid to Royal Bafokeng Holdings Pregrietary Limited umtl 30 April 2015, where after he was paid in his persanal

capacity.

JHP van der Merwe's lees are pail 1o Sanlam investrment Management Proprstary Limited

L& Mdaly resgred as non-executeee directer offactwve 30 2pril 2004 and his fees pasd during this perlod was paid o Mineag 08 and Gas Services Proprietarny Limiked

P Tredoux's foes are paid 1o Tredoane Fematy Holdmgs Fropristang Limited.

FH Fgure's fees are pald to Alkara 114 Progrietary Limited, BMF fnvestmenis Froprietary Urnibed and Mertech Investments Progrietary Lmnited,

BE



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
\Registration Number: 1993/000543./06)
Annual Financizl Statemants for the year ended 30 Jupe 1015

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMIPANY
Figuras In '000s 2005 Fei T 2015 2014
31 DIRECTORS AND FRESCRIBED OFFFICERS' REMUMERATION [contnuad)
Executive directors and prescribed officars
Share aptions granted to directors
W wilken
The board rasolved in Kovember 2312 10 grant M Wlkam 2 Q00 DO {Ewo millign} share
cntions that vecl aver a five year period in gqual Tranches. The first trancha vested on 30 june
201 3 and the final tranche will vest an 30 June 2016, Fod vesting to occur MO Wilken has ta
termain emaloyed as eecutive director
Each option converts Iako pne ordinary shara in Attacg Limited an ecercise, Mo amounts are
paed or payabia by the reciplent an recaipt of the aplion, The optiond casry peithes rights to
dividends nor vating rights Options may bie ewercised at any time from the date of vesting. The
exsrdise price of the options is ficed at RY 50 par share, Thera s nooption of cash settlement.
Summary of shara options granbed
Tatal number of optians 2000 2o 2000 & DOy
Less number of eptions that have vested [1 GO} 11200 11 00 (12000
A0 ao0 aon EOD
Recanciliation of outstanding options, not ynt exercisad
Dpening balance 400 BOD 400 200
ested duving the year A00 ADD 400 400
Exescited diering the year {aom (803} [400) (400}
A0 A1) L] 400
8 Harmeman
The board redsdved in Sugest 2073 to grant M Hamman 1 200 800 {ore mithHon vas hundrad
thousand) share cationd that west over a thres vear period from 30 June 2024, The optans
iz Be edercised a8 10 8% on 20 June 2026, 20% on 30 kine 2017, and 20% on A0 June 2018,
Far vestng 1o ocour B Hamman has Lo remain employed as exécutive doector,
Cach aption canverts irta ane ardinary share in Attacg Leitad on exercize. No amants are
paid ar payable by the recipient on receipt of the optan, The options carmy aether rights 1a
dividencs nor voling rights, Options may be exercined at any time from the date of vesting, The
Eeercise price of 1he options is faesd &t R9,50 per shars, There is no option of cash settiement.
Summary of share opticns
Tetal number of options granted 1200 1206 120 1200
Lass numier of options that have wested - - -
1200 13200 12300 1200
Anconcillation of outstanding optiens, not yer exerdsed
Caening halancs 1200 - 130
Granted during the yaar - 1200 . 12xa
1200 130 1300 1200
Prescribed officers
Thie beard resalved i June 2054 o grant 404 000 [foyr bundred thousand) share options toa
prescribed offices that vest aver a thres year period fram 30 June 2017, The pptans may be
enarcised 28 10 60% o 30 June X017, 20% on 30 Jure 2018, and 20% an 30 lune 2079, Far
vesting to eocur, the prescribed officer has o remain ersployed ai & prescribed officer.
The baard resalved in July 2014 tegrant 500 008 {five hundred thousane] share aptions toa
prescribed officer thak west over a three paar pariod fram 31 uly 2017, The optians may be
exercised & Lo B0% on 31 July 2017, 30% on 31 July 2018, and 2% on 32 July 2019, For vesting
1o occur, the grescribed offices has to remain smploved as & prajoribed offiosr.
Lach optian conwarts into one ordinary share in Attacq on exarcise. No amounts ane pasd ar
payable by the recipient on secespt of the ogtion, The options carry neither rights to dividongs
nor waking fghts. Options may be exercised at aniy tinse froan the daze of warlang The axercise
price of the aations 1= fieed 3t R135.25 per share. There is no option of cash settlement.
Summary of share options granted
Tatal mumbier of options granted aod 440 a0 400
Reconciliation of outstanding eptions, not yet exercised
Opening batance 400 . 400 -
Granted during the yaai 500 ac 1] 00
abn A 900 400




Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
L Ragistration Numaer: 1987 000543,/06)
Annua Financisl Statements for tho year ended 30 June 24015

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUR COMPANY
Fipures in R'000s 2015 034 215 a4
32 DOMMITMENTS
32.1 Shares pledged
Shares held by Attacg m MAS Real Estate inc, were pledged as secwrity inorespoct af :
obligations of A Intesnational Limited, 113 502 B2% -
Shares hiesd by Razorbill Properties 81 Froprietary Limited in Allace Limited were pledped as
security in respect of ohligations of Attacy Retall Furd Proprietasy Limited towards Medbank
Lirnide. - 16701 037 -
135502 6X8 1601 DAY -
32,2 Capital Commitments
Alveady contracted but not provided for
§  The'wisterfall lzase hold and devalzarnent fights relates 1o a asassurn of 1,752,488 o bulk
of property zoned for light Industrial, commercial znd retall use. Current costs committed are
far the installatian of servcas om various lend parcels oncthe Watarfall land and initlal
tevelnmen® crsfs 85708 B8 50 >
Costs committed are for the dfevelapment of tha M1 Sridpe and ancillary roads on Waterfal -
Land Parced 10, 125 465 - -
Oue to increased development activity and top strisctures reaching the compietion stage an
‘Walerfad - Land Parcel B, the surrsunding infrastructure has to be developed. 43712 20 166 -
The Growp enfered nto an agreement 1o develop an oHie and dstribution Facility an
‘Waterfall - Lardl Parcel 9 referred to as the “Hiltl Budding”, The building has been leased fo
Hilti and has baen recogrised a5 an myestmant praperty 1947 - -
The Groug entered inlo @n agréerment 10 develop an office and distribution Facility an
‘Watarfall - Land Parcel @ referred 1o as the "Servest Building”. The building has been leased to
Servest and has bean recognised 33 an Investment proparty 12:287 # *
The Group entered ity an agreemaent o develop an office and distribution Facidity. on
Waterfall - Land Parces 8 referred to s the "Stiyker Buildiag™. The building has been t=ased to
Strymer and has been recognised as an invesiment propery. 13673 = i
Geveinpment af the Julk earthwarks on wWaterfall < Land Parced 10 commenced during the
prioT yeas in préparation for the canstroction of varous refsd and commarcial buildings. 252412 54 2e8 .
The Graup éntered into an sgreament to develop an office building an Waterfall - Land Parced
10 referred to as the "allandale Bullding”, & portion of the buildiap has baen eased 10 3 thing
party and bas haen recognised as an mvastment proparty. 151 504 - -
The Group entered inte an agreement to developmignt an affice quilding pn Waterfall - Land
Parcel 15, ralerred 1o ac the “"Graup 5 Builefing ", The building has been k=ased ta Group § and
has bean recognised as an investment proparty, = Z 545 =
The Greap entered into an agroemant to dewelop an office and retail centre bullding on
‘Waterlall - Land Parcel 15, referred to s "Waterfail Lifestyle”. The building has been leased 1a
wariows third parties and has been recoznised as an investment property 4544 26465 =
The Group antered inta an agreement te geveiop an office bullding on Waterfall - Land Farcel
10 referred toas the "dawwel] Office Park - Golder Bulding”, for leasing purposes. The
Duilding has been leased to Godder and hizs been recognised as an investrment praperty, The
Growp has an effectivie 50% interagt in the developent. . 1184 »
The Groug enlered nta an agreement to develop an office building cn Waterfall - Land Parosl
10, referred to 35 the “Maxpwell Office Park - At House” The building has been leased o
rraltiple third parties and has been recognised as an invastment property. The Growp has an
affartive S0% mterest in the development, - 2877 -
The Group entered mo an agreement o develop an offe busiding o Waterfall - Land Farcel
10 relerrad 16 8 the “Maxwall Ofice Park - Premier Building”. The Graup has an effective 50%
intergsl in Lhe developavenl. The budding bes been lzased ta a third parly and has besn
recogaised as anirvestreent property, 1081 4567 -
The Groap ontered min an agreement to devalop an office bodding on Waterfa# - Land Parcel
10 referred to 2 the "Maowell Offioe Park - Handa Building” . The Gromp has an affective 0%
interast in e develapment. A postian of Lhe building has been lexsed to Horda and has besn
recognised as an investmant property. 1040 4455 F
The Greaip entared ko an agreement 10 develop am office baiiding on ‘Waterdalt - Land Parcel
1l referred to as the "Maowell Offica Park « Colgate Buikding”. The hisdding has been leased to
Colgate and has Deen recognised &5 an mvestment property, The Group has an elective 30%
interest in the devaloomeant 15972 =
Sub-tetal carried forwond EZ14TE 210418 =

EE
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MNOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATERMENTS

GROUP

COMPANY

Flguresin R'DO0s

2014

2ma

32 COMMITMENTE {cantinued)

32,2 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS {continued)
Already contrached bul not provided for
Sub-total braught forword
Thie Group entered nto an agreament 1o develap an affice bulidging on Waterfak - Land Fancal
10 referred to as the "Marwell Office Park - Mac Mar House®™, The building has been leased to
multipte third parnes and has been recognised as an investment property, The Group has an
sffective G0% intesat in the develroment

The Group eatered inte an agreement (0 develop an office buitding on 'Waledal - Land Parcel
10 referred ta as the "Maxwell Office Park - Magwa House®. The building Is being deweloped
an p speculatme basis with the intention to lease it to a thind party and will be recognised as
an investment property. The Group has an offective 50% interest i the development

The Groug entered inls an sgreament to dewelop a hetal on Waterfall - Land Parcel 10
referred to a5 the "Chy Lodge”, The building has been leased to D4y Lodge and has bpen
recognised as an investmient property,

The Group entéred inta an agreemeant Lo develop an office building on Waterkall - Lund Parcel
10 referred to as the "Navarts Buldiag”, The building has beer beased 1o Movartis and has
bean recognisan a5 20 Myastment propery.

The Geoup entered into an agresment te develop a retail centre on Waterfall + Lend Parcel 15,
referred o as "Waterfall cormer”. The ouilding has been leased to maultiple thied parties and
Ihas e radonized as an itvastaent praperty.

The Group entered mio an agresment fo develop an office beildmg on \Waterfadl - Land Farcel
10 referred to @y the “"Pel Towe'. The building has been lessed ta PwC and has been
recopnised as an imesstrent property, The Group has an efiective 755 interest in the
develcpment.

The Group entered into en agreement o develop sn office and distributon tacfity an
waterfall - Land Parcel B refesred 1o as the “Covidien Bailding”. The building has been leased
te Covidien and has been recognisad az an investrent praperty,

The Group entered ifto an agresment (6 develop an office and distribotion facilitty on
‘Waterfall - Land Farcel 9 referred tooas the “wWestcan Building®. The building has besan leased
1o Westcan and has besn recognsed as an invesiment groperty

The Growp enterad nto an apreenent 1o decelop a super-regional mall an Waterfall - Land
Parrel 10 referred o 85 the "Mall of Africa®, The building has been leased to varkgus thirg
parties and has been recognisod as an investment property. The Group has an offectve Bi'%%
12014 100 interest in the development.

The Group entered inta an agreement to develop an office and distribution facility on
Wateriadl - Land Pascel 22 relerred to as the "Angel Shack Building”. The building bas been
teased Lo Angel Shack and has been recognised as an investmenl progerty.

The Graup entered into anm agreement to develes an office and distribution facility on
Waterfall - Land Parced 22 referred 10 as the "Desger Building”. The bullding has been leased
o Drdger and has been recognized a5 an inwestment pooperty

The Group has ontered inta an agresment far the refushishment of Great Westerford
building, situated in Cape Town. The building has been lease to muedtiples thind parties and has
bsan retopnised a8 an inwasimant proparty.

The Group entered mio an agreernent 10 cevedop an olfice and distribution Facility on
Wateifall - Land Parcel 22 referred 1o a: the "Cummins Busldng”', The budding has been leased
to Cummans and kas been recognised as an investment progerty. The Graup has an effectivn
0% interest in the dewelopment

The Group entered intg an agresment to develop an retail centre in Windhoek, Namibia called
"TheGrove”. The Group hasa 27.5% |2014: 31 25%) interest in the developmeant

The Group @nlered o an agregment (o cevelop 3 retail and office centre in ohanneshung
CED; called Hisuwtown lunction. The developmeant in dona in two entifies namely Hiawsatmem
Proparty Dewvelepment Lampany Propoeetary Limited and 8ajestic Offices Froprietany Limited.
The Graup has s 55% (2014: 62.5%) interast in the develapment,

The Groug entered imto an agreement o deveiop @ hotel o johannesburg CRLE, known as
“Hewtown City Lodge’. The Group has an effective 55% (2014: 6Z.5%) mlersst in the
dewaloprmeanl,

The Growp entered mm an agreement 1o develop an office building In Protoria known a5
“Lynnwond Eridge Phase 37,

Sub-tofel carried forwerd
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATERMENTS

GROUP

COMPANY

Figures in R'000s

2015

2014

205

a4

£l

322

iz3

COMMITRMENTS (camtimuad]

CAMTAL COMPMITMENTS (continued)

Already contracted but not provided for

Sub-tetol brought farword

The Group entored in1o gn agreement 1o develap 2 retall centre In Stellenbosch anown 35
“Eikastad and Mill Square”, The Growp has 2 809 interess on the devalopmert,

e Gisup entered Ao an agreement 0 develapa retall centre In Stellenbosch known. as
“Andringa Wailk®. The Building has been leased to multiple third: parties and has been
relopnized as an mwestmeant property.

The Groug entered into an agreemeant to further develop the retail centre in Pretaria known
a5 "Erookiyn Mall®. The Groug has a 25% wterest in the development. The Building has been
lezsed 1o multiple third parties and has bean recofnised as an kvestmant oroperty.

The Growp antered into an agreement to develop a retail cantie iy Pretoria kenown as “The
Chubs Retail”. The Group has 3 33,74 (2014 29%) sterest inthe development

Approved but not contracted for

The Group has approved the deselcprent of an office and warehouse facimy on ‘Waterfall -
Lend Parced & The building will be isased to a third parpy and will be recopnisen as an
asirEnt property.

The mroup has approved the development of @ warehouse on Waterfall - Land Pascel B
raferron to as the "spec Warehouse”, Tha budding will be developes on a specuiative basis
with the mtentian to lease it to a third party and will by recognised as an Investment

Broparty.
The Group has agprowved the development of & communsl and conference Fadility an

waterfall - Land Farcel 10 referved 10 as "PwC Annes”. The buiding will be leased Lo a third
party and will e recognised a5 an investment propey.

Cost committed ara for the installathon of acditional capacity to the Impephoma substaton
on Waterfal - Land Parcel 14,

CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS
Sureties provided

Sirety i respect of loan funds advanced by Invester Bank to Atterbury Property
Developments Proprigtany Limited for acquisition end develogrnent of "Beau Rivage”,

Swrety o respect of taan funds advanced by Standard Bank to Attacy Waterfail Investrment
Campary Proprietary Limetad for the instzllation of servicas in ralation to Land Parcel 8 at
Waterfall Midrand,

Lurety in respect of faan funds acvanced by Medbank o Micwstown Properiy Develoament
Company Progrietacy Limited for the deselooment of Mewtown Junction

Suraty in respect of laan funds advanced by Medbank ta flisewtawn Proparty Develapment
Company Progrietary Limited for the develzpment o Mewlown ity Ladpe

Surety im respact-of [0an funds advanced by Investec Bank Limited ta Fountains Regional Mail
Propiistary Limited for the development of the Fountains hdall situatad im Jafi e Bay,

Surety imrpspect of loan funds advanced by Investes Bank To Koysha Imvestments 213
Proprietasy Limited for the acquisition of vacant land i the Val de Vis Estate, Franschoek.

Surety in respect of loan funds advanced by Nedbank to Attacg Waterfall Investment
Company inrespect of the serviceinstallation for Waterfall Land Parcel 22

Surety in respect of loan funcs advanced by Investec Bank to Geethouthonm Estate
Proprictary Lenabe.

Surety in respect af Ioan funids advanced by Investac Bank to Brooklyn Bridge Office Park
Proprietary Lisnited in fesaect of the inveitmant pragerty knowen B Brookln Bridpge Office
Park",

Surety in respect af loan funds sdvancad by Nedbank ta The Club Retail Park Propsstany
Limited in respect of the mised use development knawn 25 "Club, Hazelwaod®

Sub-sotal carried forwand
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NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in B'000s 2015 2014 2015 2014
32 COMMITMENTS (continued)

32.3 CONTINGENT COMMITRMENTS [CONTINUED]
Sureties provided {continued)
Sub-total bravght forward EF0 330 FA2 330 570830 THO 930
Surety in respect of funds advanced by Negbiank 10 Lytnwood Bridge Office Park Propretary
Limited For Lynnwond Bridge Offce Park. F56 200 A0 1K) 296 300 A0 D00
Surety i respect of funds advanced by A358 1o Lynnwood Bridge Office Park Proprietary
Limited far Lynnwood Bridge Office Fark, 196 300 256300 -
Surnty in respect of funds advanced by Standard Bank Lo Lynawaad Bridge Office Park ’
Froprietary Limited far Lyanwaood Brigge Offce Park, 296 300 . 1596 300 -
Lurety in respect of funds advanced by Nedbank to Attacy Retail Fund Proprietary Limited for
certain refad prapertias of the Attacy retadl fund partiolio TRT THT T0Q g
Surcty in respect of funds advanced by ABSA to Attacy Retad Tuned Progrietary Lirmited for
certain retail propertios of the Attacg ratall furd portfadio TET DD TET 100 t
surety in respect of funes advanced by Sandard Bank 1o Atlacg Retail Fund Proprigtay
Limited for certain retail properties of tha Attacg retall fund pertfalio. TET A e aelilt]
furety o respect of funds advanced by Rand Merchant Bank for the purchase ol the durecon
butlding in Fretona by Lynnanr Irvestments Fragrietany Limioed 155 DA 105 O 155 G0 155 20
Surety i respect of funds advanced by Investec Bank for Grove Mall of Namiba Propristary
Limited for the development of The #all of Mamibia 200 030 200000 203 003 200 a0
Surety in respect of funds advanced by Standard Bank for the development af Waterfad Land
Parcel 10 (At Howse & Galder buildings| 32 000 32000 32000 22000
Surety in respect of funds advanced by Standard Bank for the develapment of Waterfa¥ Land
Parcel 10 [Colgate & Spec building) i Midrand. 26000 = 26 D0
Zarety in respect of Funds adwanced by Nedbank for the development of Waterfall Land Parcel
9 (Serweit butlding) in Midrand 1E 190 - -
Surely in respect of funds sdvanced by Hedbank for the developmant of SWarerfall Land Farcel
S [Stryker Duilokagl i Mideand Al a7a - - -
Surely in respecl of funcs adwvanced by Rand Merchant Bank far the develapment of Waterfall
Land Pascel 9, Land Parced 10-and Land Parcel 22 [Angel Shack, Movarts and Westean
butldings] in htidrand 126 360 - -
Swrety in respect of funds advanced by Standard Bank for the develzprment of the Aftach
Luifding situated an Waterfall Land Parced 20 m Midrand. 10 00o 10000 2 0D 10000
Surety in respect of funds advanced by Standard Bank for tha develapment af Waterfall Lang
Parcel 15 [Group Five buslding) 110000 110000 110,000 110000
Surety in respect of funds advanced by Medbank far the funding of Kompashaai Property
Development Proprietary Limited 3333 B D00 2332 10000
Suraty im respact of funds sdvanced by Stancard Bank far the infrastructune serace coss for
‘Wiaterfall Land Parcel 10 300 600 154400 00 600 194 400
Surety in respece of Tunds advancad by Sarlam Capital Markets Limited and Sarilarm Credit
Conduit Proprietary Limited for the funténg of the Massbulid DC sitwated on Waterfall Land
Bareel 1. 32 060 3200 32400 32000
The Group provided a rental puarantes Lo Leal Capatal regarding the 50% wndivided share sald
In Great Westerford. The guarantee is valid for thiee years ending Febiruary 2018 &n 7,088 m2 _
of office space a5 well 35 parkng beys 1677 13 852 1677 13 862
Cauea surety by attacg Waterfall investrment Comparny Propoetary imited inorespoct of flends
gdwanced by Standard Bank Lo The Moobmian Graup far the development of KMaxsel! Qffice
Fark situated an Land Parcel 10 (Jukskei view est B3). Causa surety far the morigages band
registered gver the foint lease with The Moolman Group in respect of Jukskel view eat 53,

123136 152 250 - -

Causa surety by Attacy Waterfsll lvestment Company Prapristany Limsted in respect of funds
advanced by Sandard Aank to The Moclman Growp for tve developmant of thie Attech
Bullding stuated on Land Farcel 20, Causa surety for the mortgage bond registered aver Lhe
jpint dmasn with The Mooiman Groug i respect of Erf 3290 Jukskel view ext 7 28 200 14 150 -
Sub-tatol carried forword 5140 701 2128 Da2 & 701 941 1946 582

an
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COMPANY

Figuras in R'O00s 2015

32 COMPAITIEENTS (continuad)

323 CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS [CONTIMNUED)
Suroties prowvided [contlnued)
Fub-torm carvied forwmed 5140 701
Causa surety by attace Waterfall ivestment Company im respect of an overdraft facilicy
provided by Standard Bank te Attacg Limited Tor bricging capital reguirements relating to

services on the Waterfall Land (the fausa siweety is i respect of the mortgagn bond by Attacy
waterfall Fvettment Cosnpany davear the lease in respect af Land Parcel 10a).

Surety in respect of funds advanced by Nedbank to Eey {apdal Fropemy Holdings Proprictary
Lirnited for the develapment taking glace in Steflenbosch. 20 S0

Suredy in respect ol funds advanced by Nedbank for the desaloprrant of Waterfall Corner
Retall situated on Wakerlad Land Parce’ 15, 54 000

Suwiety inrespect of funds advarced by Nedbank 1o Attscg Waterfall investment Comnpany
Froprietary Limited for the devebzpment of Mail o africa siteated on Waterfall Land Parcel
160 00 000

Swreby m respact of funds advancen by Standarg Bank to adtacg Waterfall investment
{ampany Proprictary Limited for the deseloprmant of City Lodge situatad an Waterfall Land
Parcel 30, 20000

Surety in respect ©of a bridgmg facility agvanced by Standard Bank to Attacg Wataerfall
livestinent Cormpary Praacsetarny Limited {or the developmant of City Lodpe situated an
‘weaterfall Land Parcel 1 10148

Surety in respect of funds advanced by Swandard Bank o Attacg Waterfall Investment
Company Progrigtary Limited for the development of Premier Feods and the Honda situated
an Watafall Land farcel 10. 14 5D

Sarety inrespect of funds advanced by Nedbank to Attacy Waterlaf Investrant Company for
the development of Covigien situated on Waterfall Land Parcel 8. 15 380

Surety i respact of US Oollar facility advancerd by Standard Bank Limited the ohligations of
AlH Enternational Limited. 512°000

Surety In respect of funds advenced by Sanlam Capital Markets Limited Lo Attacg Waterfall
Investrent Compary for the developrent of Waterfall Lifestyle situated on Waterfall Lang
Pareed 15, 48 000

Surety in respect of lumds advanced by Sanlam Capital Maskes Limited to Allacy Waterlall
Inuestment Company Proprletary Limited for the development of Drager siuated on Waterfall & 0an

Causa Surety provided by attac Wiaterfall investment Companry In resgect of funds aovanced
by Medbank to Attac for the develooment of the Cell © Campus on Waterfall Land Parcel 21 500 00

Surety in respect of fands sdvanced by Standard Eand to Lord Charles and 1ady Brooks Office
Park Proprietary Limaed for the commitments of Cord Charies and Lady Bronds Office Fak
Proprietary Lirmited 35000

Suregy in respect of funds advanced by Invedter Bank to Sttacy Waterfall Investment
Cosmpaniy {or the relinaacing of the PwC Builetng m Sunninghill 200 000

Medbark put 10 Attacy Limited In respect of an overdralt facifity svailed o Atterbury Property
Haldings Proprietary Limited, The gt Is secured by Attacg Waterfall lmvestment Company
Framrigtary Limited shares hald o atterbery Waterfall Company Prearatary Lirmetad =
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33 SUBSEQLENT EVENTS

Acguisition of shareholding in Shacoias Emporium Park and The Mall of Engarni In Cyprus

Attacr, via a 48.8% charghaldieg In &tterhury Cypros Limited (“atterbury Cyprus®|, aoquined an effectres 48,68 mtarest in ITTL Trade & Tours? Lesure Park Plc, owner of the
Sharcalas emparium Park and an effective $8.3% interest in Woolwarth Cormmercial Centre P, the cwner of The #all of Engami.

The properties aré located in Hicosia, the capital of Sypras and were secured together with Atterbury Europe BV which, together with minorities, owns the balance of the
sharehalding in Atterbury Cyprus, The 55 S00m? Shacolas Emporium Pk 15 in the heart of Micosia and carmprises the 27 000w Mall of Cyprus, a 20 G0m? IKEA stone and twi
smaller hutldings. 1§ attracts aver five million shoppers and wisitors annually. The fall of Engomiisa 13 EOGm® retail centre lacated o the west of Nicowa and attracts more than

1.5 militan visstars amnuall. Bath centres provide expansion cooorbunities.

Attacy’s share of the acqusition coss was £48.4 mdbign and payment was made durng the course of luly 2005, priee to the recent depreciation m the Rand.

Apart From the matier as described abees, the directars are not aware of ady matler of gircumstance arismg sinte tha end of the financial year up o the date of this report that

warrarts diseloture in these firandal statements.

=)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fipures in B'000:

34 RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are definad as those entithas with whilch the company transacted during the wear and in which the following relationshiplst exiss:

Direct subsidiaries

AIH International limiteo

aldabri 46 Froprietary Limsted

Attacg Managernent Services Proprielany Limited

Attacy Retail Fund Praprietany Limited

Attacy Waterfall investment Company Proprictary Limdted

Arterbury Attfund Investment Company Mol Preprietary Limited [Deregistration filed oo %0 June 2015}
Arterbury Attfund Investment Company Mo Frogrietany Lnited | Deregistration filed on 20 une 2015
Arterbury Attfund Ipvestment Compeny Mo, Progrietary Levited | Deregistration fiked on 30 June 2015]
Atarbury Mauritivs Consortivm Progrietary Limited

faterbury Praperty Investments Froprietary timited [Deregistesed an @ danuasy 20155

Brogkiyn Hridge Officn Fark Proprigtany Limited

Harlequin Duck Proparties 204 Froprietary Lireted

Highgrove Property Holdings Proprietary Limited

Lady Bicaks Propaietany Limiled

Le Chatesu Praperty Development Propigtasy Limited

Leipzig Nova Eventis Consartivm Progrietary Limded

Lord Charles and Lady Bronks Office Fark Holdings Proprigtary Limited (Caregstered filed on 30 june 2015}

Lynnaur Inwastments Proprietary Limited
Lynawood Bridge Office Park Proprietary Limited
hantrablea Proprietary Limited

Razarhill Propertiss 91 Proprietary Limited

Diroct associates

attAfrica 54 Froprietary Limited

Atteshury Property Holdings Proprsstary Lanited and its subsidiaries and essociatas®
Fatti 365 Froprietary Lmied

Farti Attzcg Proprietary Limited

Feuntain: Regiondl Mail Proprietary Limited

Geelhoutbhoom Estate Froprietary Limited

A5 Real Estate inc.

Keysha invosiments 213 Progreetary Limited |dispesed during the 2615 financial year)
Kompashaai Property Development Froprietary Limeted

Kapfund Holdings Proprigtasy Limited (dspesed during the 2015 financial year)

Fetail africa Consortium Holdings Proprietary Lmited (Disposed during the 2015 financial year)
el ail Alrice Wingspan lnvestiments Proprietary Lenited

The Club Betail Park Proprietary Limited

The Growe hall of Hamibia Proprietary Limited

Travenna Dewelopment Company Proprictary Limited

Indiract subsidiaries

Adamas Proprietary Limited

attacg Retail Servces Propetary Limited

Craslgn Square Shooping Centre Proprietary Limited

Artarg Grogp EA0 Proprietary Limited

tlajestic Offices Progristary Limited

Micawber 832 Proprietary Limited

Mipwtawn Proqarty Davelopment Company Fragrietary Lrmited

Indirect sssodiater

africa Land tnuestment Lmited |Disposed during the 2015 inancial
ear)

attadrica Lemited

atterhury Femba Property Hoidings Limited

Bagaprop Limitad

Bishopsgate Student Residential Lirited

fall of Mauritivs at Bagatelle Limited

Arterbury Maudilivs Limited

& effective 12 December 2014, Attacq reduced its shareholding in GPH from 25% to 10%. This retulted n APH baing clasiified a1 an investment company and no longer an assooiate.

Direchars

# Tredoux"™ {Ghairman)
BAL Wilken (CEQ)

¥ Hamman {CFO)
AW Nauta™

HE El Haimer™

IEF wan der Merwe®
¥R Malake®

LLS wary der Watt
BAR du Toit™

PH Faure®

5 Snaw-Taylar™

Tha Reilly™®

WL Masekpla®

& indppencgnt
* Man-geecitia

Managemenl
Key managemeant and presoribed officers:
2015

v D Thenan

s W lder
2014

= N Weir

= D Theson

Appintad 1 Sugadl 2014

Fesignes 30 Jure 2014
Appointod 1 5ane 2014
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
|Hegiaration Hurnbier: 1897 /K5435G
Annual Financial Statements far the vear endad 30 June 2015

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures n A'000s 05 2014 2015 2014
35 RISK MANAGEMENT
Changing market condtans supase the Group fo waegus financial rsks, inclyding interast rate,
credit, and Bguidity risks.
Although the Group does nol trade in linancial inglournants fas specolative purposes, il does
utdise ferlvatres Instruments 1o manage esposure bo some of these risks.
The Groug finances its operations throuph & misture of retained profis, bank berewings and
lag-term borrowings,
Althouph the Group has an accounting palicy Lo designate sarme derivative financial
mstruments as hedging Instrumants from time to tme none were sasgnated as such duteng
the purrent financial year. Afthough it was not apeicable this financial vear, the Group also has
an arcounting policy for hedge accounting
There have been no significant changes during the vear to the types of Financial risks the Group
15 eaposed o nor o the measerement and management af theso riss
e beard, throegh the Investment Committee and the swdit and Risk Committee, i5
responsible far the Group risk managemant.
The tutses mandated by the board relating to the Aurkt and Bisk Committee 2re detailed in the
Repart af the &udit and Risk Caommittes.
The Investment Committes meets freguenty to consider new opportunitsas for the Group,
iricheding credit and interest rsk refating to such opporfunities and relaten fmancing
ElTuChres,
Interest rate swap dera tive
The Graup has entered inta interest rote swap contfacts that entitle, or obigate it toofecsmve
interest sl a fized rate on nodanal printipal amowsnts and entitle o obigate it to pay interest at
3 wariable rate an the seme potional orincipal amounts, Under these agreernents the Group
agrees with the counter party to oxchange at gre-detarmined intervals the differance between
the fixed and variable mterest amosnts calculsted on the national principal amoents.
ke mbarest rate swap dertvatives has bean valuad using a market queted swap cura as at 30
June 2015 (30 June 2012},
The interest rate swap have baen recagnised @ berms af (8 29 Finangial insrruments:
Fecognition ard Measurement , which reguires that interest rate swaps be Fair valued and
markad ko markeat at @ach regorting dale
Interest rate swaps exposed tooredit risk at vear end are detailed In note 13,
Interast rate risk
The Group's pahcy = ko manzge interest rate risk sa that fluctuations m vanable rates do not
hiave a material fmpact an profit and bass.
The Group makes wie of interest 1ate devivatives and fined rate borrowings to hedge its
expasule tointergst rate fluctuations. Refer Lo note 13 and 20
T hedge the Fair value risk of fixed interest liabilities, the Group uses interest rate swaps and
fies, thus hedging the fair value of the financial lizhilties
ftis the palicy of the Groug W enter into interest rate swap and fleed interest rate agreements
with financlal institutions to the sxbant that nat less than 0% of it mortgaged labilities are
hedd at Fued Interest rates [refier npte 200, At year end, 77 (2014 59%) of borrawings were
hedgad and foord.
The Group's gxpesare 10 fair valee interest rate risk and cash fliow risk can be summarised 25
Telhmwe:
Barrowings
Bank borrowings at flxed rates and hadgod 7 705 758 3 890957 - -
Bank boriowings at variable rates 1484423 2 7B4 291 8 200 BOE 362
Bank overdrafi 19344 = 19340 -
Loans at variable rates 113 153 5E51 1128 =158
Interest rate swops Gnked to HROR and Prime 1ates |al fair vallel 28 OBG a3 D26 30 10158
B 350 874 & 723 k5 371947 BErzavl
Thi estimatad impact of 3 10035t points Increase in interest ratas would have the following
befare tax impact on the profits of the Groua 16451 s sl sl 82124

a7



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries

|Registration Mumber: 1997/000543/06)
Annual Fingnciak Saternents for the year ended 30 lune 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Figures In R'D0O0 2015 2014 2015 2044

35 RISX MANAGEMENT {continued)
Interest rate rick |continued]
Liguidity risk

Liquadity risk 15 tha risk that the Group will not be able e meet its Ainencial oliligations as they
fiall due.

The Group ensures that adeguate funds are available to mest its expected and unespected
Finan<ial carteratments thraugh surplus funds deposited at financial institutions and undrawn
berrorweing Facilities, In suone cases certain short-ferm liabilinas will be settled as part of pre-
cetermired appnoved sruclured deals,

The Growd's contractual matarity on non-derivative financial habilmes, net of interast (hased
on unmscpunted cash flows) ot vear end are ag folows:

Less thon 1 year
Lang-term Borrowings 3253@ 445027 Z1ca4 &L ey
Other Fmancizt Sabilities 113 358 a5 1128 CREY
Trade and othor payables A52 635 375 960 24478 36 419
Loans fram assaciates o GE 2EOT : T2
Loanis from subsidiaries . - 179 148 IHA 567
Bank overdralt 19 349 - 10340 -
952561 1476917 245 BAE 457 80
Between 1 oad § pears
Long-term burrorwings 5357905 2952 588 185056 201 527
Otk financial liskiSties B DEE 458 026 3370 10158
5415991 F000 814 13E 336 213685
Cwer § yeors
Leng-term barrawings I 465947 3273633 140 528 17555
Finance loase chiigation 71346 GG 002 ES) -
AEIT 153 3315 e 140599 57 555
2955 845 747 172 S5T5570 1218300
Credit risk

Credit risk refers o the rist that the pounterparmy will default gn fs contractaed cbligations resulting in fnancial loss to the Graup,

The Group's cash and cash equiveleats are placed with high credit quality financial insttutsons. Credit nsk in respect af trade receivahles is limited due to the spread of the customer
Base and credit approval procosses.

The Group's expogurs Lo cedit risk @ primarily in respect af tenarts and is influenced by the individual charactenstics and risk proflle of each temant. The exposuse to credit risk frem
tenants is mitigated by the spread of the tenant base, The granting of credit o tenants are made or applcatian and 5 approved by the finance department and the property
managers based on theer credit agsessment of new and exdsting tenants. Tenanis are réguired to supply refundable lease depasits and/far bank guarantess and/far suretyships by their
principals. at yeas end, the Group did not consider there fo be am significant concentrztion af credit rsk which has nat Geen insured or adequately provided for., in providing for
impairments on tenant accownts, the Group takes cognisance of guarsnbeas deliverad by tenants and for their banker: as well as unencurmbered assets of tenarts and their principals
which may be allached.

The Groug has some exposuare i respect ol wans granted where collatedal has been réeguested. The finanoal position of the countes partics are congidered at granting of the lgans
and 15 atso evaluated on an on-going Sasls

The carrying amaents of financial assets included incthe statement of financial position represent the masimum expesure 10 credit sk in respect of these astats. The maximom credit
expoaure of interest rate swaps i repraented by the fair value of these contracts

Enfer to nota 372 for an analysis of the Group's trade receivabie's sgeing, overdue accounts and impalrments
Insaranca risk

The Group is expoaed [0 indurance risk pamarily on its investment properties. The Group kas insered 58 o5 properties at estimated replacement values and against less of income as 2
result of disrupted operations.

L]



Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
|Begistration Nurmbes: 1997 /000543,06)
Annial Finan<ial Statements fior the year ended 30 June 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in R000s 25 14 2018 2014

35 RISK MANAGEMENT [cantinued}
Foraign currency righ

The= Grougp = éxposed to foreign eschange risks in the following investmeants:
*  gisel swap apreemant with Investec Securities ralating 1o the acguiition of it investmeant
in Stenham Eurspean Shapping Cantre Fund Lil'l"'l|tEd. of which the BEpOSUTE 8

denominated In Euros;

= cinvestmient in Bishopsgate Student Residental Limited, of which the exposure is
denoirinated in Euro-and British Pounds;

= investment in Al Internatiana! Limited, of which the éxpodure & denominated in USD
aend Eurc;

« nvestment in Bagagrop Limited éad Mall of Mauritius at Bagarelle Urnitad in Mauritis,
of which the exgosure is denaminated in Mauritian Rupees; and

o pvestment in The Grove Ball of Namibia Proprietang Limited, of which the expasure is
derayminated in Hamibian Dolkars.

The group’s exposure 5 managed by dversfying s irmvestments into variaus currency zones.

Capital risk managemaent

The Group manages its capital b ensure that entities on the Graup will be able to continge 85 gaing cencerns while magimising the return to stakehalders through the pptmsation of
the debt and eguity Dalance. The Group's oversll stalegy remaing unchanged Toom 2014,

The capital structure of the Group congist of net delt (borrowings as detailed in note 20 offset by cash and bank as detalled @ note 18] and equity of the Group {comprising ssued
capitai, reserve, retalned earnings and noan-cantrolling interests as detalled in note 3.1 and 18

The Group is not subject fa asny edternally mooied capital reguisemeants:

Thir basrd monitars the debt pquity ratio on an ongaing bases to achieve opfimal value to the sharsholders.

a8
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Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
{Registration Nismbar: 1997/ 000543/046)
Annwal Fingncial Statements for the vear ended 30 lune 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY

Figures in i'D0Ds Nate 2005 2014 2015 2014

37 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

This nate provides intormation absul bow the Gloup detgrmines fir values of various
financial nssets and financial liabilities,

Fair walue of the Group’s linanciad assets and financial liabilisies that are measered at fair
value on 3 recurning basis,

Investment property L]
« lewel3 16 187873 13 BIB 337 772 761 585 255

The Fair watue of investment praperty is defermined wsing the following techrigues:
= [evelopment rights - tha residuad land valieation mathod;
= Land - residual land valuation methad;
»  Dewglopments under construction - discounted cash fiow methodology; and
v Completad Develaments - discounted cash flow methodalogy.

Future cash flows Far the discounted cash flow are determined with referemce to Lhe sgnec
Ieasos between the Group snd tenants. Discount, capitalization, and vacancy rates used in
the astirnate ave determened by infeperdont peperss,

Refer 1o note 5 lar the significant unatiservable inputs and the rolatiorship between the
unobsarvable npuls and the fair value

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale a&7
= Lewel 2 - 13 BAB » Fin 138 BaE
= Lewveld GBd 441 - AEY 258 -

G4 443 EEme | 187 858 138 Bah

The falr value of ather investments is determaned with referance to the net asset valus af
the underlying invastrmant.

Thare are no unobservable inpuls identfiabie that would have 8 significant impact on the
fair valup of tha other invastments.

Hefer to nabe H & 17 for the for the detalled anatvsls of the balances.

Qther investments 10
v Lével 3 402 414 523 750 334 109 4534 436

The fair value of other inwastrnents is determined with reference ta the net asset value of
the underlying iavestment,

Thera are no unobsersanla inguts ideatifiable that would have a signlicant imgact an the
fair value of the ather inupstments

Refier ta note 10 for the for the detalled anabysis of the balances,

Dthver financial assets [liabilities) 13
Orther fimancal assens
= Lewl 2 54 T3E - Fa-E R .
#® Lewal 3 Q5L EXT B174 AGO BT E1T3
Crther financial liabilities
+ Lewel2 {34 675) [48 0126 {3 2100 [16158]
* Lewel 3 V106 BES] {5 H51) 11 1:28) (5851)

BBE 931 147 704) A£5006 (3 E3E)

The fair valua of ather investments is datermined annually &s the difference in the not
pfesent value of future cashflows on the mortgage bond at the floating and fiked rates. The
differance & recopnized a8 an agel of liabilite,

Future cash Flows for the discounted cash Flow are deter mined will reference to booward
intprast rates, from phservable vield curdes 3t the end ofthe reporting period, and contract
intergst rates, discounted at rates that reflect the credit rsk of variows countarparnes,

Daring the cutrent year, there has been no maweament refating to fair value: hserarchy with
respect to the finaical assets and Habistas Sied above.

Refer to the abowe listed notes for & reconciliation of the financial assets and abalities.

L]



Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
|Ragistralion Humbes: L9597 000543 06|
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 lurn 200 %

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP COMPANY
Figures in 6'000s Neote s n14 2045 2014

37 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {continued)

The fair valupe of the falfowing finaacizl assets and liabilies are designated a5 level 3

Tha carrgag amounis of the lollowing balances is deemed by reanageaent 10 sparosinats
thielr fair vakues, The fair value of balances below is determined with reference to the
carrying value and the net asset value of the underiving invastmants

fefar to the relevant note for 8 detailed analysis of the balaces

Other fimancial assets {labilsties)
Lixgms to assaciates

b Lewel 2 12 741037 1719358 1448340 1aE021
Lowns froem assaciates

« Level3 it 170989 245 079} = |72 445

5'.rimu 515 @56 | 104 3447 215572

Lo#ins to shareholdess

« Leweld . £9 169 . L9344
Loans to subsidiaries - current 15

« Lewpl3 . 3 TER 4RT 3632055
Loas from subsidiarias

= Leval3 - 179148} |285 567)
Trady and arther recelvables 12

= Levald 144 552 120 80 331 el
Trado and ather payables i1

= Leyvel § 459073 373 368 24476 36529

105



Attacg Limited and its subsidiaries
iRegistration Rumber: 1997,/000543/0E)
Annual Finandal Statements far she yaar ended 30 June 2013

" 25K undhwded share
" 0K e whate
44 Fu pndngded shane
"B e sha e

Primory GLA alsclosed chove ot AXacg s effective GLA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP
Figures in R'000s 2015
Primary Invastment
Eusiness segrment GLA - m* Reglon property Other pssets Total assets Totad linbilikies
38 SEGMENTAL REPORTING
OHfice and mixed use
Braoklyn Bricige Odfice Park #3515 Gauteng 611 581 40749 652 330 42E 304
Great Westerford™ 14 558 \Wastarm Cape 7T ThT 11710 IR4472 200585
Lymnwied Bridge A6 a1 Gautleng 1 283 102 BEBET 1308 Des 108 GaE
Aureoan Bulding 13104 Gauteng 621770 &8 407 FINAFT 553618
Mewtown function 53 564 Gautong 1377232 71018 1348290 1122358
mdajestic Dffices B4 Hauteng 134 361 557F 1354933 112012
P Bunminghidl 25 525 hauTeng 351 308 17 Daa I5E35D 397 7L
Waterfzll - altech Buslding® 2113 Gadteng 400547 532G 45975 2 BEn
Waterkedl - Lell C Campus 44 782 Gauteng TTEO13 57 731 875 Tah 251 Bha
wiarerfall - Civy lodge G180 Gauteng B 404 8 050 107954 61593
waterfadl - Group 5 2% a2 Gauteng 543 053 B G5 531958 3E2578
Waterfall - Maxwell Office Park - Phase fand |* G545 Gauteng 239654 B3 156 322815 200 958
Waterdall - Novartiz FaE2 Gaukeng 154 620 B5 2563 274 BE3 157 757
458 190 701 BOx 7145482 4867 958
Retall
Glenfair Boulevard Shapping fentre 154927 Gauteng 3B8 200 1M a8E 070 35 361
Garden Route wall 53015 wiastern Cape 1186014 36639 1421633 T an
Brooklyr Malln 18 6ES fzautang 77135 0112 BI7 457 A37 060
Bogiriviar Mall a3 T Harth Wast 1 08z B2 32745 1075547 B77 120
Andrirga Wilk 10545 Wiastern Cape 169323 o 4ay AET0 112 843
Eikestad Mall # d5ETE ‘Waestarn Cape 528 416 =¥ 103 S50 515 ?-ﬂ'?aﬁ
mAill Square 3562 Wastarn Cape TES7E 1489 81 464 51 #3
Watarfall - Waterfall Corner 9249k Gautang 185 440 E7&17 240857 154014
wiaterfzll - waterfall Lifestyle 71w Gauteng 11237 8 5as 121313 93 141
& 370 576 194 154 # 568 730 2681 B85
Light industrial
Wateitall - Angel Shack 4 652 GaUteng 32931 1 E07 34538 aa?
Waterfabl - Cavidien 11082 Gauleng 108 £32 13555 131 557 107 0h
whaterfall - Cummins® 10504 Gauteng T8 00d 4338 g2 3‘46 5532
Waterfalt - Drager 5027 Gauteng F1 280 L% U] Traa AL 78
Waterfall - Mazshizild Distribution Cantre IEADI Gauteng 243 434 34 243473 203 445
Waterfall - Westcon saEy Gauteng 59 175 L 156 D64 E7 740
633 246 82 364 Ti5 EiD 4331 7ah
Vacant land
Le Chateau Narth Waest 17 00 2 17402 2247
Wistertall - Develapment rights Gaytang 1467422 10 1457432 45
‘Waterfall - Infrastructure and Services Gauteng 615 01 51212 B33 203 4665 4508
2100418 E7 234 2157 RaF 467 751
Develapments
Mewlown - City Looge 4088 Gauteng 73018 - F3 018 47593
watarfall - allandale Building 14 670 Gauleng 60 B48 4074 Taary 11 899
Warerfall - Hift: iEn anteng a0 ad 27548 41 740 13165
Waterlzll - Mall of Alrica® 104 830 Gautarg 2010139 554 357 2604 455 1579 855
Waterfzll - Mawwel! Office Park - Phase 111® 5261 Gauteng 101 658 552 11010 97 754
Waterlail - Pl Tower " 2641 Gayteng 152 688 76 385 219073 41 5%
weaterfall - Seriest 5650 Gauteny 1X7134 10 537 137 v 47 605
Waterfall - Strykes 13214 Gauteng 4] 983 310 45033 26194
2 615 448 99 B34 5515 rax T II5615
Total 16 187 BT 1738378 Ir 927251 10776 955
Head cffice [ other * L373430 5373430 554 276
Taotal 16187 873 7112 808 i3 300 6EL 11386 231




Attacqg Limited and its subsidiaries
[Rezistration Wumber: 1997,/000543,06)
Annual Financial Stataments (or e vears ended 30 Juna 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GROUP
Figures in R'000S 2018
Primary Imvmstment
Business segmant GLA -m? Ragian property Other assets Total pesetd Total Rabilities
38 SEGMENTAL REPORTING [continued)
Office and rmived use
Broakiyn Bridge Office Park 23 525 Gauteng ala RIS a4 B4 B53 0759 445702
Graat Waskerlord® 16 136 Weskern Caps 135 608 EO 107 295 V1B 114181
Lynnwaod Bridge 3T 634 Gauteng 819651 BE= 293 @18 G54 E1R15%
aypregon Building 19 104 Gauteng 517 953 T7ESE T15 809 583117
Waterfall - Altach Balding™ 3173 Gauteng 41 004 3107 43312 Z¥301
‘Waterfall - Cell © Campus &4 200 Gautang TH1 329 119214 BA0 542 TITF
Waterlall - Group 5 23 139 Gautang 04 420 s 091a4n 37E 160
‘Wiaterfedl - Bawwaell Offos Park - Phase 1% 5 4E3 Gauteng 1304494 11176 141670 45 166
5 748 F45 502 782 A 251528 2 203 A5
Rl
De Wille Shopaing Centre 13 455 Wistern Cape + - - x
Glenfair Boulevard Shapping Centre 15937 Gauteng 345 B4R 2141 371287 &0 5AE
San Redge Square’ 12 045 Gauteng - ] ELL
Garden Route Mall L4414 Weslern Cape 1111741 ErarE: 1145474 TR B4
draoklyn kalls 18 fB9 Gauteng E3T 515 175592 655 167 SE5820
mooirivier kKall a7 M Morth West 843 265 33100 1025 365 585153
andrings \Walk 10 594 Western Capn 160 512 F 6D 167E72 278380
Eikestad hdall * 25.678 Western Cape 513 444 18 o0 512149 414 818
BAill Square 1 562 Weslern Cape 731 196 BB 74 (BY B2 100
Whaterfall - Waterfall Corner 41ET7 Gauteng 16% 592 2% 382 120978 147 308
& 8AF 916 1SEATY 4156 293 2793 002
Light industrial
Watlefall - Mazsbuld Distribution Cantie a7 138 Gauteng 224962 24 8o 240 853 200 240
Vacant band
Le Chateau moTEh Wiest 17 G 1 17001 1248
‘Waterfall - Developrient rghts Gautenp 1503 543 1 1503 555 &R
‘Waterfall - Infrastructure and Services Gaulenf A4E M5 1B 235 464 241 148 64
1966 555 18 246 1984 B4% 250400
Developments
waterfall - Angel Shack 4 558 Gauteng Fadlikh ) 1983 23014 4309
Waterfall - City Ledge & 180 Gasteng LEN S 5984 63 070 E315
Watarfall - Cavidian 11050 Gauteng 38 235 4508 44 =4 530
“Waterfall - Curnmins™ 10417 Gawteng 4 317 = #2312 & 0%
whatarfall « Gragor 4 674 Gasteng 3535 2 188 JZ Vi3 3340
Waterfall - Mall of afrea 130 188 Gawteng 494 714 SEO53 1053657 I0E01
waterfall - Maxwedl Dffice Pask - Phasa 5% 4 151 Gawteng LERTES ) BETE 91347 18 857
Waterfall - owartis A5 Gateng 54 16E 449317 59 105 SEI3
‘Waterfall - Waterfall Lilestyle 7540 Gavteng L] 1h228 a7 27 11661
Waterfall - Westoan & 074 Garteng 52 348 44934 57282 1k &dE
Lynnannd Bridge - Phase 1Y 15 115 Captenp 308 A9 04 305 §E9 193 a0
Mewtmwn Juncticn B3 617 Gavteng 97 919 173135 1158054 g7nTIa
Miajeskic Offices 9108 Gauteng 142 161 5613 Lag 777 135588
28211158 278743 2159011 1697 EOO
Tatal 12 839 337 453088 13 512 425 F045 107
Head office /! othar - A 552 451 44520 461 120301
Tatal 12 829 337 56315 549 1E 464 386 E 338 128

" 5 undivided shore
" 25% urdulded share

" e undiided shore
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Attacq Limited and its subsidiaries
[Aegistration Wumber: 1997/000543 /05

Anaual Bnandal Statements for the year pnded 30 June 201%

S

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12

Sharas
Mature of Issued shares
campany 30 June 2015 2015 2014 2015 2014
30 DIRECT SUBSIDMARIES AND ASSOCIATES
A Incerrational Limited {8Mauritizn) Investment 1 10000 1EAD 1 1
Aldabrl 36 Froprietary Limitsd Proparty
Investment 10 ] 100,00 L0 100
Attacg Management Services Progrietary Limited Asaet
mARAgERMmEnt 9028 10000 100.00 ane Q0lg
Atteroury Attfumd Investmeat Compary Ma. 1 Dormant E- = 10000 . 10400
Atterury Attlund Investment Company o E Donmant - - 10000 a 100
Atterbury Attfund investiment Cormpany No X Cuarmiart = 100,00 = 43 800
Atterbury bauritios Cansortium Proprictany Froperty
Lirnited [Mote A} Inwastmant on #0.00 En.od BD a0
Aﬂﬁfbl’r\' Property Insestmants Proprsstarny nvestment - E 130.C4 ol 140
Attarg Waterfall Investment Company Praprietary Property
Limited (Mats C) lnvagtrmant 100 000 100,400 1.23 00 GO0 81235
Amterbury Progerty Hobdings Proprietary Limited Develapment
[Mote M) DAY B3 333 333 1040 5.80 B 333333 25000 D03
Brooklyn Bridge Ofice Park Proprietary Limited Property
Inyestment 100 10000 10300 T.I;]III 1 (KT
Gasinoutboam Citate Proprietary Limiled Property )
Investment 1300 a7.00 ax0n 440 440
Harlequin Duck Progerties 204 Progrietary Limited Darmant 400 105000 1L I]m A0
Highprowe Proparty Moldmgs Propoetary Lmited Irvestmipnt 10 000 10500 1600 100000 100 300
Le Chateau Property Development Propriatary Cewelopment 1 10 100,00 100,00 1_{:}1:! 14a0d
lord Charles & Lady Brooks Dffice Park Holdings Loprmant 1000 10000 100,00 1000 1000
Lady Broaks Propriztary Ureited Dormant 1000 100.00 100,00 1000 1m0
Lelpizig Mova Eventis Consartivm Praprietsry Investment o 100.00 100,00 100 phiie}
Lyninwood Beidge Offioe Park Proprietany Lemated Dewaloprment 1828 10000 100,00 1878 1]
Sttace Retail Fund Proprietany Limited Froperty
Invastmant T35 Bia 100,03 100.00 735 624 659 905
flantrahiox Fropriotane Limited Froperty
mvestment e 100.0d B0.00 Iﬁﬂ an
Lynnaur Investments Progriatary Lisnited Property i
[Mote D) IS el 105 10000 1L 105 75
Raperbill Propesties 51 Propogtary Lsmetond Irvesstrnent 100 0000 100G 100 100
IS Real Cotate Inc. [Note E) Froperty
FwesErmenl Hivd
development
campany 291 787 BRI 4526 47,24 132049 113 137 049 123
i ajestic Offices Proprietasy Limited Cevelopment ica 50000 50,00 ) &0 &1
Neeuwtown Property Development Comaany Cevalopment g0 SO0 £0.00 B0 50
Tetail Afiica Cansortivm Holdings Proprietany Proparty
Limited (Mote G) Investment 780 593 . 50,00 = 330 294
Aetail Afrca Wingspan inwesiments Propratary Froperty
Lirnstad Investmant B30 7337 3444 444 17201 21t M
Kompasbaal Property Developrent Proprietary Progeity
Lirnitad [Note H) Invastmant ian 3300 1300 13 3
Keysha breeitrmants T13 Propetary Umited [Note Fraperty
1} Inwaitmeant 2000 LR - 500
Travenna Devalopment Company Froprictary Praperty
Limized muestment 1000 .00 36,00 360 360
Growe Mall of Mamiba Froprietary Limited Praperty
{Meamibian company) [Note 1} muzstment 1 2500 2540 -3 Th
Rapfund Holdings Proprietasy Limited (Nete K)
Holding company 27408 902 3 k0 . T3ATHTY
The Tkl Retsil Park Proprietary Limited {Mote L) Froparty
Irvestment 1188 3110 1.0 37 372
Fountains Eegicnz! Mall Propristary Limited (Nata Proparty
1] Imvestment 1] DI 1273 12.73 12 731 12731
Fatil 365 Proprietany Limited Irvastment 10 040 - =0
Fattl Attacg Proprietary Uriited Irvestment 240 50.00 - 1)
attafrica S0 Proprietary Lsited hanagement 1030 2500 = L -
Attacg Kamco Froprictary Limited Ivvestirmnl i0 10000 10 z



Attacqg Limited and its subsidiaries
|Registiation Mumber: 1997/ 000543/06)
annual Financial Statements far the year ended 36 June 2015

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

H Shares

Wature of Isswed shares
company 30 June 2015 2015 2014 2015 2014

3% DIECT SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSACIATES {continued)

The eFfective sharehalding that the Group has in the entities above, is shown below:

EFT EE=—x@

=]

The Growp has an effective share af B1.50% {Z014: B3, 755 «ig ils investment i Atlerbury Property Holdings Progrietary Urmited, (Mate &)

Thit campany was deregistared on 9 January 2015,

The Growp had an effective share o 85.92% in 2014 via it investment in Atterbury Property Holdings #ropriesary Limited. The strocture was simplified durieg the corrent year
and Altacy now owns 100% directhy.

The Growp hed @n elfective slare of TH13% in 2014 via it investment in Atterbary Property Holdings Propeietery Limited. The strocture was senplified during the current year
and attacy now o'wns 1005 directhy.

M&S Real Estate Inc: issued additonal shares diring the year which had the effect of diluting the effectee shareholding of Attacg.

Higuwtown Froperty Developmant Campany Propristary Lemited and Majestic OFices Froprietany Umited 15 a 50% held sebsidiany of Atterbary Froperty Holengs Proonetary
Limited. Effective haldings of Nievetown Property Deeslopment Company Froprictary Limited and Majestic Offices Froprietary Limited reduced to 55% as a resclt of the
reductian in Atterbury investment, (2024: 52.2%] [Note M)

The Group sald its ahareholding 16 the rermaining shareholders during the 2015 financial yeas

Thie Gisup has an effactres thare of 34 8036 (2014 44.79% ) via its investment in Atkerbary Propenly Hotdings Proprietary Limited.

This imvestment was disposed of in Augist 2014,

The Group has an effectrer share of 37.50% (7074; 30.25%) wa 105 investment in Atterbury Preperty Holdings Proprietary Limited.

This was dispozed of In juby 204 10 2 consartium of axisting and new Rapfund Holdings Propseatary Lnited sharehodders for R133 midlion

The Eroup has an effacive snare of 34 703 (2024; 407 1%) via its investment In AlLerbury Progerty Holdings Propristary Limited

e assets of the company L. the Fountaing Regional Madl wes disposed of in May 2015, while the company was retained

Atrerbury Propesty Holdings Proprietary Limited redwced thair number ol ssoed shares and Attaco reduced their investment, both transactons occurred on 12 Decamber
2014

The deregistration of this romgany was filed with the Compankos and Intedlectial commiszions ["CIFCT) o 30 one 2015
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